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ORTEL COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED (UNDER CIRP)
(CIN:L74899DL1995PLC069353)

Regd. Office: B7/122A, Safdarjung Enclave, New Delhi-110029
Website : www.ortelcom.com, Email: bidu.dash@ortelgroup.com

NOTICE OF 25TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the 25th Annual General Meeting
(AGM) of the members of Ortel Communications Limited ("the
Company") shall be held on Wednesday,September 30, 2020 at
11:30 A.M. IST through Video Conferencing (VC)/ Other Audio
Visual Means (OAVM) to transact the following business:

BACKGROUND:

This is to reiterate to the members that pursuant to an application
made by Sony Pictures Networks India (P) Limited, the Hon'ble
National Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi Bench ("Adjudicating
Authority"), vide its order dated 27 November 2018, had ordered
the commencement of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process
("CIRP") in respect of your company under the provisions of the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (the "Code"). Thereafter, in
accordance with Section 17 of the Code, the powers of the Board of
Directors stood suspended and the management of affairs of the
Company and powers of Board of Directors are vested with Mr.
Srigopal Choudhary, the Resolution Professional ("RP") who is
appointed by the Committee of Creditors ("CoC") and to carry out
the activities relating to CIRP as per the rules, regulations and
guidelines prescribed by the Code.

The NCLT has also declared a moratorium for the Corporate Debtor
(Ortel)  as per Section 14 of IBC, 2016 on the Insolvency
Commencement date till the CIRP process is over. During the CIRP,
resolution plans ("Resolution Plan") was received by the Resolution
Professional and the Resolution Plan was placed before the COC
for approval and the approved Resolution Plan was filed with the
Hon'ble NCLT, New Delhi on 26th August, 2019 for approval
under Section 31 of the Code. The application filed by the Resolution
Professional for approval of Resolution Plan is currently pending
adjudication before the Adjudicating Authority. In terms of Section
25 of the Code, the Company is continuing to operate as a going
concern. Where at any time during the corporate insolvency
resolution process period, if the Adjudicating Authority approves
the resolution plan under sub-section (1) of section 31 or passes an
order for liquidation of corporate debtor under section 33, the
moratorium shall cease to have effect from the date of such approval
or liquidation order, as the case may be.

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

ITEM NO.1-ADOPTION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TO RECEIVE, CONSIDER AND ADOPT THE AUDITED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (INCLUDING CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS) FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR
ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020, TOGETHER WITH THE REPORTS
OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS THEREON

ITEM NO.2-TO APPOINT DIRECTOR IN PLACE OF MS. JAGI
MANGAT PANDA, MANAGING DIRECTOR (DIN-00304690),
WHO RETIRES BY ROTATION AND BEING ELIGIBLE, OFFERS
HERSELF FOR RE-APPOINTMENT

EXPLANATION:

Pursuant to Section 149(13) of the Companies Act 2013, the
independent directors are not liable to retire by rotation. Further
Section 152(6) of the Companies Act 2013 stipulates that 2/3rd of
the total number of directors of the public company should be
liable to retire by rotation and out of such directors, 1/3rd should
retire by rotation at every Annual General Meeting of the company.

To meet the requirement of provisions of Section 152 (6) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and in line with the Article 149, 150, 151, 152
and 160 of the Article of Association, the Managing Director or the
whole time Director shall not, while he/she continues to hold that
office, be subject to retirement by rotation under Article 151 but
he/she shall be subject to the provision of any contract between
him/her and the Company be subject to the same provisions as to
the resignation and removal as the other Directors of the Company
and he/she shall ipso facto and immediately cease to be a Managing
Director or Whole-time Director if he/she ceases to hold the office
of Director for any cause, provided that, if at any time the number
of Directors (including the Managing Director or Whole-time
Director) as are not subject to retirement by rotation shall exceed
one-third of the total) number of the Directors for the time being
then such of the Managing Director or Whole-time Director or two
or more of them as the Directors may from time to time determine
shall be liable to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Article
151 to the intent that the number of Directors not liable to retirement
by rotation shall not exceed one-third of the total number of Directors
for the time being. However, he/she shall be counted in determining
the number of Directors to retire (save as otherwise provided in a
contract  in terms of provisions of the Act or Rules made hereunder
or in a resolution passed by Board or Shareholders of the Company).

To consider and if thought f it, to pass,  with or without
modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution.

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with the applicable Rules thereon
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and other applicable provisions of law, if any, Ms. Jagi Mangat
Panda, Managing Director (DIN-00304690) of the Company, who
retires by rotation as Director in the Annual General Meeting, be
and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company at the
same meeting and she shall not, by reason of such retire by rotation
cease to be a Managing Director of the Company."

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

ITEM NO.3-TO RATIFY THE QUANTUM OF REMUNERATION
PAYABLE TO THE COST AUDITOR FOR THE FINANCIAL
YEAR 2020-21

To consider and if thought f it,  to pass with or without
modification(s) the following resolution as an  Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 148(3) of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14(a) of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 ("the Act") and any amendments
thereof, the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded for
ratification of the below remuneration to M/s NIRAN & CO., Cost
Accountants, Bhubaneswar, Odisha as the Cost Auditors of the
Company for the financial year 2020-21 as recommended by the
Resolution Professional of the Company."

REMUNERATION:

Rs. 70,000/-per annum plus out of pocket expenses & tax as
applicable for conducting the Cost audit of the Company.

Srigopal Choudhary
Resolution Professional

For Ortel Communications Limited (under CIRP)
Address - Flat 7J, Tower -3, South City

375 P.A.S. Road, Kolkata - 700068
Registration No- IBBI/IPA-001/IPP-01238/2018-19/11893

Date: July 31, 2020
Place: Kolkata

Registered Office:
Ortel Communications Ltd (under CIRP)
CIN:L74899DL1995PLC069353
B-7/122A, Safdarjung Enclave
New Delhi-110029
Phone: 011-46868800; 011-46868803
E-mail: bidu.dash@ortelgroup.com
Website: www.ortelcom.com
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Notes:

1. Pursuant to the General Circular numbers 20/2020, 14/2020,
17/2020 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA)
and Circular number SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/
2020/79 issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (SEBI) (hereinafter collectively referred to as "the
Circulars"), companies are allowed to hold AGM through
VC, without the physical presence of members at a common
venue. Hence, in compliance with the Circulars, the AGM of
the Company is being held through VC/OAVM. The
Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the
Companies Act, 2013  in respect of the Special Business under
item No.3 setout above is annexed here to.

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled
to appoint a proxy under section 105 of the Companies Act,
2013 to attend and vote on his/ her behalf and the proxy
need not be a member of the Company. Since the AGM is
being held in accordance with the Circulars through VC/
OAVM, the facility for appointment of proxies by the
members will not be available.

3. Participation of members through VC/OAVM will be
reckoned for the purpose of quorum for the AGM as per
section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act").

4. Members of the Company under the category of Institutional
Investors are encouraged to attend and vote at the AGM
through VC. Corporate members intending to authorize their
representatives to participate and vote at the meeting are
requested to send a certified copy of the Board resolution/
authorization letter to the Company or upload on the VC
portal/ e-voting portal.

5. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and
their shareholding, maintained under Section 170 of the Act,
and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the
directors are interested, maintained under Section 189 of the
Act, will be available electronically for inspection by the
members during the AGM. All documents referred to in the
Notice will also be available for electronic inspection without
any fee by the members from the date of circulation of this
Notice up to the date of AGM, i.e. wednesday, September
30, 2020. Members seeking to inspect such documents can
send an email to bidu.dash@ortelgroup.com or contact on
83840-20685/97775-88074 during the office hour.

6. In compliance with Section 108 of the Act, read with the
corresponding rules, and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
("the Listing Regulations"), the Company has provided a
facility to its members to exercise their votes electronically
through the electronic voting ("e-voting") facility provided by
the KFin Technologies Pvt. Ltd., through its e-voting platform
https://evoting.kfintech.com Members who have cast their
votes by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may participate
in the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their votes again.
The manner of voting remotely by members holding shares in
dematerialized mode, physical mode and for members who

have not registered their email addresses is provided in the
instructions for e-voting section which forms part of this
Notice. The Resolution Professional has appointed Ms.
Pratima Agarwal of Pratima Agarwal & Associates,
Practicing Company Secretaries (ACS No. 31726, COP No.
22763), as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting in a fair
and transparent manner.

7. The remote e-voting period commences on Friday, September
25, 2020 (9:00 A.M. IST) and ends on Tuesday, September
29, 2020 (5:00 P.M. IST). During this period, members holding
share either in physical or dematerialized form, as on cut-off
date, i.e. as on Wednesday, September 23, 2020 may cast
their votes electronically. The e-voting module will be disabled
by KFin Technologies Pvt. Ltd. for voting thereafter. A member
will not be allowed to vote again on any resolution on which
vote has already been cast. The voting rights of members
shall be proportionate to their share of the paid-up equity
share capital of the Company as on the cut off date, i.e. as on
Wednesday, September 23, 2020.

8. In case of joint holders attending the meeting, the Member
whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names
as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled
to vote.

9. The facility for voting during the AGM will also be made
available. Members present in the AGM through VC and who
have not cast their vote on the resolutions through remote e-
voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be
eligible to vote through the e-voting system during the AGM.

10. A person who has acquired the shares and has become a
Member of the Company after the despatch of the Notice
of the AGM and prior to the Cut Off Date i.e. Wednesday,
September 23, 2020, shall be entitled to exercise his/her
vote electronically i.e. remote e-voting by following the
procedure mentioned in this part and may obtain the login
ID and password by sending a email to RTA's website at
evoting@karvy.com or may call RTA's toll free number
1800-3454-001. However, if he/she is already registered
with KFin Technologies Pvt. Ltd. for remote e-voting then
he/she can use his / her existing user ID and password for
casting the vote.

11. In compliance with the Circulars, the Annual Report 2019-
20, the Notice of the 25th AGM, and instructions for e-
voting are being sent only through electronic mode to those
members whose email addresses are registered with the
Company / depository participant(s).

12. We urge members to support our commitment to
environmental protection by choosing to receive the
Company's Communication through email. Members holding
shares in demat mode, who have not registered their email
addresses are requested to register their email addresses with
their respective depository participants,  and members
holding shares in physical mode are requested to update
their email addresses with the Company's RTA, KFin
Technologies Private Limited at einward.ris@kfintech.com to

mailto:bidu.dash@ortelgroup.com
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receive copies of the Annual Report 2019-20 in electronic
mode. To facilitate such shareholders to receive this notice
electronically and cast their vote electronically, the Company
has made special arrangement with its RTA for registration
of email address in terms of the aforesaid MCA Circulars &
SEBI Circular. Members may follow the process detailed below
for registration of email ID to obtain the Annual Report, user
ID / password for e-voting.

Members can contact the Company's RTA for assistance in this
regard at following address:

M/s KFin Technologies Private Limited (formerly known as Karvy
Fintech Private Limited)
Unit: Ortel Communications Limited (Under CIRP)
Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli, Financial District,
Nanakramguda, Hyderabad - 500 032
Toll free no.: 1800-3454-001
Email: einward.ris@kfintech.com

17. Securities of listed companies would be transferred in
dematerialised form only, effective from April 01, 2019. In
view of the same members holding shares in physical form
are requested to consider converting their holdings to
dematerialized form to eliminate all risks associated with
physical shares and for ease of portfolio management.

18. As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act, the facility for
making nomination is available for the Members in respect of
the shares held by them. Members who have not yet registered
their nomination are requested to register the same by
submitting Form No. SH-13 and for cancellation/variation
in nomination in the prescribed Form SH-14.The form can be
downloaded from the Company's website at https://www.
ortelcom.com. Members are requested to submit these details
to their DP in case the shares are held by them in electronic
form, and to the RTA, KFin Technologies Private Limited, in
case the shares are held in physical form.

19. The Scrutinizer will submit his report to the Chairman of the
Company ('the Chairman') or to any other person authorized
by the Chairman after the completion of the scrutiny of the e-
voting (votes casted during the AGM and votes casted
through remote e-voting), not later than 48 hours from the
conclusion of the AGM. The result declared along with the
Scrutinizer's report shall be communicated to the stock
exchanges and RTA and will also be displayed on the
Company's website: www.ortelcom.com.

20. Since the AGM will be held through VC in accordance with
the MCA/SEBI Circulars, the route map (as required under
Secretarial Standard-02 (SS-02)), proxy form and attendance
slip are not attached to this Notice.

21. For ease of conduct, the Company is pleased to provide two
way video conferencing facility to the Members who would
like to express their views/ ask questions at the AGM. The
Members may register themselves atleast seven (7) days in
advance as a speaker by sending their request along with
questions from their registered email address mentioning their
name, DP ID and Client ID/ folio number, PAN, mobile
number at mail ID: bidu.dash@ortelgroup.com Those
members who have registered themselves as a speaker will
only be allowed to express their views/ ask questions at the
AGM. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number
of speakers depending on the availability of time for the
AGM. Members who do not wish to speak during the AGM
but have queries regarding financial statements or other

Type of Holder Registering Email Address
Physical Send a request to the RTA of the Company, KFin

Technologies Private Limited at einward.ris@
kfintech.com providing Folio No., Name of
member, scanned copyof the share certificate (front
and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of
PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy
of Aadhar card) for registering email address.

Demat Please contact your DP and register your email
address in your demat account, as per the process
advised by your DP

Process to be followed

13. In support of the "Green Initiative" announced by the
Government of India and in view of the MCA Circulars &
SEBI Circular and on account of threat posed by COVID-19
pandemic situation, a copy of the Annual Report and this
Notice, inter alia indicating the process and manner of remote
e-voting, are being sent only through electronic mail to the
members, and to all other persons so entitled and express
our inability to dispatch hard copy of the same to the members
of the Company. The Notice of 25th AGM of the Company
and copy of Annual Report 2019-20 are also available on the
Company's website http://www.ortelcom.com and on the
website of BSE Limited at https://www. bseindia.com,
National Stock Exchange India Limited at https://
www.nseindia.com and also on the website of RTA at https:/
/evoting.karvy.com

14. In terms of the provisions of Section 152 of the Act, Ms.Jagi
Mangat Panda, Managing Director, retire by rotation at the
Meeting. Save and except the above, none of the other
Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/their
relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially
or otherwise, in the Ordinary Business set out under Item
No.2 of the Notice.

15. Additional information, pursuant to Regulation 36 (3) of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, and Secretarial Standard on General
Meetings, in respect of the directors seeking appointment /
reappointment at the AGM, forms part of this Notice.

16. SEBI has mandated the submission of the Permanent Account
Number (PAN) and bank details by every participant in the
securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form
are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their
depository participant(s). Members holding shares in physical
form are required to submit their PAN details to the
Company's RTA

mailto:einward.ris@kfintech.com
https://www.
http://www.ortelcom.com.
mailto:bidu.dash@ortelgroup.com
http://www.ortelcom.com
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matters may send their queries seven (7) days before the
AGM mentioning their name, DP ID and Client ID/ folio
number,  PAN, mobile number at mail ID:
bidu.dash@ortelgroup.com. These queries will be replied by
the Company suitably by email.

22. Members can login and join the meeting 30 minutes prior to
the scheduled time i.e. 11:00 a.m. (IST) of the meeting and
the window shall be kept open till the expiry of 30 minutes
after the scheduled time i.e. 12:00 Noon (IST).

23. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 91 of the Companies
Act, 2013, the Register of Members and the Share Transfer
Books of the Company will remain close for a period of seven
days from Wednesday, 23rd September, 2020 to Wednesday,
30th September, 2020 (both days inclusive) for the purpose
of Annual General Meeting

24. Members holding shares in dematerialized form are requested
to intimate all changes pertaining to their email addresses,
nominations, power of attorney, change of address/name
etc to their Depository Participant (DP). Any changes effected
by the DP will be automatically reflected in the record
maintained by the Depositories.

25. Trading in the shares of the Company can be done in
dematerialized form only. Dematerialization would facilitate
paperless trading through state-of-the-art technology, quick
transfer of corporate benefits to members and avoid inherent
problems of bad deliveries, loss in postal transit, theft and
mutilation of share certificate and will not attract any stamp
duty. Hence, we request all those members who have still not
dematerialized their shares to get their shares dematerialized
at the earliest.

Procedure for Joining the AGM through VC/OAVM:

26. The Company will provide VC / OAVM facility to its
Members for participating at the AGM.

(a) Members will be able to attend the AGM through VC / OAVM
or view the live webcast at https://emeetings.kfintech.com
by using their e-voting login credentials.

Members are requested to follow the procedure given below:

i. Launch internet browser (chrome/Firefox/safari) by typing
the URL: https://emeetings.kfintech.com

ii. Enter the login credentials (i.e., User ID and password for
e-voting).

iii. After logging in, click on "Video Conference" option.

iv. Then click on camera icon appearing against AGM event of
Ortel Communications Limited, to attend the Meeting.

(b) Members who do not have User ID and Password for e-
voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may
retrieve the same by following the procedure given in the E-
voting instructions.

(c) Members who would like to express their views or ask
questions during the AGM may register them selves by logging
on to https://emeetings. kintech.com and clicking on the
'Speaker Registration'option available on the screen after log
in. The Speaker Registration will be open during Monday,
21 September 2020 to Monday, 28 September 2020. Only
those members who are registered will be allowed to express
their views or ask questions. The Company reserves the right
to restrict the number of questions and number of speakers,
depending upon availability of time as appropriate for smooth
conduct of the AGM.

(d) As per the MCA Circular up to 1000 members will be able
tojoin the e-AGM on a first-come-first-served basis. However,
this restriction shall not apply to large Shareholders (Share
holdersholding 2% or more share holding), Promoters,
Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel,
the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and Stake holders Relationship
Committee, Auditors etc.

(e) Facility to join the meeting shall be opened 30 minutes before
the scheduled time of the AGM and shall be kept open through
out the proceedings of the AGM.

(f) Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops
with Google Chrome for better experience.

(g) Further Members will be required to allow access to the
Camera, if any, and are requested to use Internet with good
speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

(h) Please note that participants using Mobile Devices or Tablets
or Laptops and are accessing the internet via "Mobile Hotspot"
may experience Audio/Video loss due to fluctuation in their
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable
Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid
glitches.

(i) Members, who need assistance before or during the AGM,
can contact KFintech on emeetings@fintech.com or call on
toll free numbers 1800-425-8998/1800-345-4001. Kindly
quote your name, DP ID-Client ID / Folio no. and E-voting
Event Number in all your communications.

27. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint
holder who is higher in the order of names will be entitled to
vote at the AGM.

28. Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be
reckoned for the purpose of quorum under Section 103 of
the Act.

29. Members of the Company under the category of Institutional
Investors are encouraged to attend and vote at the AGM.

Instructions for remote e-voting are as under:

a. Pursuant to the provisions of section 108 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014,

mailto:bidu.dash@ortelgroup.com.
https://emeetings.kfintech.com
https://emeetings.kfintech.com
https://emeetings.
mailto:emeetings@fintech.com
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as amended and regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, the Company
has provided to its members the facility to exercise their right
to vote on resolutions proposed to be passed in the Meeting
by electronic means. The members may cast their votes using
an electronic voting system only.

b. The Company has engaged the services of KFin Technologies
Private Limited ("RTA") as the Agency to provide remote e-
voting/ e-voting facility.

c. The Resolution Professional has appointed Ms. Pratima
Agarwal of Pratima Agarwal & Associates, Practicing
Company Secretaries (ACS No. 31726, COP No. 22763), as
the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting in a fair and
transparent manner.

d. Voting rights shall be reckoned on the paid up value of shares
registered in the name of Member/ Beneficial owner (in case
of electronic shareholding) as on the cut- off date i.e.
Wednesday, September 23, 2020.

e. A person whose name is recorded in the register of members
or in the register of beneficial owners maintained by the
depositories as on the cut-off date i .e. Wednesday,
September 23, 2020 only shall be entitled to avail facility of
remote e-voting/ e-voting.

The remote e-voting facility will be available during the
following period:

i Commencement of remote e-voting: from 9.00 a.m. (IST) on
Friday, September 25, 2020.

ii. End of remote e-voting: up to 5.00 p.m. (IST) on Tuesday,
September 29, 2020.

f. The remote e-voting will be blocked beyond the aforesaid
date and time and the e-voting module shall be disabled by
RTA upon expiry of the aforesaid period. The Scrutinizer,
after scrutinizing the votes cast through remote e-voting/ e-
voting, will, not later than 48 hours of conclusion of the Meeting
through VC/ OAVM, make a scrutinizer's report and submit
the same to the Chairman. The voting results declared along
with the scrutinizer's report shall be placed on the website of
the Company www.ortelcom.com and the stock exchanges.
Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the resolutions
shall be deemed to be passed on the date of the AGM through
VC/ OAVM i.e. September 30, 2020.

g. Any person who becomes a member of the Company after
sending the Notice of the Meeting on their respective email
IDs and holding shares as on the cut-off date i.e., Wednesday,
September 23, 2020, may obtain the User ID and password
by sending email to RTA's website at evoting@karvy.com or
may call RTA's toll free number 1800-3454-001.

h. The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting
prior to the AGM may also attend/ participate in the AGM
through VC / OAVM but shall not be entitled to cast their
vote again.

i. The Members present in the AGM through VC / OAVM
facility and have not cast their vote on the Resolutions through
remote e-voting, and are otherwise not barred from doing so,
shall be eligible to vote through e-voting system during the
AGM.

Instructions for e-voting are explained below:

A . Members whose email IDs are registered with the
Company/ Depository Participant(s), will receive an
email from KFintech which will include details of E-
Vot ing Eve nt  Numbe r (EVEN) ,  USER ID a nd
password. They will have to follow the following
process:

i. Launch internet browser by typing the URL: https://
evoting.karvy.com.

ii. Enter the login credentials (i.e. User ID and password). In
case of physical folio, the User ID will be E-Voting Event
Number + Folio No. In case of Demat account, the User ID
will be your DP ID and Client ID. However, if you are
already registered with RTA for e-voting, you can use your
existing User ID and password for casting your vote. If
required, please visit https:// evoting.karvy.com or
contact toll free number 1800-3454-001 for your existing
password.

iii. After entering these details appropriately,  click on
"LOGIN". You will now reach password change Menu
wherein you are required to mandatorily change your
password. The new password shall comprise minimum 8
characters with at least one upper case (A-Z), one lower
case (a- z), one numeric (0-9) and a special character (@,
#, $, etc.). The system will prompt you to change your
password and update your contact details like mobile
number, email address, etc. on first login. You may also
enter a secret question and answer of your choice to retrieve
your password in case you forget it. It is strongly
recommended that you do not share your password with
any other person and that you take utmost care to keep
your password confidential.

iv. You need to login again with the new credentials.

v. On successful login, the system will prompt you to select
the E-Voting Event Number for Ortel Communications
Limited. On the voting page enter the number of shares
(which represents the number of votes) as on the cut- off
date under "FOR/ AGAINST" or alternatively, you may
partially enter any number in "FOR" and partially in
"AGAINST" but the total number in "FOR/ AGAINST"
taken together should not exceed your total shareholding
as on the cut- off date. You may also choose the option
"ABSTAIN" and the shares held will not be counted
under either head.

vi. Members holding shares under multiple folios/ demat
accounts shall choose the voting process separately for each
of the folios / demat accounts.

http://www.ortelcom.com
mailto:evoting@karvy.com
https://
https://
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vii. Voting has to be done for each item of the Notice separately.
In case you do not desire to cast your vote on any specific
item it will be treated as abstained.

viii. You may then cast your vote by selecting an appropriate
option and click on "Submit".

ix. A confirmation box will be displayed. Click "OK" to confirm
else "CANCEL" to modify.

x. Once you confirm, you will not be allowed to modify your
vote. During the voting period, members can login any
number of times till they have voted on the Resolution(s).

xi. For any assistance, kindly contact the toll free number 1800-
3454-001.

B. Members whose email IDs are not registered with the
Company/Depository Participant(s), and consequently the
Annual Report, Notice of AGM and e-voting instructions
cannot be serviced will have to follow the following
process:

i. Members who have not registered their email address and
in consequence the Annual Report, Notice of AGM and e-
voting instructions cannot be serviced, may temporarily
get their email address and mobile number provided with
the RTA, by a ccessing the l ink:  https://
karisma.kfintech.com/emailreg. Members are requested to
follow the process as guided to capture the email address
and mobile number for sending the soft copy of the notice
and e-voting instructions along with the User ID and
Password. In case of any queries, member may write to
einward.ris@kfintech.com.

ii. Alternatively, member may send an e-mail request at the
email id einward.ris@kfintech.com along with scanned
copy of the signed copy of the request letter providing
the email address, mobile number, self-attested PAN
copy and Client Master copy in case of electronic folio
and copy of share certificate in case of physical folio for
sending the Annual report, Notice of AGM and the e-
voting instructions.

iii. After receiving the e-voting instructions, please follow all
steps mentioned in Point (A) above to cast your vote by
electronic means.

C. E-voting during AGM:

Only those Members,  who will be present a t the AGM
including through VC/ OAVM and have not cast their vote
through remote e-Voting are eligible to vote through e-
Voting in the AGM. However, members who have voted
through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM.
A Member can opt for only single mode of voting i.e. through
Remote e-voting or voting during AGM. If a Member casts
votes by both modes, then voting done through Remote e-
voting shall prevail and vote during the AGM shall be treated
as invalid.

In case of any query and/or grievance, in respect of voting by
electronic means, Members may refer to the Help & Frequently
Asked Questions (FAQs) and E-voting user manual available
at the download section of https://evoting.karvy.com (RTA's
Website) or call RTA's toll free No. 1800-3454-001 for any
further clarifications.

Srigopal Choudhary
Resolution Professional

For Ortel Communications Limited (under CIRP)
Address - Flat 7J, Tower -3, South City

375 P.A.S. Road, Kolkata - 700068
Registration No- IBBI/IPA-001/IPP-01238/2018-19/11893

Date: July 31, 2020
Place: Kolkata

Registered Office:
Ortel Communications Ltd (under CIRP)
CIN:L74899DL1995PLC069353
B-7/122A, Safdarjung Enclave
New Delhi-110029
Phone: 011-46868800; 011-46868803
E-mail: bidu.dash@ortelgroup.com
Website: www.ortelcom.com

mailto:einward.ris@kfintech.com.
mailto:einward.ris@kfintech.com
https://evoting.karvy.com
mailto:bidu.dash@ortelgroup.com
http://www.ortelcom.com
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Explanatory Statement
(Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013)

As required by section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act), the
following Explanatory Statement pursuant to Companies Act, 2013,
(hereinafter referred to as 'the Said Act') sets out all the material
facts relating to the proposed Special Business.
Item No.3:
The Resolution Professional of the Company has approved the
reappointment of M/s Niran & Co., Cost Accountants, Bhubaneswar,
Odisha as the Cost Auditor of the Company for the Financial Year
2020-21 with same remuneration of Rs.70,000/- per annum plus

out of pocket expenses if any and applicable tax. However, the said
remuneration shall be subject to ratification by shareholders in the
ensuing Annual General Meeting. Members may deliberate and
approve the same as Ordinary Resolution.
The Resolution Professional recommends the Ordinary Resolution
for your approval.
None of the Directors/Key Managerial Personnel and Resolution
Professional of the Company/their relatives is, in any way, concerned
or interested, financially or otherwise, in the above resolution

Srigopal Choudhary
Resolution Professional

For Ortel Communications Limited (under CIRP)
Address - Flat 7J, Tower -3, South City

375 P.A.S. Road, Kolkata - 700068
Registration No- IBBI/IPA-001/IPP-01238/2018-19/11893

Date: July 31, 2020
Place: Kolkata

Registered Office:
Ortel Communications Ltd (under CIRP)
CIN:L74899DL1995PLC069353
B-7/122A, Safdarjung Enclave
New Delhi-110029
Phone: 011-46868800; 011-46868803
E-mail: bidu.dash@ortelgroup.com
Website: www.ortelcom.com

mailto:bidu.dash@ortelgroup.com
http://www.ortelcom.com
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Details of director proposed for re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting
(Pursuant to Regulation 36 (3) of Listing Regulation)

Name of the Director Ms. Jagi Mangat Panda

Date of Birth 06.11.1966

Date of Appointment 05.10.1995

Nature of his expertise in specific functional area She is the founder and Managing Director of the Company. She is also the
founder and Director of Odisha Television Limited. She has been awarded
and recognized as the "Young Global Leader at the World Economic Forum in
2008". She is the Vice-Chairperson of CII's eastern region council for 2017-18
and she was also the Chairperson of CII Odisha State Council for 2 years
(2001-02, 2002-03). She holds a Bachlors' degree in Biology and Chemistry
from Osmania University and also has participated in the middle
management programme of the three-tire programme for management
development at the Indian Institute of Management, Ahmedabad. She has
more than 20 years in the media and broadcasting industry.

Qualification She holds a Bachelor's degree in Biology and Chemistry from Osmania
University and also has participated in the middle management programme
of the three-tire programme for management development at the Indian
Institute of Management, Ahmedabad.

Disclosure of relationships between Directors inter-se There is no inter-se relationship between Directors.

Directorship in other Listed

Companies JM Financial Limited

Member/Chairman of Committee of the Board of the Listed Companies

1. Member of Audit Committee of Ortel Communications Limited

2. Member of CSR Committee of Ortel Communications Limited

3. Chairperson of Finance Committee of Ortel Communications Limited

4. Chairperson of Risk Management Committee of Ortel Communications
Limited

5. Member of Corporate Restructuring Committee of Ortel
Communications Limited

6. Member of Share Allotment Committee of Ortel Communications
Limited

Number of shares held in the Company 310448 (0.94%) no. of equity shares
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Ortel Communications Limited (under CIRP)
Registered Office: B7/122A, Safdarjung Enclave, New Delhi - 110029

CIN: L74899DL1995PLC069353, Web:www.ortelcom.com
Email: bidu.dash@ortelgroup.com, Phone: 011-46868800

E-COMMUNICATION

Dear Members,

As you all are aware that, as per the Section 101 and Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules issued
thereunder, Companies can serve all types of communications through electronic mode to those shareholders who have
registered their email address either with the Company or with the Depositories or with Registrar and Share Transfer Agent.

The objective of such initiative is to reduce paper consumption to a great extent by allowing shareholders to contribute
towards a better and greener environment.

We therefore invite all our members to contribute to such a noble cause of greener initiative by filling up the below form to
receive communication from the company in electronic mode.

Please note that, as a member of the Company, you will be entitled to receive all such communications in physical form upon
request.

Sincerely yours,

Sd/-

Srigopal Choudhary
Resolution Professional
For Ortel Communications Limited (under CIRP)
Address - Flat 7J Tower-3 South City
375 P.A.S. Road Kolkata -700068
Registration No- IBBI/IPA-001/IPP-01238/2018-19/11893

E-COMMUNICATION REGISTRATION FORM

Folio No/ DP ID No. and Client Id No.:

_________________________________________________________________________________

Name of the first registered holder   :

_________________________________________________________________________________

Name of the Joint holder(s)              :

_________________________________________________________________________________

Registered address                           :

_________________________________________________________________________________

Email ID (To be registered)              :

_________________________________________________________________________________

I/We Shareholder(s) of Ortel Communications Limited agree to receive communication from the Company in electronic
mode. Please register my/our above e-mail id in your records for sending all communications in electronic form.

Date:                 Signature

Note:  Shareholder(s) are requested to keep the Company informed as and when there is any change in the e-mail
address.

mailto:bidu.dash@ortelgroup.com,
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Directors' Report

Dear Members,

Your Directors are hereby pleased to present the 25th Annual
Report and the Audited Financial Statements of the Company
for the financial year ended 31st March, 2020.

CONTINUATION OF CORPORATE INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION
PROCESS (CIRP)

Pursuant to the orders of Hon'ble National Company Law
Tribunal (NCLT), New Delhi Bench, in the matter of Ortel
Communications Limited ('the Company') based on the
application filed by Sony Pictures Networks India Pvt. Ltd.,
an operational creditor of the Company, Corporate
Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) has been initiated in
respect of Ortel Communications Limited ("the Company")
under the provisions of Section 9 of the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 ("the Code") with effect from 27th
November, 2018. Mr. Anil Bhatia (Reg. No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-
P00587/2017-18/11027) was appointed as Interim Resolution
Professional ('IRP') to carry on the functions of an IRP, as
defined under the provisions of the IBC, until replaced by
the Resolution Professional ('RP'). The Committee of
Creditors ('CoC') in its meeting held on 07th January, 2019
had passed a resolution proposing to replace the IRP and
appoint Mr. Srigopal Choudhary (Reg.No.IBBI/IPA-001/IP-
P01238/2018-2019/11893) as the RP which was confirmed by
NCLT vide its order dated 1st February, 2019 to carry out
the activities relating to CIRP as per the rules, regulations
and guidelines prescribed by the Code.

Pursuant to the order, the management of affairs and powers
of Board of Directors of the Company are now vested with
the Resolution Professional ("RP") who is appointed by the
Committee of Creditors ("CoC").

The NCLT has also declared a moratorium for the Corporate
Debtor (Ortel) as per Section 14 of IBC, 2016 on the

Insolvency Commencement date till the CIRP process is over.
During the CIRP, resolution plans ("Resolution Plan") was
received by the Resolution Professional and the Resolution
Plan was placed before the COC for approval and the
approved Resolution Plan was filed with the Hon'ble NCLT,
New Delhi on 26th August, 2019 for approval under Section
31 of the Code. The application filed by the Resolution
Professional for approval of Resolution Plan is currently
pending adjudication before the Adjudicating Authority. In
terms of Section 25 of the Code, the Company is continuing
to operate as a going concern. where at any time during
the corporate insolvency resolution process period, if the
Adjudicating Authority approves the resolution plan under
sub-section (1) of section 31 or passes an order for
liquidation of corporate debtor under section 33, the
moratorium shall cease to have effect from the date of
such approval or liquidation order, as the case may be.

As per Section 17 of the Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code,
from the date of appointment of the Resolution Professional:

(a) The management of the affairs of the company shall vest
in the Resolution Professional.

(b) The powers of the Board of Directors of the company
shall stand suspended and be exercised by the Resolution
Professional.

(c) The officers and managers of the company shall report
to the Resolution Professional and provide access to
such documents and records of the company as may be
required by the Resolution Professional.

(d) The financial institutions maintaining accounts of the
company shall act on the instructions of the Resolution
Professional in relating to such accounts furnish all
information relating to the company available with them
to the Resolution Professional.
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PERFORMANCE REVIEW

On a standalone basis, the total revenue was Rs. 89.33 Cr
compared to the previous year's total revenue of Rs.114.76
Cr, EBITDA stood at Rs.-5.81Cr compared to Rs.1.29 Cr of
corresponding previous financial year, Earning Before Tax
(EBT) for the period is Rs.(34.85)Cr as compared to
Rs.(51.23)Cr of last fiscal, Earning After Tax (EAT) stood at
Rs.(34.85) Cr as compared to Rs.(51.23) Cr of last fiscal and
EPS stood at Rs.(10.57) as compared to Rs.(15.70)  of last
financial year.

INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

As per the requirements of notification dated 16th February,
2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA),
Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Company for the Financial Year 2019-20 have been prepared
as per Ind AS.

GLOBAL HEALTH PANDEMIC FROM COVID-19

The World Health Organization declared a global pandemic
of the Novel Coronavirus disease (COVID-19) on February
11, 2020. In enforcing social distancing to contain the spread
of the disease, our corporate office and all location offices
have been operating with minimal staff for extended periods
of time. To effectively respond to and manage our operations
through this crisis, the Company has opted online
collections from customers. In keeping with its employee-
safety first approach, the Company quickly instituted
measures to trace all employees and be assured of their
well-being and switch to work from home model for some
of the employees. Proactive preparations were done in our
work locations during this transition to ensure our offices
were safe. We want to assure you that even in these
uncertain times, your Company is living up to its commitment
of providing seamless service to its customers while taking
adequate measures to mitigate risks and take care of its
employees, assets and communities. This response has
reinforced customer confidence in Ortel and many of them
have expressed their appreciation and gratitude for keeping
their businesses running under most challenging conditions.

BUSINESS/OPERATIONAL REVIEW

The year 2019-20 has been a challenging year for the
Company due to an extremely severe cyclonic storm Fani
hit the Odisha coast on 3rd May, 2019. This cyclone has
damaged our network, premises, equipment's, dish antenna's,
Teleport, our corporate office internal fixtures, store room
and UPS room roofs, the main gate etc. and also caused
severe damages to all our facilities in the coastal region
and partial damages in peripheral areas. It took 2 to 3 months
to restored our network, as a result of which all customers
in Odisha (irrespective of whether the local area was
affected by Cyclone or not) were without signal. Also the
World Health Organization declared a global pandemic of
the novel coronavirus disease (COVID-19) on February 11,
2020. which affect our collections, sales etc.
Notwithstanding this, your company has demonstrated
degrowth in revenues from cable TV business on a year-on-
year basis (Y-o-Y) during the year under review.

The Management reviewed the details of receivables and
took a firm step by creating provision of Rs.72.42 million
against doubtful receivables, declaring bad debts of
Rs.4.52million and Company has issued credit notes of
Rs.174.47 million during the year under review. This amount
is primarily on account of disruption of services due to
Cyclone Fani and acquisition of local operators.

SEGMENT REVENUE CONTRIBUTION

The contribution of each income stream to the total revenue
is as below:

  Sl.No.   Income stream         Contribution(%ge)

2019-20 2018-19

1 CableTVservices 74% 64%

2 DataServices 6% 10%

3 Infra-structureleasing 9% 8%

4 Carriagefees 3% 15%

5 Others 8% 3%

        Total 100% 100%
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SEGMENT WISE ANALYSIS

i) CABLE TV SERVICE

During the year under review, your company continued to
be a dominant player in the Cable TV market in Odisha and
has continued to consolidate its position in the states of
Andhra Pradesh and Telangana.

As on 31.03.2020, the total Cable TV customer base is
3,92,698(Previous Year: 4,29,290), which is a  de-growth of
9% over previous year.

With internationally used "Last Mile" model implemented by
your Company, digitization of entire CATV subscribers and
completion of integration process in the newly acquired
locations, the Company is hopeful of continuing growth in
the customer base in the future.

In the previous year, TRAI implemented the New Tariff Order
(NTO) from 1st February, 2019. The NTO is set to dramatically
change the distribution landscape in India. It will bring in
far greater transparency and overall it will be good for all
stakeholders, leading to fair share allocation of subscription
revenues within the stakeholders.

ii) BROADBAND SERVICES OPERATION

The total Broadband Subscriber Base as on 31st March 2020
stood at 19,066 in comparison to previous year 17,329.
Company has witnessed a growth of over 10% over last year.
Limited Growth is due to high competition in retail segment.
Focus has been on Unlimited Plans; 5 Mbps Unlimited Plans
at Rs 199/- Per Month & 10Mbps Plans at Rs 399/- Per Month
which will counter the plans launched by the Telecom players
in the 4G and LTE space. In addition to this, the DOCSIS 3.0
plans will have speeds up to 100 Mbps with One Terabyte of
usage option.However, your Company is hopeful of increasing
the growth trend of customer base in the coming years with
the launch of new competitive plans,higher data speed and
better technology including service.

To compete with the Telecom Players Company has started
FTTH Service with Minimum Speed of 25Mbps. & Maximum
Speed upto 250Mbps with Unlimited Uploads.With aggressive
ATL and BTL Marketing in place your company expects to
grow the Broadband / FTTH figures in the coming financial
year.

With the implementation of new technology, high speed
Data Service & Aggressive Marketing Plan, the Company is
well placed to cater to the growing demand.Considering
both cable TV and broadband together, your company has
achieved total RGU base of by the end of the current year
31st March 2020-411764  (Previous year 446619), a de-growth
of 45%. It is important to note here that in line with your
company's philosophy of operating on "Last Mile" Model,
90% company's RGUs are on its own 'last mile' network.

iii) INFRASTRUCTURELEASING

Over the last  few years, your Company is pursuing
infrastructure segment as another major revenue generating
stream by leasing out its own infrastructure to corporate
clients for their communication requirement and has leased
out to various corporates a total of 1164.20 kms (Previous
Year:1374 kms) as on 31 March, 2020, a reduction of  15%
over the previous year.

HOLDING, SUBSIDIARIES & ASSOCIATES

The Company has one subsidiary as on March 31, 2020 which
was incorporated during the year 2018 to provide internet
services. There are no associates or joint venture companies
within the meaning of Section 2(6) of the Companies Act,
2013 ("Act"). There has been no material change in the nature
of the business of the subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Act, a
statement containing the salient features of financial
Statements of the Company's subsidiary in Form AOC-1 is
attached to the financial statements of the Company.

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the
Act, the financial statements of the Company, consolidated
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financial statements along with relevant documents and
separate audited financial statements in respect of
subsidiary, is available on the website of the Company http:/
/www.ortelcom.com/investor-relations.html.

In accordance with the provision of Section 129(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 8 of the Companies
(Accounts)Rules,2014, as amended,the Company has
prepared its consolidated financial statements including its
subsidiary company, which forms part of this report. The
financial position and performance of the subsidiary
company of the Company is annexed to this report.

Any shareholder interested in obtaining a physical copy of
the aforesaid financial statements may write to the Company
Secretary at the Registered Office of the Company.

Further, please note that the said financial statements will
also be available for inspection by the Members of the
Company at the Registered Office of the Company during
business hours from 10:00 A.M. to 6:00 P.M. on all working
days except Sundays and National Holidays.

DIVIDEND

Your company is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution
Process since 27th November, 2018 and has reported losses
for the year under review;no dividend has been
recommended by the Resolution Professional for the
financial year 2019-20.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

As no dividend is proposed due to losses, so no amount is
recommended to be transferred to General Reserve.

FIXED DEPOSITS

We have not accepted any fixed deposits, including from
the public, and, as such, no amount of principal or interest
was outstanding as of the Balance Sheet date.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year under report, there was no change in the
Authorized and Paid-up Share Capital of the Company. As
at 31st March, 2020 the Authorized Share Capital of the
Company was Rs.101 Crores. The Paid-up Share Capital of
the Company as on 31st March, 2020 was Rs.42,97,69,000
divided into Rs.32,97,69,000 Equity Share Capital and
Rs.10,00,00,000 Preference Share Capital and during the
year under report, your Company has not issued any shares
under any employee stock option schemes, sweat equity
shares or any equity shares with differential rights, as to
dividend, voting or otherwise. Further, the Company has
not bought back its own securities, during the year under
report.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY

During the year under review, there were no material
changes in the nature of the business of the Company.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In terms of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures
Requirements) Regulations 2015, Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Company prepared in accordance with
Accounting Standards issued by Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, are attached and forms part of the
Annual Report.

REVISION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT

There was no revision of the financial statements for the
year under review.

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN

An extract of annual return for the financial year ended on
31st March 2020 in Form MGT-9 pursuant to section 92(3) of
the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is attached as
Annexure-1 forming part of this Report.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

It was decided by the Resolution Professional in the 12th
meeting of the Committee of Creditors (CoC) held on
02.08.2019 to appoint M/s K. Prasad & Co. as statutory auditor
of the company for a period of 5 years from FY 2019-20 to
2023-24 subject to the approval of the same in the 24th
Annual General Meeting (AGM) was held in September, 2019.
The said decision was duly ratified by the CoC in the said
meeting. Accordingly the proposed resolution was placed
before the shareholders at the 24th AGM held on September
28, 2019 but not approved by the Members.Further Hon'ble
National Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi Bench in the
application filed by the Resolution Professional in CA No.
825/ C-III / ND / 2019 under Rule 11 of the NCLT Rules 2016
seeking for appointment of M/s K. Prasad & Co. as statutory
auditors of the company for a period of 5 years in place of
the existing auditors M/s Haribhakti & Co., LLP, Chartered
Accountants, Kolkata who has completed its first term of 5
years as permitted under the said section.

In view of the above applications filed and prayers sought
by the Resolution Professional, Hon'ble NCLT, vide order
dated 02.12.2019 has confirmed the appointment of M/s K.
Prasad & Co., Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditors
of the Company for a period of five years from Financial
Year 2019-20 to 2023-24 that means from the conclusion of
the 24th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the
29th Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2024.
The first year of audit was of the financial statements for
the year ending 31st March, 2020. The requirement for the
annual ratification of auditors' appointment at the AGM has
been omitted pursuant to Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017
notified on May 7, 2018.

OBSERVATIONS OF THE AUDITORS

Disclaimers of the auditors on the annual accounts of the

http://www.ortelcom.com/investor-relations.html.
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Company forms part of the auditor's report. The disclaimers
made in their report when read together with the relevant
notes to the accounts are self-explanatory.

The statutory auditors have not reported any incident of
fraud to the Resolution Professional of the Company in the
year under review.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

Pursuant to the provisions of section 179 and 204 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, M/
s Kumar Suresh & Associates, Gurugram, a firm of practicing
company secretaries was appointed as secretarial auditor
to conduct the secretarial audit of the Company for the
financial year ended 2019-20.

CS Suresh Kumar Yadav, secretarial auditor has given the
secretarial audit report in Form No. MR-3 and the same has
been annexed to the Board's Report and marked as
Annexure-2. The secretarial audit report does not contain
any qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer
and is self-explanatory.

The Resolution Professional has also reappointed M/s Kumar
Suresh & Associates, Gurugram, as Secretarial Auditor for
FY 2020-21 who is eligible for such reappointment to
conduct Secretarial Audit of your Company.

COST AUDITOR

Terms of M/s NIRAN & CO., Practicing Cost Accountants,
Bhubaneswar,Odisha who were reappointed as Cost Auditor
of the Company for Financial Year 2019-20 expired on 31st
March, 2020.The Resolution Professional has approved their
reappointment for FY 2020-21 and their remuneration shall
be ratified by the members in the ensuing Annual General
meeting.

INTERNAL AUDITOR

Terms of M/s SBN & Associates, Chartered Accountants,
Cuttack, Odisha who were appointed as Internal Auditor of
the Company for Financial Year 2019-20 expired on 31st
March,2020.The Resolution Professional has approved their
reappointment for financial year 2020-21 with same terms
and conditions.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Resolution Professional state that applicable Secretarial
Standards,i.e. SS-1 and SS-2, relating to meetings including
General Meetings have been duly followed by the Company.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013, the Resolution Professional hereby state that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the
year ended March 31, 2020, the applicable accounting
standards read with requirements set out under

Schedule III to the Act have been followed and there
are no material departures from the same;

b) the Resolution Professional has selected such
accounting policies and applied them consistently
and made judgment and estimates that they are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the company as at
March 31, 2020 and of the profit or loss of the
company for the year ended on that date;

c) the Resolution Professional has taken proper and
sufficient care  for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records  in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act for safeguarding the
assets of the company and preventing and detecting
fraud and other irregularities;

d) the Resolution Professional has prepared the annual
accounts on a going concern basis;

e) the Resolution Professional has laid down internal
financial controls to be followed by the company
and that such internal financial controls are adequate
and were operating effectively and

f) the Resolution Professional has devised proper
systems to ensure compliance with the provision so
fall applicable laws and that such systems were
adequate and operating effectively.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENT
SUNDER SECTION 186

Your Company has not given any loans or guarantee or made
any investments under Section 186 of the Companies Act,
2013.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS/ ADVANCES OR INVESTMENTS
OUTSTANDING DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Disclosure on particulars relating to loans advances and
investments covered under Section 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 outstanding during the financial year is disclosed
in note no 5, 6, 7 & 14 under Notes to the financial
statements provided in this Annual Report.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH
RELATED PARTIES

All contracts/arrangements/transactions with related
parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the Companies Act,
2013 were in the ordinary course of business and on an
arm's length basis and were reviewed and approved by the
Resolution Professional. During the year, the Company has
not entered into any contracts/arrangements/transactions
with related parties which could be considered material in
accordance with the Company's Policy on Materiality of
Related Party Transactions. All the transactions made on
arm's length basis are being reported in Form No.AOC-2 in
terms of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
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Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is annexed
as Annexure-3.The policy on dealing with Related Party
Transactions can be viewed at www.ortelcom.com.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD, COMMITTEES AND
INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS INCLUDING MANAGING DIRECTOR

As the Company is under CIRP, the powers of the Board of
Directors continue to remain suspended and the affairs of
the Company are being conducted by RP. Consequently, no
meeting of the Directors was held during the Financial Year
2019-20 for evaluation of Board, Committees and Individual
Directors.

BOARD EVALUATION

As the Company is under CIRP, the powers of the Board of
Directors continue to remain suspended and the affairs of
the Company are being conducted by RP. Consequently, no
meeting of the Directors was held during the Financial Year
2019-20 for such evaluation.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management has always been an integral part of the
corporate strategy which complements the organizational
capabilities with business opportunities, robust planning and
execution. The Company through a process of management
mechanism covering the risk mapping and trend analys is,risk
exposure, potential impact and risk mitigation practice,
manages the potential risks. A detailed regular exercise is
being carried out to identify, evaluate, manage and monitor
both business and non-business risks. A Risk Management
Committee of the Company periodically reviews the risks
and suggests steps to be taken to control and mitigate the
same.

More details on Risk Management indicating development
and implementation of Risk Management Policy including
identification of elements of risk and their mitigation are
covered in Management's Discussion and Analysis section,
which forms part of this Report.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Board has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy as stipulated
under Section 177(9) of the Act and SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations 2015 to report
the genuine concerns of the employees and Directors. The
whistle blower policy adopted by the Company is hosted
on Company's website at www.ortelcom.com.

DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

No Independent Directors have given declaration of their
independence in terms of Section 149(7) of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations And Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
since the powers of the Board of Directors have been
suspended w.e.f. 27.11.2018 pursuant to the orders dated
27.11.2018 of Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT)

passed under Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code.

MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The powers of the Board of Directors continue to be
suspended and no Board/Committee meetings were held
during the Financial Year under report as the Company is
under CIRP. The powers of board of directors are being
exercised by the Resolution Professional (RP) in accordance
with Sections 17 and 23 of the Insolvency Code from 27th
November, 2018. Further details are given in the Corporate
Governance Report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has constituted various committees viz. Audit
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Share Allotment
committee, Finance Committee, Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee and Risk Management Committee
etc., to enable better management of the affairs of the
Company, with terms of reference in line with provisions of
Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI LODR Regulations.

Since the powers of the Board of Directors has been
suspended w.e.f. 27.11.2018 pursuant to the orders dated
27.11.2018 of Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT),
the powers of various committees have also been suspended
w.e.f. the same date and no meetings have since been
conducted.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING
THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

There were no changes in the share capital of the Company
during the year under review and there were no significant
material changes and commitments, affecting the financial
position of the Company which has occurred between the
end of the Financial Year of the Company to which the
Financial Statement relate and the date of its report.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME

During the year under review, the Company has not allotted
Equity Shares toany employeesoftheCompany under Ortel
Employee Stock Option Scheme, 2015 ("ESOS 2015") and as
per ESOS 2015, an Ortel Employee Welfare Trust was
executed by the Company to acquire shares of the Company
from secondary market for offering them to the eligible
employees in future as per the direction of Nomination &
Remuneration Committee of the Board. During the year
under review, the Trust has not acquired any equity shares
of the Company from the secondary market. The details of
disclosure form part of the Corporate Governance.

DIRECTORS

The changes in the Board of Directors upto 27.11.2018 have
already been covered in the 24th Annual Report. During
the year under review, no other changes took place in the
composition of the Board of Directors of the Company. The

http://www.ortelcom.com.
http://www.ortelcom.com.
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composition of the Board of Directors of the Company is in
compliance with the applicable norms

RETIREMENT BY ROTATION

Pursuant to Section 149(13) of the Companies Act, 2013,
the independent directors are not liable to retire by
rotation. Further Section 152 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013
stipulates that 2/3rd of the total number of directors of
the public company should be liable to retire by rotation
and out of such directors, 1/3rd should retire by rotation
at every Annual General Meeting of the company.

To meet the requirement of provisions of Section 152 (6) of
the Companies Act, 2013 and Article 149, 150, 151 and 152
of the Article of Association, the Managing Director or the
whole time Director shall not, while he/she continues to
hold that office, be subject to retirement by rotation under
Article 151 but he/she shall be subject to the provision of
any contract between him/her and the Company be subject
to the same provisions as to the resignation and removal as
the other Directors of the Company and he/she shall ipso
facto and immediately cease to be a Managing Director or
Whole-time Director if he/she ceases to hold  the office of
Director for any cause, provided that, if at any time the
number of Directors (including the managing Director or
Whole-time Director) as are not subject to retirement by
rotation shall exceed one-third of the total) number of the
Directors for the time being then such of the Managing
Director or Whole-time Director or two or more of them as
the Directors may from time to time determine shall be
liable to retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Article 151 to the intent that the number of Directors not
liable to retirement by rotation shall not exceed one-third
of the total number of Directors for the time being.
However, he/she shall be counted in determining the
number of Directors to retire (save as otherwise provided
in a contract in terms of provisions of the Act or Rules
made hereunder  or in a resolution passed by Board or
Shareholders of the Company).

In view of the above Ms. JagiMangat Panda, Managing
Director of the Company is retiring at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting. Your Resolution Professionalhave
recommended her reappointment in the ensuing AGM.

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE

As the Company is under CIRP, the powers of the Board of
Directors continue to be suspended and are being exercised
by the Resolution Professional (RP) in accordance with
Sections 17 and 23 of the Insolvency Code from 27th
November, 2018, hence, no Independent Directors of the
Company have given their respective declarations stating
that they meet the criteria prescribed for independence
under the applicable laws and in the opinion of the Board,
all the independent Directors of the Company meet the
said criteria.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the year under review, Mr. Bibhu Prasad Rath, CEO
of the Company has resigned from the post as CEO w.e.f.
5th March, 2020and no other changes took place in the
composition of the Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company.The details about the Whole-time Key Managerial
Personnel are given in the Corporate Governance Report
which forms part of the Annual Report.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS

Pursuant to the orders of Hon'ble National Company Law
Tribunal (NCLT), New Delhi Bench, Corporate Insolvency
Resolution Process (CIRP) has been initiated in respect of
Ortel Communications Limited ("the Company") under the
provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 ("the
Code") with effect from 27th November, 2018. Accordingly
the company is under moratorium period as per the IBC.

Besides the above, to the best of our knowledge, there
seems to have been no significant and material orders passed
by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going
concern status and the Company's operations. However,
members' attention is drawn to the statement on contingent
liabilities, commitments in the notes forming part of the
financial statements.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Information as per section 197(12) of the Act and Rule 5(1)
& 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rule, 2014 as amended, a statement
showing the names and other particulars of the employees
drawing remuneration in excess of the limits set out in the
said rules are provided as Annexure-4.

DISCLOSURE WITH RESPECT TO UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE
ACCOUNT

Pursuant to listing regulations details in respect of the shares
lying in the Ortel Communications Limited-Unclaimed
Suspense Account till 31st March 2020 are as under:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain the highest Standards
of Corporate Governance and adhere to the Corporate
Governance requirements set out by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The report on Corporate
Governance as stipulated under Schedule V of SEBI LODR
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Regulations, Management Discussion and Analysis, Certificate
regarding Compliance of conditions of Corporate
Governance and Certificate by CFO forms an integral part
of this Report as Annexures.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

As stipulated under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures
Requirements) Regulations 2015 the Report on Management
Discussion and Analysis is annexed to this report and forms
part of the Annual Report.

POLICY ON CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company has laid down a "Code of Conduct" for all
Board members and Senior Management Personnel. Pursuant
to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements)
Regulations 2015, the Declaration by the Resolution
Professional affirming the compliance with the Code of
Conduct is attached to the Report on Corporate
Governance.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO

Conservation of Energy is an ongoing process in the
Company's activities. The Company is a Multi System Operator
(MSO) and is carrying on business of, inter alia, providing
Cable TV and Broadband services along with other value
added services. Since this does not involve any
manufacturing activity, most of the Information required to
be provided under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are
nil / not applicable.

Further, your Company, being a service provider, requires
minimal energy consumption and Company takes all possible
measures to ensure optimal use of energy, avoid wastages
and conserve energy as far as possible.

Following are the energy conservation measures being taken
by Company over a period of time to ensure minimum energy
consumption and technology absorption:

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

1. The steps taken or impact or conservation of
energy

2. The steps taken by the company for utilizing
alternate sources of energy.

3. The capital investment on energy conservation
equipment.

" Conservation of RF, Optical, Electrical and fuel energy is being
accomplished by your company in economically responsible
and beneficial ways by using power efficient equipment,
broadband HFC network, provisioning system, ergonomics in
the cable layout, cleanest and state of art technologies.

" Increasing deeper fiber by using Broadband HFC network in
star structure has resulted less power consumption.

" Applying the strongest feasible energy efficiency standards
to network upto electronics, RF products and signal quality.
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO

The particulars of expenditure and earnings in foreign
currency are provided in notes to financial statements.

CERTIFICATIONS

Your company has been certified and recertified by Bureau
Veritas Certification (India) Pvt. Ltd. (BVQI) to confirm with
ISO 9001:2008 standardization for both cable and data services
for Bhubaneswar, Cuttack, Rourkela and Sambalpur
operational sites.

Your company has also received certification from BECIL
(TRAI appointed Certifying Agency) for its digital Encryption
and Subscriber Management System of digital services. Your
company is the first of its kind in India to receive such
certification.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies
Act ,  2013  t he Company has  const i t u ted the CSR
committee to formulate, implement and monitor the
CSR Policy of the Company. However as the Company
does not have average net profits for the three years
immediately preceding financial years, the Company
was not requi red to make any expenditure on CSR
activities during financial year 2019-20 as specified
un der  Sect i on  135 ( 5)  o f  t he  Act .  Hen ce  t he
i nformat i on  on  CSR  act iv i t i es  as requi red under
Section 135(5) of the Act  and Rule 8 of Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014,
has  no t  been p rovi ded  by  t he Company,  f o r the
financial year 2019-20.

1. The efforts made towards technology absorption.

2. The benefits derived like product improvement,
cost reduction, product development or import
substitution.

3. In case of imported technology (imported during
the last three years reckoned from the beginning
of the financial year):-

a. the details of technology imported;

b. the year of import;

c. whether the technology been fully absorbed;

d. if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has
not taken place,and the reasons thereof;

e. The expenditure incurred on Research and
Development

 Your company is one  of  the MSOs in  India  which  has
started Triple Play  services  over  Broadband  HFC
network. It has chosen best, economical and state of art
technologies.

 Your company uses Cable Modem Technology for high speed
Internet access. The Company is also using Metro Ethernet
("MEN") and Ethernet over Cable (EoC) technology which
engages different network topology for providing high speed
data service at a lower cost.

 Your company has also adopted digital video technology to
deliver qualitative video and audio using MPEG-2 and MPEG-
4 Technology. Your company has also started HD TV services
and offers HD channels   to its subscribers in select markets.

 Your Company has also introduced high speed broadband
technologies such as DOCSIS 3.0 to cater to subscribers who
have increased Video led Internet Consumption. HD video
content viewings as well as increased download speeds are
the main benefits of DOCSIS 3.0 technology. DOCSIS 3.0 allows
for a much higher throughput compared to the earlier
versions by using multi-channel bonding simultaneously for
download/upload. This technology has been widely used in
Europe and USA by leading ISPs.

 Your company is also using HFC architecture, which can easily
be converted or upgraded to FTTH. Your company is
currently undertaking trial with FTTH for pure data usage.
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INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

Internal Financial Controls are an integrated part of the
risk management process, addressing financial and financial
reporting risks. The Company has a well laid down, proper
and adequate internal control system, which ensures that
all assets are safeguarded and protected and that the
transactions are authorized, recorded and reported
correctly. The Internal Financial Controls with reference
to financial statements as designed and implemented by
the Company are adequate.

During the year under review, no material or serious
observation has been received from the Internal Auditors
of the Company for inefficiency or inadequacy of such
controls.

The Resolution Professional has appointed M/s SBN &
Associates, Chartered Accountants as the Internal Auditor
of the Company. The Internal Auditors independently
evaluate the adequacy of internal controls and concurrently
audit the majority of the transactions in value terms. During
the year, the Company continued to implement their
suggestions and recommendations to improve the control
environment.

The Company has also its own Internal Audit Department.
Internal Audit team under the guidance of head of Internal
Audit conduct various checks, audit and submit their report
to the management and is responsible for implementing
adequacy of internal control both in terms of financial and
operational control.

POLICY ON PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL OF
SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at
workplace and has adopted a Policy that aims to provide
protection to employees at the workplace and prevent and
redress complaints of sexual harassment and for matters
connected or incidental thereto, with the objective of
providing a safe working environment, where employees feel
secure.The Company has not received any complaint of
sexual harassment during the financial year 2019-20.

PERSONNEL & INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The Company enjoyed cordial relations with the employees
during the year under review and the Management
appreciates the employees of all cadres for their dedicated
services to the Company, and expects continued support,
higher level of productivity for achieving the targets set
for the future.

GENERAL

Your Resolution Professional state that no disclosure or
reporting is required in respect of the following matters as
there were no transactions on these items during the year
under review:

 Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to
dividend, voting or otherwise.

 Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to
employees of the Company under any scheme save
and except Employees' Stock Options Plan referred
to in this Report.

 The Company does not have any scheme of provision
of money for the purchase of its own shares by
employees or by trustees for the benefit of employees.

 Neither the Managing Director nor any Directors of
the Company receive any remuneration or commission
from its subsidiary.

CORPORATE INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS (CIRP)

The Company is under CIRP and information pertaining to
the process is available at the Company website
www.ortelcom.com
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OVERVIEW OF ECONOMY

A. GLOBAL ECONOMY OVERVIEW

Global growth is projected at -4.9 percent in 2020, 1.9
percentage points below the April 2020 World Economic
Outlook (WEO) forecast. The COVID-19 pandemic has had a
more negative impact on activity in the first half of 2020
than anticipated, and the recovery is projected to be more
gradual than previously forecast. In 2021 global growth is
projected at 5.4 percent. Overall, this would leave 2021
GDP some 6½ percentage points lower than in the pre-
COVID-19 projections of January 2020. The adverse impact
on low-income households is particularly acute, imperilling
the significant progress made in reducing extreme poverty
in the world since the 1990s.

As with the April 2020 WEO projections, there is a higher-
than-usual degree of uncertainty around this forecast. The
baseline projection rests on key assumptions about the
fallout from the pandemic. In economies with declining
infection rates, the slower recovery path in the updated
forecast reflects persistent social distancing into the second
half of 2020; greater scarring (damage to supply potential)
from the larger-than-anticipated hit to activity during the
lockdown in the first and second quarters of 2020; and a
hit to productivity as surviving businesses ramp up necessary
workplace safety and hygiene practices. For economies
struggling to control infection rates, a lengthier lockdown
will inflict an additional toll on activity. Moreover, the
forecast assumes that financial conditions-which have eased
following the release of the April 2020 WEO-will remain broadly
at current levels. Alternative outcomes to those in the
baseline are clearly possible, and not just because of how
the pandemic is evolving. The extent of the recent rebound
in financial market sentiment appears disconnected from
shifts in underlying economic prospects-as the June 2020
Global Financial Stability Report (GFSR) Update discusses-
raising the possibility that financial conditions may tighten
more than assumed in the baseline.

All countries-including those that have seemingly passed
peaks in infections-should ensure that their health care
systems are adequately resourced. The international
community must vastly step up its support of national
initiatives, including through financial assistance to
countries with limited health care capacity and channeling
of funding for vaccine production as trials advance, so that
adequate, affordable doses are quickly available to all
countries. Where lockdowns are required, economic policy
should continue to cushion household income losses with
sizable, well-targeted measures as well as provide support
to firms suffering the consequences of mandated
restrictions on activity. Where economies are reopening,
targeted support should be gradually unwound as the

recovery gets underway, and policies should provide stimulus
to lift demand and ease and incentivize the reallocation of
resources away from sectors likely to emerge persistently
smaller after the pandemic.

Strong multilateral cooperation remains essential on multiple
fronts. Liquidity assistance is urgently needed for countries
confronting health crises and external funding shortfalls,
including through debt relief and financing through the
global financial safety net. Beyond the pandemic,
policymakers must cooperate to resolve trade and
technology tensions that endanger an eventual recovery
from the COVID-19 crisis. Further more, building on the
record drop in greenhouse gas emissions during the
pandemic, policy makers should both implement their climate
change mitigation commitments and work together to scale
up equitably designed carbon taxation or equivalent
schemes. The global community must act now to avoid a
repeat of this catastrophe by building global stockpiles of
essential supplies and protective equipment, funding
research and supporting public health systems, and putting
in place effective modalities for delivering relief to the
neediest.

B. INDIAN ECONOMIC REVIEW

a. Introduction:

The world economy is currently experiencing the downward
slope but the global confidence in the Indian economy has
improved. This confidence is reflected in growing inflows
of net Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) and the cumulative
FDI inflows during FY-20 stands at US$ 470 Billion.

(Source: Department of Industrial Policy & Promotion -DIPP
FDI Report-May-20)

b. Market Size:

India remained the fifth largest economy in 2019 and nominal
GDP is estimated at US $ 2,936 Billion. Despite a growth
slowdown in 2019 and 2020, India is expected to regain its
position as a global growth leader. India has been the growth
leader amongst major economies including Emerging Markets
and Developing Economies (EMDEs) over the last five years.
India's per capita nominal GDP is estimated to have grown
by 8.5% in 2019 to INR 154,600.According to IMF World
Economic Outlook (October-2019), India leapfrogged the
economies of France & UK; making Indian economy the fifth
largest economy in the world. India contributed 3.39% of
the world's GDP measured in nominal US$ exchange rate
basis.

(Source - EY-FICCI report, March-20)

c.  Recent Developments:

Backed with multiple economic reforms, India paced 14 ranks

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - 2019-20
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to stand at 63rd position in the ease of doing business ranking
as per World Bank ranking released in Oct-19. Mergers and
Acquisitions (M&A) activity in the country has reached US$
48 Billion during Jan-Sept 2019. As per Doing Business 2020,
India implemented 50 reforms between 2018 & 2019 which
accounts for 1/5th of total reforms worldwide. Following
the last three years' of positive trend, India marked another
positive year with easier importing & exporting for
companies & it now stands 68th in the ranking. Exports from
India increased 1.60% year-on year to US $ 356.96 Billion in
April-November 2019.

As a resultant of above positive forces, the FDI equity inflows
in India stood at US$ 456.79 Billion during April 2000 to
December 2019 of which US$ 36.79 Billion is attributable to
period during April-December, 2019. The maximum sectorial
inflow is attracted by service sector US$ 6.52 Billion,
followed by computer software and hardware - US$ 6.34
Billion, telecommunications sector - US$ 4.29 Billion and
trading - US$ 3.52 Billion. India is expected to have 100,000
start ups by 2025, which will create employment for 3.25
million people and US$ 500 Billion in value, as per Chairman,
Manipal Global Education.

(Source - IBEF: About Indian Economy Growth Rate &
Statistics Mar 2020).

d.  Road Ahead:

As per the Indian Economic Survey presented in Jan-20,
India's GDP growth is expected to be around 6% to 6.5% for
FY-21. With a view to Promote 'pro-business' policies that
unleash the power of competitive markets to generate
wealth, India aims to raise its export market share to about
3.5% by 2025 and 6% by 2030 and creation of 4 crore well-
paid jobs by 2025 and 8 crore by 2030. India is currently
ranked at 3rd position in the IMF ranking of economy as per
purchasing power parity (PPP) trailing USA & China. As per
PWC report "The World in 2050", India is estimated to surpass
USA to become the second largest economy in terms of
purchasing power parity (PPP) by the year 2050.

The economies across world have been impacted by COVID-
19, especially during the first quarter of FY-21. As per the
revised estimated by S&P Global Ratings, the growth forecast
for Indian economy is revised at 1.8% from 3.5% during FY21.
Similar observations are seen by the forecasts of World Bank,
Fitch, and IMF & ADB wherein the growth rate is estimated
to be around 1.5% to 3.5% in FY-21. S&P Global expects
significant growth in Indian Economy while recovering at
7.5% in FY22.

e.  Policy Initiatives:

The major policy reform during the year comes in form of
the revised Corporate Income Tax (CIT) structure along with
related exemption & deductions. This will boost the
economy as investment by companies may pick up gradually
as capacity utilisation improves. Along with the CIT revision,
another policy initiative of National Pipeline Infrastructure

(NIP) will augment infrastructure in various sectors over a
span of six years. Apart  from above the Media &
Entertainment Industry & Telecommunication Industry are
being focused in Make in India Plan by government.

C. INDUSTRY REVIEW

a) Media & Entertainment

As observed by Head of Media & Entertainment, KPMG, the
Media & Entertainment (M&E) industry holds the oath of
growth with solid hands despite of the apparent downturn
in overall economy. The overall economy's growth was
revised from 7.2% to 7% while M&E posted strong growth in
double digits in last fiscal.

Similar observations were made by Senior VP, FICCI, it is
expressed that with ease of Digital accessibility & the
increasing adoption of digital world, M&E industry signals
up for dynamic & aspirational India. It is observed that the
times ahead are challenging & the M&E industry is changing
its outlay rapidly. Digital media, online gaming and animation
are likely to clock impressive double-digit growth in the
near future. Unlike many countries, the TV industry in India
is still massive and continues to grow. TV remains the largest
revenue generator for the industry with a projection of a
Billion screens in next five years.

There has been steady growth in opportunities present
with massive penetration of smart devices & digital
connectivity which can improve engagement between the
end consumer & the content creator. The M&E sector grew
by 9% in 2019 to reach INR 1.82 Trillion; the same is expected
to grow at CAGR of 10% from 2019 to 2022 & expected to
tap INR 2.41 Trillion. Within the industry, the growth of
Digital Media helped it to jump to 3rd position overtaking
Filmed Entertainment in 2019 in percentage contribution
of various segments of M&E industry.

The industry is changing its gear from the traditional
segments into the modern content provider and is also
supported by:

1. Ease in availability of Digital Connectivity & Smart devices

2. Focus on & Demand of the Regional Content

As per FICCI-EY Report, the Indian M&E sector is expected

All figures are gross of taxes (Rs.in Billion) for calendar years
| EY estimates, (Source - EY-FICCI report, Mar-20)
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to reach INR 2.41 Trillion by 2022 with a growth triggered at
CAGR of 10% from the market size of INR 1.97 Trillion
projected for 2020. The graph below depicts the increase
in CAGR of Television segment up to 10% by 2022

The Indian M&E industry's growth is also backed with the
rapid growth in the Digital Media segment's growth which is

spreading wings at CAGR of 29.1% over FY19-24. The Television
segment grew from INR 740 Billion in 2018 to INR 787 Billion
in 2019 and is estimated to rise up to INR 790 Billion in 2020,
having a CAGR of 10%.

Indian M&E Industry also encompassed Radio, OOH, animation
and VFX, gaming and digital advertising which are also

emerging as fast growing segments. Apart from this, the
India digital advertising market has reached INR 10,819 crore
(US$1.3 Billion) in 2018 and is forecasted to grow at a CAGR
of 32% to reach INR 18,986 crore (US$2.95 Billion) by 2020.

We can see the segmental growth patterns within M&E
industry wherein liner TV segment is projected to hold up
the leader's trend.

All figures are gross of taxes (Rs.in Billion) for calendar years
| EY estimates

b) Distribution - TV holding households

As per BARC report; TV viewership has grown 38% over the
last four years, and a total of 48.4 trillion viewing minutes
were consumed on television in 2019. The TV subscription
income paid by end customers post New Tariff Order (NTO)
implementation saw a growth of 7.5% riding on the
increased ARPUs even though the volume of the active
customers took a dip in industry. The sales of smart TV
are expected to grow & reach 14 Million TV units by end
of 2022.

The emergence of new segment of content driven viewership
in TV segment has already entered strongly within the
boundaries of traditional TV services. However as per FICCI-
EY analysis; we can expect positive growth over next few
years in unidirectional Television services (Cable, DTH, HITS,
etc.). This expectation is backed with the fact that the
overall time spent on TV during 2019 was at par with the
numbers of 2018. (Source - BARC- What India Watched -19)

Daily TV Tune Ins (count in Mn)

Impressions (In billions)

BARC, Impressions WK 1 to WK52
(Source - EY-FICCI report, Mar-20)
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The viewership for regional channel had doubled during
last four years (2016 to 2019) while the Hindi viewership had
grown by 33% and still contributes 31% of total viewership.
The major reason of growth in regional content is
attributable to the availability of sports content which
traditionally used to be telecasted majorly in English language
(41% drop in English Viewership). There are several other
factors that define the unique viewership attributes of each
of regional markets like Language penetration, Urban / Rural
spread, Age profile, availability of content. The same is also
evident from following data set:

As per BARC India, the total number of HD channels in 2019
has increased by 18% as compared to 2017. The viewership
of HD channels increased by 56%, post NTO as compared to
the pre-NTO period viewership with 8.87 Billion impressions.
The major increase in the HD viewership is attributable to
South Indian Market where it grew by almost 3 fold times &
with hike of 85% in the time spent on HD channels.

The Distribution platforms of M&E industry have continued
its growth story during the past year. The MSO registration
post NTO has increased by 11% in 2019. During the year, one
of the DTH operators has stopped its transmission while
NXT Digital continues to be the sole HITS service provider.
The Distribution platforms stood as the follows as per MIB
at the end of Jan-20 not including the Free Dish services
from DD (nation's public broadcaster).

(No. of participants)

c) Advertising

Continuing the leadership trend, TV still holds the big
bagger for advertising over other streams like Print, Radio,
OOH, etc. as it directly impacts the lives of Urban as well
as Rural India.

Subscription revenues outpaced Advertising revenues
and  the  Advert i s i ng  g rew  5. 3%  in  2019,  wh i l e
subscription grew 9.8%. Advertising revenue growth
was backed by big sports events like IPL & Cricket
World Cup. The overall advertisement volume dropped
by 4% in second half of 2019 owing to fear of economic
slowdown.  The top f ive Advert i sement categories
resonated with "Swacchata", wherein Personal Care/
Hygienic topped the table having 19% share of total
Adds.

Here also the regional advertisement segment gained
4% share. As per the recent trends, the regional TV
markets will outstrip the average Advertisement growth

(Source: The Era of Consumer A.R.T Mar-20 India's M&E
Sector, by FICCI-EY)
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with much bigger slice as seen below:

D) CONSUMER ARPU

The customer ARPUs trend has been on positive front with
growth observed post NTO period in lower end of the
spectrum. As per KPMG Analysis 2019, the overall ARPU
positioning was constant in the first half of 2019; whereas
the ARPUs improved in latter portion of the year leading to
overall growth of 8.1% during 2019.

Another reason for increase in Cable TV ARPU is attributable
to increasing HD viewership. This is mainly attributable to
the rise in the availability of regional sports content in HD
formats & infusion of smarts TVs on increasing rate during
the last five years.

With customers opting for DPO packages the ARPUs have
improved while on the other hand customers electing
channels of their own choice will have to pay a fixed fee in
form of Network Capacity Fees (max up to INR 130 as per
DPO). Further the uptake of Regional GEC especially in south
India has been firm post NTO. The increasing influx of Digital
& OTT content has also forced the traditional distributors
to review the importance of customers' need & changing
landscape at the centre of their decision making for content
& pricing.

E) DIGITAL INDIA

India stands second in the world from the viewpoint of
Internet Subscribers with 560 Million Internet Users. It is
expected that by end of 2021 India will have close to 600

Million Internet user base. However, while looking at these
huge figures we should also look at the fact that only 34%
of India population had access over internet as of 2017.

The Digital Media segment grew by 31% to touch 221 Billion
in 2019 & is expected to continue to grow at CAGR of 23%
to reach 414 Billion by end of 2022. Digital advertising grew
24% to INR 192 Billion driven by increased consumption of
content on digital platforms and marketers' preference to
measure performance. SME and long tail advertisers
increased spends on digital media as well. Pay digital
subscribers crossed 10 Million for the first time as sports
and other premium content were put behind a pay-wall.
Consequently, subscription revenue grew 106% to INR 29
Billion. Digital consumption grew across platforms where
video viewers increased by 16%, audio streamers by 33% and
news consumers by 22%. By 2020, OTT subscription market
will be approximate 10% of the total TV subscription market
(without considering data charges). It is estimated that with
over 40 Million connected TVs by 2025, the sector will
provide a huge opportunity for content creators to reach
family consumers.

India has the highest consumption of the online video in
the world while it stands second to US in the weekly average
of the hours of viewing of video content by consuming 8.43
hours in a week as per the Limelight Network's State of

Online Video 2019 study. The world average for the same
stands at 6.8 hours only. Over 1,600 hours of original content
were created for OTT platforms across films and episodic
content, which led to increased demand in 2019 at a growth
of 33% as compared 1200 hours in 2018. Though viewership
of live and catch-up television on broadcasters' platforms

Segment 2018 2019 2020E 2022E

Video 13.4 28.2 41.5 62.4

Audio 0.8 1.0 1.3 2.1

Total 14.2 29.2 42.8 64.5

The growth in Digital subscription is targeted at CAGR of 30% till 2022 to reach INR 64.5 Billion.

The growth in Digital subscription is targeted at CAGR of 30% till 2022 to reach INR 64.5 Billion.

Video Consumption by language

remains in excess of 80%, originals are important in attracting
new audiences and generating paid subscribers as per
general trends. Further among the original content; the
linguistic break-up was seen as follows:
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F) BROADBAND

As per EY analysis the total Internet penetration grew at

Channel type 2018 2019

Pay TV (Cable+ DTH+ HITS) 161 133

Free TV 6 38+

Total unidirectional 197 171+

Connected TV <2 4-5

Total TV 199 175+

(TV Subscriptions in Million, EY Estimates for 2019)

speed of 10 Gbps by 2022 and also expanding scope for
Internet of Things (IoT).

Further, India is aiming to provide 100% tele density & launch
of 5G spectrum via NIP.

(Source: The Era of Consumer A.R.T Mar-20 India's M&E
Sector, by FICCI-EY)

New Tariff Order, 2019 (NTO) :

TRAI implemented NTO in Feb-19 which opened new era for
TV viewing whereby the industry was driven based on the
customers' viewing preferences. NTO has brought more
transparency in the entire value chain and has allowed the
end consumer to exercise choice while selecting channels,
by moving to MRP based Regime. As per CEO of IndiaCast
Media, the key objective of NTO was to give the customers
the option to exercise the freedom of content of their
own choice. In order to achieve this, the Industry
stakeholders & government has invested immensely to
educate the customer.

The NTO changed televis ion as we knew i t ,  NTO
implemented during  February 2019 increased end-
customer prices for television content, reduced the
reach of certain genres of channels and resulted in a 6%
reduction in time spent watching television during the
second half of calendar 2019. While subscription revenues
increased in 2019, certain customer categories ended-
up cutting the cord and moving to digital, while others
reduced spends or switched-off their second and third
television sets in the home. Free television grew in 2019.
It is estimated that unidirectional television (pay+free)
reached 171 Million households and that there were over
4 Million connected smart televisions at the end of 2019.
(Source: The Era of Consumer A.R.T Mar 20 India's M&E
Sector, by FICCI-EY)

Millions of consumers | EY estimates
(Source: TRAI - Dec-18 & Dec-19 Reports)

Millions of consumers | EY estimates (Source: The Era of
Consumer A.R.T Mar-20 India's M&E Sector, by FICCI-EY)

Internet Subscriber Base

20% during the last year from 604 Million subscribers at the
end of Dec-18 to 723 Million subscribers at the end of Dec-
19. Out of total 723 Million internet subscribers, 661 Million
were broadband subscribers and 61 Million were narrow
band subscribers. The number of Narrow band subscribers
decreased from 79 Million at the end of Dec-18 to 61 Million
at the end of Dec-19.

As per the reported figure by TRAI in its monthly Broadband
Report; the second half of 2019 has seen positive growth
movement in all the inter-segments of Wireless Broadband
with a Y-O-Y increase of around 28% as it closes the year
with 661 Million subscribers. The Wired Broadband grew by
11% in Dec-19 as per the Press Release by TRAI No. 09/2020
to touch subscriber base of 20 Million.

G) POLICY INITIATIVES

National Digital Communications Policy - 2018(NDCP 2018):

In September 2018, the government released NDCP 2018,
which catered towards the establishment of a "ubiquitous,
resilient and affordable" digital communications
infrastructure and services.

It aims to provide universal Broadband (BB) connectivity to
all citizens at speed of 50 Mbps & to all Gram Panchayats at

Active paid subscriptions reduced by 26 Million in 2019,
one of the reasons is particularly English language viewers-
may have been provided with the impetus to move to OTT
platforms which became relatively more affordable post NTO
and provided the additional benefit of anytime viewing
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without advertisements, with an estimate of around 3-
4Million subscribers.

One important trend that emerged post NTO was that more
homes watched fewer channels, percentage of households
that watched 30 channels or more on average per week
reduced while share of homes that watched 20 channels or
less increased (BARC report).

Across the year, the TV viewing there were upscale in light
of the growth in Reach & Time for the key Genres:

• GEC genre's viewership has regained the level of Pre-
NTO era.

• Movie genre however closed with a negative eye fall
by close of the year.

• While News & Sports genres continued to be event
driven segments & it shall be statistically challenging
to isolate any NTO impact on the same.

The Channel genres which were impacted positively by the
NTO included DTH home channels (+168%), Bhojpuri movies
(+60%), Kannada movies (+58%), Punjabi music (+33%) and
sports (+26%).

 Amendment in Tariff :

TRAI introduced NTO in Feb-19 with a view for transparency
in the customer preference in their content viewing & post
it's successful implementation the regulator has now come
up with amendment in the current guidelines.

The amendment in guidelines focuses on the relationship
between Broadcaster & Distributors. The key objectives of
the amendment are to establish harmonised business process
in the sector, ensure level playing field,  bring in
transparency in TV channel pricing, reduce litigations among
stakeholders and provide equal opportunities to all the Multi
System Operators (MSOs).

 FDI Policy Initiative:

The government has focused on liberalising the FDI regime
for both telecom and media and entertainment sectors, to
attract investment for adequate infrastructure
development. In June 2016, FDI limits in teleports, DTH, cable
networks, mobile TV, Head-end-in-the sky broadcasting
service and cable networks were completely lifted, allowing
100% FDI through the automatic route. Further, there were
no express provisions in relation to digital media in the FDI
policy until 2019. However, in December 2019, FDI up to 26%
has been permitted under the government approval Route
for uploading/streaming of news and current affairs, through
digital media.

OTT Regulations:

Till now all the OTT providers were not covered under any
Regulations but now, the same have signed Code of self-
regulations with IAMAI (Internet and Mobile Association of
India). IMAI has drafted the Code of Best Practices for Online

Curated Content Providers in February 2020.

H) IMPACT OF COVID-19 ON M&E INDUSTRY

The M&E sector in India has seen growth during the
lockdown and simultaneously the Television viewership
exceeded 1.2 trillion minutes to record growth of 37%.The
industry has also seen a spike in the digital data consumption
during the lockdown period. As per CRISIL report, the market
for fixed line Broadband surges during the lockdown and
the service is shifting paddles from limited range customers
to necessity at each household.

As per BARC Report, the overall TV viewing post COVID has
grown by 43% with a growth in the consumers spending
more than 3 hours a day on TV viewing. The Free Commercial
time has grown by 9% and the social advertisement are the
table toppers accompanied with advertisements for
Toiletries. The entertainment industry's monetization is
largely depended on the advertisement; which is again
depended on the performance of the FMGC, e-commerce,
automobile, finance sector etc. These sectors are currently
facing the unseen challenges in the lockdown period. There
has been a substantial drop in the spent on advertisement
by these sectors. Commercial Advertising volumes from the
above have witnessed decline as per BARC data and spot
rates have also understandably crashed.

The silver lining in current scenario emerges with growth
in the digital data consumption and paradigm shift of
integration of digital Technologies in our daily routines. As
the work-from-home concept becomes the new norm, all
major remote conferencing service providers are witnessing
increasing uptake of thei r solutions. Further, the
coronavirus outbreak is compelling traditionally less digitally
inclined organizations to ramp up their digital infrastructure.
Meanwhile, digital media consumption through social media,
online gaming and OTT video streaming platforms is peaking
as more people get home bound. All the above factors
combined together will make India realize the Digital Billion
reality in near future. Further with increasing pressure on
the global players, India can also see an upward trend in
the domestic market consumption in service areas like
animations & VFX.

I. COMPANY OVERVIEW

Ortel Communications Limited ("the Company") is a regional
renowned & fastest growing Multiple System Operator (MSO)
providing digital Cable television (CATV) and high speed
Broadband services provider presently focused in the Indian
states of Odisha, Andhra Pradesh, Telangana and
Chhattisgarh. It has always been the Company's vision to
provide Cable TV, Data Service and Internet Telephony on a
single cable platform to households. Company has built a
State-of-Arttwo-way communication network for 'Triple Play'
services (video, data and voice capabilities) having HFC
network (combination of optic fibre in the backbone and
coaxial cable in the distribution network) with control over
the 'LastMile'. It pioneered the primary point cable business
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model in India by offering digital cable television, broadband
and VAS services. It currently holds a dominant position in
Odisha, with a presence in five other markets with direct
to consumer business model, popularly known as "Last Mile"
business model in the Cable TV universe having 90% of the
subscriber base under own network. Currently, business of
the Company is broadly divided into (i) cable television
services comprising of digital cable television services
including other value added services such as HD
services,NVoD,gaming and local content; (ii)broadband
services;(iii)FTTH internet services (iv) leasing of fibre
infrastructure; and (v) signal up linking services. It has legal
'Rights of Way 'for laying network cable and capable of providing
broadband at speed of up to 100 mbps through use of cable
modem with DOCSIS 3.0 technology. It has grown both organically
and inorganically through buyout of network equipment,
infrastructure and subscribers of other MSOs and LCOs. Ortel
is a pioneer in providing Convergence Communication Services
in the Country. It has revolutionized the Entertainment and
Broadband Technology in the Eastern India.

Ortel is the first MSO to offer upto 100 Mbps Broadband in
the state of Odisha using the DOCSIS 3.0 technology. DOCSIS
3.0 allows for a much higher through put compared to the
earlier versions by using multi-channel  bonding
simultaneously for download/ upload. Ortel has withdrawn
all schemes of Broadband services where the speed is less
than 1 Mbps. It offers uninterrupted high speed & truly
unlimited data experience to its customers across Odisha.
The broadband business had been growing over the years
with having more than 1000 subscribers as of Mar-20. Ortel
has grown stronger over the years with growing subscribers
and increasing revenues.

FY 2020 PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW

 Total Income decreased to Rs.89.32Cr against Rs.114.76
Cr of FY 2019.

 Profit Before Tax (PBT) is Rs.(34.85)Cr as against
Rs.(51.23)Cr in the FY 2019.

 ProfitAfterTaxcameinatRs.(34.85) Cr against Rs.(51.23)
Cr in the FY2019

With the implementation of the New Tariff Order last year,
the Company has been successful to convert its some of
LCO base into Prepaid Business Model, which is aimed to
enable the Company to reap future benefits in terms of
increased collection efficiency and debt control. The
Company has launched language-wise regional packs to
enhance customers experience and choose the required
channels according to their needs.

J. OPERATIONAL REVIEW

The FY 2020 was a challenging year for your Company. The
operational performance has been affected due to both
external and internal factors like an extremely severe
cyclonic storm Fani hit the Odisha coast on 3rd May, 2019.

This cyclone has damaged our network, premises,
equipment's, dish antenna's, Teleport, our corporate office
internal fixtures, store room and UPS room roofs, the main
gate etc. and also caused severe damages to all our facilities
in the coastal region and partial damages in peripheral areas.
It took 2 to 3 months to restored our network, as a result
of which all customers in Odisha (irrespective of whether
the local area was affected by Cyclone or not) were without
signal.  Also the World Health Organization declared a global
pandemic of the novel coronavirus disease (COVID-19) on
February 11, 2020 resulting in slower growth both in terms
of revenue and profitability. On external side, lower Average
Revenue per User ("ARPU") realizations from the addressable
C&S base has impacted the performance. Increased
competition has impacted industry in general affecting badly
broadband performance of the company.

The company's performance has also been affected due to
delay in collections, higher competitive intensity in the
market place as well as restriction in movement due to
COVID-19 pandemic.

In view of the above,your company has achieved a degrowth
in revenue both for cable TV and broadband business year
on year basis. Full digitisation of subscribers will also help
improving the collection controlling the debtors days.
Members may also note that, the Company has demonstrated
a strong B2C last mile business model in its core market
which is profitable and expects to replicate the same in
the new markets also. Having the unique 'Last Mile' model
and with adequate steps being taken for aggressive
digitisation and various other business plan, the Company is
very hopeful of improved performance in the coming FY.

K. CURRENT BUSINESS TRENDS AND FUTURE OUTLOOK

CABLE TV:

After consolidating its business at various locations in Odisha,
your Company has taken further steps to consolidate its
market base in other States that have been entered into
since 2008.The company is hopeful of achieving a substantial
growth in its Subscriber Base both through Organic as well
as inorganic acquisition of LCOs. Company has also plans to
expand into other new markets through a combination of
competitive pricing, multiple service offering, extensive
marketing and acquiring network equipment, infrastructure
and subscribers from LCOs/ MSOs in those new areas.

DIGITIZATION:

After mandatory digitization under phase III and Phase-IV,
the Company has made a significant growth in its digital
subscriber base.Further, in addition to SD (Standard
Definition) series, your Company is also providing high quality
HD (High Definition) and has also plan to take care to provide
high quality HD services to its customers. The Company also
holds registration certificate as prescribed in the amended
Act to operate as MSO in DAS areas from Ministry of
Information & Broadcasting.
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DATA SERVICES:

Ortel continues to be one of the dominating player in the
Data Services market in Odisha by providing high speed
services at competitive prices. The Company presently
provides both retail and corporate broadband services in
major towns in the state of Odisha. While the competition
for data services has intensified especially from wireless
operators who offer the advantage of mobility, highspeed
services till remains the unique selling proposition for Ortel
Broadband.Your Company has successfully implemented
DOCSIS 3.0 high speed broadband service and is currently
offering data service upto a speed of 100 Mbps. The
Company has also identified new markets as a part of
expanding the Data operation and have planned out to
expand further in the coming financial year. Your company
is also using HFC architecture, which can easily be
converted or upgraded to provide FTTH service at very
nominal incremental capital expenditure.  With the
implementation of new technology, high speed data service
and aggressive marketing strategy, the Company will manage
to increase its subscriber base.

Your company is well equipped with its upgraded Network
Operating Center (NOC) with inbuilt redundancy of key
elements in the system to support and sustain the higher
level of customer base and service.

Your company has set up a state of the art integrated Call
Center to address customer queries and complaints with
24X7 help line. Company has also a network monitoring
system through which major network failures are monitored
and steps taken to restore the services early. Your company
also has a grievance redressal system in place to resolve
the complaints.

OTHER VALUE ADDED SERVICE:

The Company also provides choice of other value added
services over the same cable leading  to customer
convenience and satisfaction with a range of services HD
services, NVoD and other interactive video content.
Currently Company provides 14+ HD channels on its network.
The Company also offers bundled services such as Cable TV
+ Broadband + HD to its customers. All these services are
expected to drive revenue in future.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY:

Ortel continues to maintain an effective system of internal
control for facilitating accurate, reliable and speedy
compilation of financial information, safeguarding the
assets and interests of the company and ensuring
compliance with all laws and regulations. The company's
internal control systems are commensurate with the nature
of its business and the size and complexity of its operations,
which provide, among other things, reasonable assurance
of  authorization,  recording and reporting  of  the
transactions of its operations in all material respects and
of providing protection against significant misuse or loss

of the assets of the company. The company has appointed
M/s SBN & Associates a firm of Chartered Accountants, as
its Internal Auditors,who conduct internal audit for various
activities. The reports of Internal Auditors are submitted
to Board/Resolution Professional, which further reviews
the adequacy of internal Control system.

HUMAN RESOURCES:

Human Resources are of paramount importance for the
sustenance and growth of any organization and it is
specifically true for the technically sensitive broadband
sector. Your company continues to give maximum thrust to
its Human Resources Development.Employee relations
remained cordial at all your company's locations. Your
Directors/Resolution Professional takes this opportunity to
record their appreciation for the outstanding contribution
of all employees of your company.

During the year, the Company maintained harmonious and
cordial industrial relations. No man-days were lost due to
shut down and lockdown due to COVID-19 pandemic, strike,
lock out etc. As on 31st March 2020 there were 611
permanent employees on the rolls of the company.

DISCLOSURE BY SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL:

None of the Senior Management personnel/ Resolution
Professional has Financial and Commercial transactions with
the Company, where they have personal interest that would
have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company
at large.

RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Company takes proactive risk management initiatives
to identify and mitigate the relative risk associated by various
risk measures. The company has taken comprehensive and
adequate insurance policies for its electronic equipment,
vehicles, network assets and buildings etc to cover different
types of potential risk that may affect the operational
performance of the Company.

Preference Risk - Implementation of the New Tariff has
increased customer focus in the M&E sector. ORTEL is
offering and upgrading its offering in line with its customers
preferences. With more focus on HD content, it enables
ORTEL to provide customers with better experience.

Nature of Risk Definition and impact
Regulatory Risk Increased regulations or change in

existing regulations could potentially
impact the operation of the

company

Industry Risk Competition from competitors may
adversely affect the operating

performance of the company.

Potential Risk
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Migration Risk - Difficulty in attracting new customers
impact the business growth and sustainability. ORTEL
initiated providing online payment facility to the customers.

Content Risk - The Company depends on the third-party
i.e., the Broadcasters for content. If it fails to provide
content from popular Broadcaster to its customers, its
credibility may be significantly impacted. The Company
having a better negotiating power with the Broadcaster,
ORTEL still holds this risk as under the New Tariff Regime,
increase in content cost may affect the Company.

HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT:

The company has taken adequate measures for health and
safety of its employees through Group Insurance covering
life, accident and disablement, Employee Deposit Link
Insurance and ESI.Your Company also gives utmost priority
on health and safety of its employees and is committed to

ensure high standard work practice in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations.

Your Company also conducts training programmes for its
staff and employees, and carries out regular safety audits in
relation to the operations. All field employees are provided
with safety equipment. Regular safety audits are conducted
at each location to monitor the implementation of the safety
guidelines issued by the Company, and a compliance report
is also prepared every month. The company also believes in
environmental safety and zero hazards.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT:

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis
describing the Company's objectives, projections, estimates
and expectation may be "forward-looking" within the
meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results
might differ materially from those expressed or implied.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

1. ORTEL PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

The Company believes in transparency, empowerment,
accountability and integrity in its operations having duly
delegated authority to the various functional heads that are
responsible for attaining the corporate plans with the ultimate
purpose of enhancement of "stake holder value". The
Company has professionals on its Board of Directors who are
actively involved in the deliberation of the Board. However
the Company was admitted into Corporate Insolvency
Resolution Process (CIRP) by National Company Law Tribunal
(NCLT) vide order dated 27th November, 2018 under Section
7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 and the powers
of the existing Board of Directors of the Company are
suspended from the date of the order as per Section 17 of
the IBC and vested with Mr.Srigopal Choudhary as Resolution
Professional to carry out the activities relating to CIRP as
per the rules, regulations and guidelines prescribed by the
Code for the management of the affairs of the Company.
Since the Powers of the Board of Directors are vested with
the Resolution Professional the management of the affairs of
the Company will be under the overall control, supervision
and guidance of the Resolution professional from the date
of the order till the completion of Corporate Insolvency
Resolution Process.

As per the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process
(CIRP),resolution plans ("Resolution Plan") was received by
the Resolution Professional and the Resolution Plan was
placed before the COC for approval and the approved
Resolution Plan was filed with the Hon'ble NCLT, New Delhi
on 26th August, 2019 for approval under Section 31 of the
Code. The application filed by the Resolution Professional
for approval of Resolution Plan is currently pending
adjudication before the Adjudicating Authority. In terms of
Section 25 of the Code, the Company is continuing to operate
as a going concern, where at any time during the Corporate

Insolvency Resolution Process period, if the Adjudicating
Authority approves the resolution plan under sub-section
(1) of section 31 or passes an order for liquidation of
corporate debtor under section 33, the moratorium shall
cease to have effect from the date of such approval or
liquidation order, as the case may be.

The Powers vested with the Audit Committee, Nomination
and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship
Committee will also be exercised by the Resolution
Professional. The Status of the Board of Directors and
Committees are as after the date of the NCLT order.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Prior to commencement of CIRP the Board of Directors
of your Company has been constituted in compliance
with requirement of Companies Act, Listing agreement
with Stock Exchanges in line with the SEBI (Listing
Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015.

The Board provides leadership, strategic guidance and
independent view to the Company's management while
discharging its responsibilities. The Board consists of
distinguished persons having requisite knowledge and
expertise in business & industry.

2.1 COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD AND CATEGORY OF
DIRECTORS

The current Board comprises of Directors with one Executive
Director who is the Managing Director of the Company and
two Non-Executive Directors of who are Independent
Directors and the number of Independent Directors is 50%
of the total number of Directors.Thus, the composition of
the Board is in conformity with Regulation 17 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (LODR). Managing Director is the woman director on
the Board of the Company.

2.2 THE COMPOSITION OF BOARD AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2020 AND THE NUMBER OF OTHER DIRECTORSHIPS AND BOARD
COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIPS/ CHAIRMANSHIPS ARE AS FOLLOWS

Ms. Jagi Mangat Panda Promoter & Executive 4 2 0 2

Dr. Gautam Sehgal Independent & 2 2 0 1
Non-Executive

Mr. Kadambi Seshasayee Independent & 1 1 0 1
Non-Executive

Name Category of
Directorship

No. of
Directorship

in other
Public Limited

Companies

No. of Directorship in
listed entity including
Ortel Communicatios

Limited

No. of Committee
Membership in other

Public Limited Companies

Chairman Member



22

25th ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20

Notes:

1. Directorships in Private, Foreign Companies, and
Companies under Section 8 of Companies Act, 2013 if
any, are excluded and memberships of only Audit
Committee and Stakeholder's Relationship Committee
have been considered.

2. None of the Directors have been independent directors
in more than seven listed companies and Managing
Director of the Company is not independent director
in more than three listed companies.

3. All the Independent Directors have been appointed in
due compliance of Companies Act, 2013 and Listing
Regulations and formal letter of appointment with terms
of their appointment has been issued to them which
have been posted in the website of the Company
www.ortelcom.com.

4. None of the Directors is member in more than ten
committees and chairman of five committees or Director
in more than twenty companies.

5. Ms. Jagi Mangat Panda, Managing Director (Promoter &
Executive) and Dr.Gautam Sehgal and Mr. Kadambi

Sl. No. Name of the Investor No. of Shares held

1 Dr. Gautam Sehgal 62,273

Seshasayee, Independent & Non-Executive Directors
respectively are not related with each other and there
are no inter-se relations among the Directors.

6. Number of Equity Shares held by non-executive
directors as on 31st March 2020:

2.3 NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

The Company remained under CIR Process during the year
under review. Further, as per newly inserted sub-regulation
(2A) in Regulation 15 in LODR, the provisions of Regulation
17, 18, 19, 20 and 21, including with regard to meetings of
Board are not applicable during the period of CIRP.
Consequently, no meeting of the Board has been held during
the financial year 2019-20.

2.4 THE ATTENDANCE OF EACH DIRECTOR AT THE BOARD
MEETINGS AND ALSO AT THE PREVIOUS ANNUAL

2.5 INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS' MEETING

a) SELECTION AND APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT
DIRECTORS

Considering the requirement of skill set on the Board,
profiles of eminent people having independent standing in
their respective field/profession, and who can effectively
contribute to the Company's business and policy decisions
are considered by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee for appointment as Independent Directors on
the Board. The Committee, inter-alia, considers the
qualification, positive attributes, area of expertise and
number of Directorships and Memberships/ Chairmanships
held in various committees of other companies by such
persons and recommends their appointments to the Board
for its decision. Formal letters of appointment are issued
to the Independent Directors and the terms and conditions
of their appointment are posted on the Company's website:
www.ortelcom.com

b) DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company received Declarations of Independence from
all the Independent Directors, confirming that they meet

the criteria of independence, as prescribed under Section
149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulations 16(1)(b)
and 25 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (the "Listing Regulations"). On
appointment, the concerned Director is issued a Letter of
Appointment setting out in detail, the terms of appointment,
duties, responsibilities and expected time commitments.

c) FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAM FOR INDEPENDENT
DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Independent Director is taken
through an induction and familiarization program including
the presentation and interactive session with the Managing
Director and CEO and other Functional Heads on important
aspects. The Company Secretary briefs the Director about
their legal and regulatory responsibilities from time to time.
The Company followed the practice of familiarize the
Independent Director on the recent amendments on
quarterly basis. The Company conducted various conference
calls with the Independent directors in order to sensitize
them on various important issues of the Company whenever
required. The details of familiarization program can be
accessed from the website:www.ortelcom.com. Since the

Name No.of Board Meetings        Attendance at AGM
attended during 2019-20 heldon 28th September, 2019

Ms. Jagi Mangat Panda N.A. No

Dr. Gautam Sehgal N.A. No

Mr. Kadambi Seshasayee N.A. No

http://www.ortelcom.com.
http://www.ortelcom.com
http://www.ortelcom.com.
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Company is under CIRP no familiarisation programme has
been conducted during the year.

d) SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

As stipulated by the Code of Independent Directors under
the Act, the Listing Regulations and the Secretarial
Standards issued by the ICSI, the Company's Independent
Directors meet at least once in a year without the presence
of non-independent directors or members of the
Management Personnel. Since the Company continue to be
under CIR Process and the powers of the Board are vested
and are being exercised by RP, no meeting of Independent
directors was held during the Financial Year 2019-20.

2.6  EVALUATION OF BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND
INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS

One of the key functions of the Board is to monitor and
review the Board evaluation framework. The Board works
with the Nomination and Remuneration Committee to lay
down the evaluation criteria for the performance of
executive/non executive/ independent directors through
peer-evaluation excluding the director being evaluated. Each
Board member is requested to evaluate the effectiveness
of the Board dynamics and relationships, information flow,
decision-making of the directors, relationship to
stakeholders, company performance, company strategy, and
the effectiveness of the Board, as a whole and its various
committees.

The performance of the Board is evaluated after seeking
inputs from all the directors on the basis of the criteria
such as the Board composition and structure, effectiveness
of board processes, information and functioning etc. The
performance of the Committees is evaluated after seeking
inputs from the committee members on the basis of the
criteria such as the composition of committees,
effectiveness of committee meetings etc. The performance
of the individual directors is evaluated on the basis of
criteria such as the contribution of the individual director
to the Board and committee meetings like preparedness on
the issues to be discussed, meaningful and constructive
contribution and inputs in meetings etc. In addition, the
Chairman is also evaluated on the key aspects of his role.

In addition to the criteria of evaluation for all Directors,
which is common for evaluation of both Independent and
Non-executive directors, an Independent director is also
evaluated on parameters including, exercise of objective
independent judgment in the best interest of Company;
ability to contribute to and monitor corporate governance
practice; and adherence to the code of conduct for
independent directors.

2.7 INFORMATION PLACED BEFORE THE BOARD/RP

The Board/RP has complete access to all company related
information. All the requisite information, in terms of
Regulation 17 (7) read with Schedule II Part A of the Listing
Regulations are placed before the RP for his consideration,

besides such other information/details which are considered
necessary to facilitate meaningful and focused deliberations
on issues concerning the Company and to take decisions in
an informed and efficient manner.

2.8 CODE OF CONDUCT

The conduct of the Board Members and Senior Management
Personnel is regulated by the Code of Conduct for Board
Members and Senior Management Personnel, as approved
and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company.
The Code as circulated to all members of the Board & Senior
Management Personnel is available on the website of the
Company at www.ortelcom.com

2.9 PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING CODE

The Company has adopted a Code for Prevention of Insider
Trading to regulate, monitor and report trading by insiders
under the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015. All the Directors, RP, employees, CoC and third parties
such as auditors, consultants etc. who may have an access
to the unpublished price sensitive information of the
Company are governed by this code. The trading window is
closed during the time of declaration of results and
occurrence of any material events as per the code.

3. BOARD COMMITTEES

To provide detailed and necessary assistance in the
Company's matters, the Board has constituted eight
committees. The Board has a defined set of guidelines and
an established framework for conducting the meetings of
the said Committees. These guidelines seek to systematize
the decision making process at the meetings in an informed
and efficient manner.

The Company remained under CIR Process during the year
under review.  Further, as per newly inserted sub-
regulation (2B) in Regulation 15 in LODR, the provisions
of Regulation 18, 19, 20 and 21, including with regard to
meetings of Committees of the Board are not applicable
during the period of CIRP. Consequently, no meeting of
any Committee of the Board has been held during the
financial year 2019-20.

Sl.No Name of theCommittees

1 Audit Committee

2 Nomination and Remuneration Committee

3 Stakeholders Relationship Committee

4 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

5 Risk Management Committee

6 Finance Committee

7 Corporate Restructuring Committee

8 Share Allotment Committee

Note: As on the date of reporting, requirement of Risk
Management Committee as per Listing Regulations was not
applicable

http://www.ortelcom.com
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3.1 AUDIT COMMITTEE

A. COMPOSITION

The Audit Committee of the Company originally constituted
on November 25, 1999 as per the requirements of Section
292A of the Companies Act, 1956 has been reconstituted
on 2nd February, 2011 and 20th April, 2015 in line with the
requirement of Listing Regulations. The primary function
of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board of Directors
in fulfilling its responsibilities by reviewing the financial
reports, adequacy of Internal audit function andfunction
and the disclosure of other financial information provided
by the Company to any Govt. Body or to the investors or
the publicand the company's system of internal controls
regarding finance, accounting and legal compliances that
Management and the Board have established. The broad
terms of reference, scope, power and duties of Audit
Committee are as defined in the Listing Regulation and
Companies Act. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary
of the Audit Committee.

Name Category No. of
Meetings
attended

during 2019-20

Ms. Jagi Mangat Panda Non N.A.
Independent
& Executive

Mr. Kadambi Seshasayee Independent N.A.
&
Non Executive

Note: During the year, no meetings of the Audit Committee
were held as the Company is under CIRP.

3.2  NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A. COMPOSITION

The Remuneration/Compensation Committee as originally
constituted on 25th November, 1999 and subsequently

reconstituted on 2nd February, 2011 as per the requirement
under Listing Agreement for the erstwhile Initial Public Offer
(IPO) of the Company has been renamed as Nomination and
Remuneration Committee by the Directors at their meeting
held on 21st July, 2014 and reconstituted subsequently on
09th March, 2015 in compliance with the amended listing
agreement of the Stock Exchanges.

B. THE ROLE OF THE NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

The primary function of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (erstwhile Remuneration/ Compensation
Committee) is to formulate criteriafor determining
qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
director and review and recommend to the Board a policy,
relatingtotheremunerationofthedirectors,keymanagerial
personnel and other employees, to approve appointment,
reappointment, retention of KMPs and senior management
personnel of the Company, to formulate criteria for
evaluation of Directors, the Board and other Committees,
to recommend offer and issue of ESOP to eligible employees,
to guide and monitor function of ESOP Trust and devise
guidelines for due implementation of ESOP Scheme, devising
a policy on Board diversity to identify persons who are
qualified to become directors and who may be appointed
in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid
down, and recommend to the Board their appointment
and removal,to fix and finalize remuneration including salary,
perquisites, benefits, bonuses, allowances, etc. to fix
performance linked incentives along with the performance
criteria, increments and promotions, service contracts,
notice period, severance fees, ex-gratia payments and such
other matters as may from time to time be required by any
statutory, contractual or other regulatory requirements
to be attended to by the Remuneration Committee.

C. COMPOSITION OF NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND DETAILS OF MEETING ATTENDED BY THE
MEMBERS

Note: During the year, no meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee were held as the Company is under
CIRP.

Name Category Number of Meetings held and/or
attended during 2019-20

                          Held Attended

Dr. Gautam Sehgal Independent &                            N.A.                                 N.A.
Non-Executive
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D. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL AND SENIOR MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Remuneration of Managing Director was approved by
Shareholders of the Company in the Annual General Meeting
(AGM) of the Company held on September, 2017 on
recommendation by the Board of Directors and Nomination
& Remuneration Committee. The Members in the AGM held
on 27th July, 2015, had approved payment of Commission to
the Non-Executive Directors (NEDs) upto 0.5% of the Net
Profit of the previous financial year calculated as per
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Schedule V and Companies (Appointment & Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

Since the Company continues to be under CIRP and the
powers of the Board are vested and are being exercised by
RP. Further, as per newly inserted sub-regulations (2A) and
(2B) in Regulation 15 in LODR, the provisions of Regulation
17, 18, 19, 20 and 21, including with regard to meetings of
Board and committees are not applicable during the period
of CIRP. Therefore, no Board/Committee Meeting was held

during the year under review and consequently no sitting
fees paid.

The Board has formulated a Nomination and Remuneration
Policy relating to appointment, qualification, attributes,
independence remuneration of Director(s) and also for
appointment, retirement and removal of Key Managerial
Personnel (KMPs) and Senior Management Personnel in
compliance with the provisions of companies Act, 2013 and
Listing agreement with the Stock Exchanges. Same is
annexed as Annexure-5.

Since the Company is under CIRP no performance evaluation
of Independent Directors as per the Nomination and
Remuneration Policy has been conducted during the year
and had also not done the performance evaluation of its
Committees and of Managing Director as per the policy.

Further, Since the Company is under CIRP the Independent
Directors had also not done in their separate meeting the
performance evaluation of Board as a whole, Chairperson
and Non-Executive Director of the Company.

F. DETAILS OF REMUNERATION FOR FY 2019-20 TO MANAGING DIRECTOR

3.3 STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

A.COMPOSITION

Shareholders/ Investors Grievance Committee and Share
Transfer Committee as to originally constitutedby the
Directors at their Board meeting held on February 2, 2011
were merged and renamed as the Stakeholders Relationship
Committee by our Directors at their Board meeting on July
21, 2014 in compliance with amended clause 49 of the listing
agreement of the Stock Exchanges.

Note: During the year the Managing Director did not draw any remuneration from the Company

The primary function of the Stakeholders Relationship
Committee (erstwhile Shareholders/ Investor Grievance
Committee) consist of redressal of all security holders' and
investors' grievances such as complaints related to transfer
of shares, including non-receipt of share certificates and
review of cases for refusal of transfer/transmission of shares
and debentures, non-receipt of balance sheet, non-receipt
of declared dividends, non-receipt of annual reports,  etc,
giving effect to all transfer/transmission of shares and
debentures, dematerialization and dematerialization of

E. DETAILS OF REMUNERATION FOR FY 2019-20 TO NON-EXECUTIVE AND/OR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Name Sitting
fees

Commission for
the FY 2019-20

Total

DR. GAUTAM SEHGAL N.A. N.A. N.A.

MR. K V SESHASAYEE N.A. N.A. N.A.

Name Salary Other

allowance &

Perquisites

Commission/

Performance

pay

Sitting

fees

Amt.in

Rs.

Total

Ms.Jagi Mangat Panda 12 0 - - 12

Total 12 0 - -         12
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shares, split and issue of duplicate/consolidated share
certificates, allotment and listing of shares, buy back of
shares, compliance with all the requirements related to
shares, debentures and other securities from time to time
and overseeing the performance of the registrars and
transfer agents of our Company and to recommend measures
for overall improvement in the quality of investor services
and also to monitor the implementation and compliance of
the code of conduct for prohibition of insider trading
pursuant to the Insider Trading Regulations and other related
matters as may be assigned by the Board.

C. COMPOSITION OF STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP
COMMITTEE AND DETAILS OF MEETING ATTENDED BY
THE MEMBERS

Name Category Number of
meeting attended

during 2019-20

Dr.Gautam Sehgal Independent &  N.A.
Non-Executive

Chairman

Note: During the year, no meetings of the Stakeholders
Relationship Committee were held as the Company is under
CIRP.

3.4 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

A.COMPOSITION

In terms of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Board in its meeting held on 27th July 2015, had constituted
a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee to monitor
the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company
and the activities included in the policy.

B. SCOPE AND BROAD TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE
COMMITTEE, INTER ALIA, AMONG OTHERS WERE AS
FOLLOWS

1. Shall devise the CSR policy to be implemented by the
Company.

2. Shall decide the types of activities to be undertaken
within the purview of CSR Policy of the Company from
time to time.

3. Shall review and ensure that, the activities included
in the CSR policy are under taken by the Company.

4. Shall devise, recommend and implement such other
matter as the Committee deems fit from time to time
in due compliance of the CSR requirement.

Name Category Number of
meeting
attended
during
2019-20

Mr.K V Seshasayee Independent N.A.
& Non-Executive

Ms.Jagi Mangat Panda Chairman N.A.
Promoter &
Executive Director

Note: During the year, no meetings of the Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee were held as the Company is under
CIRP.

3.5 RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

A.COMPOSITION

Risk Management Committee was constituted by your
Dirctors at their Board Meeting held on July 21, 2014 and
which was reconstituted on 20 April, 2015.

B. TERMS OF REFERENCE

The Risk Management Committee is responsible, inter alia,
among other things, for:

1. To review and assess the risk management system and
policy of the Company from time to time and
recommend for amendment or modification thereof;

2. To frame and devise risk management plan and policy
of the Company;

3. To review and recommend potential risk involved in
any new business plans and processes;

4. Any other similar or other functions as may be
laid down by Board from time to time and other
similar facilities both short term or long terms,
temporary or otherwise with banks and other
inst i tut i ons  and any o ther s imi l ar nature of
financial matters.

5. Consider and approve the Company's annual financing
plan, including its projected financial structure and
all types of funding requirements from Bank, financial
institutions and other lenders.

6. Consider and recommend for approval by the Board
of Directors of a) issuances of equity and/or debt
securities; or b) authorizations for other financing
transactions,including bank credit facilities.

7. Consider and recommend for approval by the Board
of Directors of the Company's external dividend policy.

D. COMPOSITION OF CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
COMMITTEE AND DETAILS OF MEETING ATTENDED BY
THE MEMBERS
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8. Consider and recommend for approval by the Board
of Directors there purchase of the Company's stock.

9. Consider and approve the Company's financial risk
management activities, including the areas of foreign
exchange, commodities, and interest rate exposures,
insurance programs and customer financing risks.

C. COMPOSITION OF RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE AND
DETAILS OF MEETING ATTENDED BY THE MEMBERS

Name Category Number of
meeting
attended
during
2019-20

Ms.Jagi Mangat Panda Promoter N.A.
& Executive
Chairman

Mr.Kadambi Seshasayee Independent N.A.
& Non-
Executive Director

Note: During the year, no meetings of the Risk Management
Committee were held as the Company is under CIRP.

3.6 FINANCE COMMITTEE

A.COMPOSITION

The Finance Committee of the Board was constituted in its
meeting held on 20th October, 2015.

B. TERMS OF REFERENCE

The scope and broad terms of reference of the Committee
was as follows:

1. To consider,  recommend/approve where ever
requi red,  rais ing funds f rom various sources,
taking loans from Banks, financial institut ions
and other lenders, availing lease financing from
various part ies,  avail ing  suppl iers '  credi t and
other credit facilities, availing and renewal of
overdraft/ cash creditfacilities and other similar
f a c i l i t i e s  bo th  s ho rt  t e rm  o r  l ong  t e rm s ,
temporary or otherwise with banks and other
inst i tut ions and any  other s im i lar nature of
financial matters

2. Consider and approve the Company's annual financing
plan, including its projected financial structure and
all types of funding requirements from Bank, financial
institutions and other lenders.

3. Consider and recommend for approval  by the
Board   of Directors of a) issuances of equity and/
or debt securities; or b) authorizations for other
f inancing  transact ions,  including  bank credi t
facilities.

4. Consider and recommend for approval by the Board
of Directors of the Company's external dividend policy.

5. Consider and recommend for approval by the Board
of Directors the repurchase of the Company's stock.

6. Consider and approve the Company's financial risk
management activities, including the areas of foreign
exchange, commodities, and interest rate exposures,
insurance programs and customer financing risks

7. Consider and approve the Company's policy for
investment of excess cash.

8. Report to the Board of Directors all significant issues
discussed and make appropriate recommendations to
be acted upon by the Board.

9. Perform such other activities consistent with the
Memorandum of Association, the Company's Articles
of Association, and applicable, as the Committee or
the Board deems necessary or appropriate and as may
be delegated by Board from time to time.

C. COMPOSITION OF FINANCE COMMITTEE AND DETAILS
OF MEETING ATTENDED BY THE MEMBERS

Name Category Number of
meeting
attended
during
2019-20

Ms.Jagi Mangat Panda Promoter N.A.
& Executive
Chairman

Note: During the year, no meetings of  the Finance
Committee were held as the Company is under CIRP.

3.6 CORPORATE RESTRUCTURING COMMITTEE

A.COMPOSITION AND ATTENDANCE

The Corporate Restructuring Committee comprises of two
Directors.The composition of the Corporate Restructuring
Committee is as under:

Name Designation Remarks

Mr. K.V.Seshasayee Director-Member

Mr. Bibhu Prasad Rath Member Resigned
w.e.f.
5th March,
2020

B. TERMS OF REFERENCE

The role of the Corporate Restructuring Committee of the
Board, inter alia, includes dealing with merger, demerger,
inter-company restructuring etc. and all matters connected
with the restructuring to meet the Company's requirements.
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3.6 SHARE ALLOTMENT COMMITTEE

A.COMPOSITION AND ATTENDANCE

The Share Allotment Committee comprises of one Director.
The composition of the Committee is as under:

Name Designation

Ms.Jagi Mangat Panda Director-Member

B. TERMS OF REFERENCE

The role of the Share Allotment Committee of the Board,
inter alia, includes dealing with allotment of Equity
shares,  Preference Shares etc .  and a l l  mat ters
connected with the allotment to meet the Company's
requirements.

4. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Ortel Broadband Limited is the only wholly-owned subsidiary
(100%) of the Company.

5. GENERAL BODY MEETING

(i) DETAILS OF THE LAST FOUR ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGS
OF THE COMPANY WERE HELD ARE DEPICTED IN THE
TABLE BELOW:

(ii) POSTAL BALLOT

No resolution was passed through postal ballot during
the financial year 2019-20. No Special Resolution requiring
Postal Ballot is being proposed at ensuing Annual General
Meeting.

(i i i)  DETAILS OF HOLDING OF THE EXTRA ORDINARY
GENERAL MEETING OF THE COMPANY FOR THE FINANCIAL
YEAR 2019-20

No extra ordinary general meeting was held during the
financial year 2019-20

6. OTHER DISCLOSURES

6.1 DISCLOSURE UNDER REGULATION 39(4) AND SCHEDULE

VI OF LISTING REGULATIONS:

PURSUANT TO DETAILS IN SCHEDULE VI OF LISTING REGULATIONS IN RESPECT OF THE SHARES LYING IN THE ORTEL
COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED- UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE ACCOUNT (PROMOTER GROUP & NON-PROMOTER GROUP) TILL 31ST
MARCH, 2020 ARE AS UNDER.

PROMOTER GROUP) TILL 31ST MARCH, 2020 ARE AS UNDER.

Financial Year Day, Date and Time Venue Whether 
Special 

Resolution 
passed 

2018-19 Saturday, September, 
28, 2019 
AT 10:30 A.M. 

Modi Hall, PHD Chamber of Commerce and Industry, PHD 
House,  4/2 Siri Institutional Area, August Kranti Marg, New 
Delhi-110 016 
 

No 

2017-18 Friday,  
21st Sept. 2018 
AT 10:30 A.M. 

Modi Hall, PHD Chamber of Commerce and Industry, PHD 
House,  4/2 Siri Institutional Area,  August Kranti Marg, New 
Delhi-110 016 

 

No 

2016-17 Tuesday,  
05th  Sept, 2017,  

AT 10:00 A.M. 

Modi Hall, PHD Chamber of Commerce and Industry, PHD 
House,  4/2 Siri Institutional Area, August Kranti Marg, New 
Delhi-110 016 

Yes 

2015-16 Thursday,  
28th  July, 2016,  

AT 10.00 AM 

Lakshmipat Singhania Auditorium, PHD Chamber of Commerce 
and Industry, PHD House, 4/2 Siri Institutional Area, August 
Kranti Marg, New Delhi-110016 

Yes 
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Note: The Shareholders may please note that the voting
rights on the said shares shall remain frozen till the rightful
owner of such shares claims the same.

6.2 CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has obtained Certificate on Corporate
Governance from a Practicing Company Secretary forming
part of the Directors' Report as Annexure-6.

6.3 EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION SCHEME

The disclosures required to be made under SEBI (Employee
Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme)
Guidelines, 1999, are given in the note no. 44 of the financial
statements.

6.4 MATERIALLY SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

There have been no materially significant related party
transactions, except for those disclosed in the Report to
the Shareholders. All related party transactions during the
year under report are in the ordinary course of business
and at arms' length basis in compliance of the Companies
Act, 2013 and listing regulations. The Company's major related
party transactions are generally with its group Company's.
All related party transactions are negotiated on an arms'
length basis and are intended to further the Company's
interests. Details of transactions with related parties are
disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements. The
Company has formulated a Policy on Materiality of Related
partry transction of Company has adopted a policy on
dealing with related party transactions and same has been
posted in the website of the Company:www.ortelcom.com

All the related party transactions have been approved by
the Resolution Professional. There were no material related
party transactions during the period under review.

6.5 POLICY ON MATERIAL SUBSIDIARY

Board has also approved and laid down Policy on determining

material subsidiaries and same has been posted in the
website of the Company www.ortelcom.com

The Company has incorporated one wholly-owned subsidiary
in the name of "Ortel Broadband Limited" during the FY
2017-18.

6.6 POLICY ON DETERMINATION OF MATERIALITY OF
EVENTS/ INFORMATION

Board has also approved and laid down Policy on
Determination of Materiality of Events/Information and same
has been posted in the website of the Company
www.ortelcom.com

6.7 CODE OF CONDUCT FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER
TRADING

Board has adopted Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider
Trading in accordance with the requirement of SEBI
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation, 2015. The same
is available in our Company website www.ortelcom.com

6.8 VIGIL MECHANISM (WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY)

Board has also approved and laid down Vigil/Whistle-blower
mechanism for employees and Directors and same has been
posted in the website of the Company www.ortelcom.com

6.9 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY

A Corporate Social Responsibility policy of the Company has
also been adopted and posted in the website of the Company
: www.ortelcom.com

6.10 POLICY ON PRESERVATION OF RECORDS

Board has approved and laid down policy on preservation
of records and same has been posted in the website of the
Company: www.ortelcom.com

6.11 DECLARATION OF COMPLIANCE OF CODE OF CONDUCT

As provided under Schedule-V of the Securities and

http://www.ortelcom.com
http://www.ortelcom.com
http://www.ortelcom.com
http://www.ortelcom.com
http://www.ortelcom.com
http://www.ortelcom.com
http://www.ortelcom.com
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Exchange Board of  Ind ia (L i st ing  Obl igat ions and
Di scl osure  Requ irements)  Regu lat ions,  2015,  t he
Board has approved and laid down a code of conduct
for al l  Board  members,  Key and Senior Managerial
personnel's of the Company and same has been posted
in the website of the Company www.ortelcom.com

6.12 DETAILS OF NON-COMPLIANCE BY THE COMPANY

The Company has not filed the financial results as per
Regulation 33 for the quarter ended 30.06.2019, 30.09.2019
and 31.12.2019 by the stipulated date i.e. 14.08.2019,
14.11.2019 and 14.02.2020 respectively. Therefore the
company shal l be treated as non-compliant  with
regulation 33 of the Listing Regulation and SEBI circular
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2018/77 dated May 03, 2018 (SOP
Circular) for the quarter ended 30.06.2019, 30.09.2019
and 31.12.2019.

6.13 COMPLIANCE WITH THE MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS
AND IMPLEMENTATION OF THE NON-MANDATORY
REQUIREMENTS

The Company has complied with the mandatory requirements
of the Corporate Governance Clause of SEBI (LODR). The
Company has not implemented the non-mandatory
requirements as specified in Part E of Schedule II of SEBI
(LODR).

6.14 WEBSITE OF THE COMPANY

The website www.ortelcom.com contains a separate
dedicated section for the Company's "Investor Relations"
where shareholders' information is available. The full Annual
Report, shareholding pattern etc. is also available in the
'Investor Relations'  sections on the website of the
Company.

6.15 DISCLOSURES ON MATERIALLY SIGNIFICANT RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS THAT MAY HAVE POTENTIAL
CONFLICT WITH THE INTERESTS OF LISTED ENTITY AT
LARGE

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2020, there
were no  mater ia l l y s i gn i f icant  re lated part y
transactions, which had potential conflict with the
interests of the Company at large. The transactions
with related parties are d isclosed in the Notes to
financial statements.

6.16 WEB LINK WHERE POLICY FOR DETERMINING MATERIAL
SUBSIDIARIES IS DISCLOSED

The policy for determining 'material' subsidiaries is available
on the website of the Company http://www.ortelcom.com/
investor-relations.html.

6.17 WEB LINK WHERE POLICY ON DEALING WITH RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Th e  p o l i c y  o n  d e a l i n g  w i t h  r e l a t e d  p a r t y
t ransact ions  i s  ava i lab le  on  t he web s i t e  o f  t he

C om p an y:  h t t p : / /w ww. or t e l co m .c o m/ i nv es t o r -
relations.html

6.18 CERTIFICATE FROM PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARIES

Certificate from a company secretary in practice on
directors debarred or disqualified from being appointed or
continuing as directors of companies is not applicable as
the company is under CIRP.

6.19 INSTANCES OF NOT ACCEPTING ANY RECOMMENDATION
OF THE COMMITTEE BY THE BOARD

Disclosure on non-acceptance of any recommendation
of any committee of the board which is mandatorily
required is not applicable as the company is under
CIRP.

6.20 FEES TO THE STATUTORY AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY

Details of total fees for paid by the Company on a
consolidated basis to M/s K.Prasad & Co.,Chartered
Accountants, Statutory Auditors of the Company, during
the financial year are as under:

Particulars Amount (Rs)

Fees paid for Statutory Audit for
the FY 2019-20 8,10,000

Fee for other services including
reimbursement of expenses 30,891

6.21 DISCLOSURE IN RELATION TO THE SEXUAL
HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT,
2013

The Company has in place a Policy on prevention of
Sexual Harassment in line with the requirements of The
Sexual  Harassment of  Women at  the Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. During
the year, no complaint was received by the Company
from any employees (permanent, contractual, temporary,
trainees).

6.22 THE COMPANY COMPLIED WITH THE REQUIREMENTS
OF THE SCHEDULE V CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT SUB-PARAS (2) TO (10) OF THE SECURITIES
AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (LISTING
OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS)
REGULATIONS, 2015.

6.23 THE DISCLOSURES OF THE COMPLIANCE WITH
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REQUIREMENTS SPECIFIED
IN REGULATION 17 TO 27AND CLAUSES (B) TO (I) OF
SUB-REGULATION (2) OF REGULATION 46 ARE AS
FOLLOWS:

http://www.ortelcom.com
http://www.ortelcom.com
http://www.ortelcom.com/
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6.24 DETAILS OF NON-COMPLIANCE BY THE COMPANY,
PENALTIES, AND STRICTURES IMPOSED ON THE COMPANY
BY STOCK EXCHANGE AND/OR SEBI AND/OR ANY STATUTORY
AUTHORITY ON ANY MATTER RELATED TO CAPITAL MARKETS
DURING THE LAST THREE YEARS: NIL

6.25 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) CERTIFICATION, ISSUED
PURSUANT TO THE REGULATION 17(8) OF SEBI (LISTING
OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS)
REGULATIONS, 2015.

6.26 COMPLIANCE WITH MANDATORY AND NON-MANDATORY
REQUIREMENTS

All the mandatory requirements of Listing Regulation on
Corporate Governance are being complied with and non-
mandatory requirements of the Corporate Governance are
being reviewed by the Board from time to time and adopted
wherever necessary. The statutes of compliance with
discretionary recommendations of the Regulation 27 of the
Listing Regulations are summarized below:

 "Non-Executive Chairman's Office: Since the company
is under CIRP, hence it is not applicable.

 "Shareholders' Rights: As the quarterly and half yearly
financial results alongwith significant events are posted
on the Company's website and website of both BSE
Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Ltd and
are also published in the news papers wherever
required under regulation, the same are not being
sent to the share holders separately.

 "Modified Opinion in Auditors Report: The Company's
financial statement for the financial year 2019-20 does
not contain any modified audit opinion but contain
disclaimer of opinion.

 " Separate posts of Chairman and CEO:Since the
company is under CIRP, hence it is not applicable.

 "Reporting of Internal Auditor: M/s SBN & Associates,
Chartered Accountants, Internal Auditors of the
Company produce the Internal Audit reports to the
RP and have free access to report directly.

 7. RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AUDIT

A qualified practicing company secretary carried out audit
to reconcile the total admitted equity share capital with
National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and Physical Shares
with the total issued and listed capital. The audit confirmed
that the total issued/ paid-up capital is in agreement with
the total number of shares in physical form and total number
of dematerialized shares held with NSDL and CDSL.

8. DECLARATION

As provided under Regulation 17(5) and Regulation 26(3) of
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations,2015, a copy of the Code of Conduct has been
put on the Company's website: www.ortelcom.com

Srigopal Choudhary
Resolution Professional

For Ortel Communications Limited (under CIRP)
Address - Flat 7J, Tower-3, South City

375 P.A.S. Road, Kolkata - 700068
Registration No- IBBI/IPA-001/IPP-01238/2018-19/11893

Place: Kolkata
Date: July 31, 2020

Regulation Particulars of Regulation Compliance Status

(Yes/ No)

17 Board of Directors Yes

18 Audit Committee Yes

19 Nomination and Remuneration Committee Yes

20 Stake Holders Relationship Committee Yes

21 Risk Management Committee N.A

22 Vigil Mechanism Yes

23 Related Party Transactions Yes

24 Corporate Governance requirement with respect of

Subsidiary of Listed entity Yes

25 Obligation with respect to Independent Director Yes

26 Obligation with respect to Directors and Senior Management Yes

27 Other Corporate Governance Requirement Yes

46(2) (b) to (i) Website Yes

http://www.ortelcom.com
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To,
The Resolution Professional
Ortel Communications Ltd. (under CIRP)

Dear Sir,

Sub: CFO Certificate

We have reviewed the financial statements, read with the cash flow statement of Ortel Communications Ltd (under CIRP)
for the year ended 31st March, 2020 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief, hereby state that:

i. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements
that may be misleading;

ii. These statements present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with current accounting
standards, applicable laws and regulations.

iii. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year
which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the Company's code of conduct.

iv. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting. We have evaluated
the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and have disclosed to
the Auditors and the Resolution Professional, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any,
of which we are aware and steps taken or proposed to be taken for rectifying these deficiencies.

v. There has not been any significant change in internal control over financial reporting during the year under reference.

vi. There has not been any significant change in accounting policies during the year requiring disclosure in the notes to
the financial statements.

We are aware of any instance during the year of significant fraud with involvement therein of the management or any
employee having a significant role in the Company's internal control system over financial reporting.

Yours sincerely,

Sd/-

Bidu Bhusan Dash
CFO & Company Secretary

Place: Bhubaneswar
Date: July 31, 2020
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9. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

9.1 QUARTERLY RESULTS:

i. The quarterly,  half-yearly and yearly financial
results of  the Company are sent to the Stock
Exchanges immediately after same are approved by
the Board/RP.

ii. These quarterly and annual financial results of the
Company is published in either in New Delhi Business
Standard (English and Hindi Newspaper), Delhi Business
Standard (English Newspaper) and Delhi Pioneer (Hindi
Newspaper) and the said financial result is further
submitted to the National Stock Exchange of India
Limited and BSE Limited and are simultaneously posted
on the website of the Company at
www.ortelcom.com. The official press releases and
presentation made to Institutional Investors / Analysts
are also uploaded on the website of National Stock
Exchange of India Ltd, the Bombay Stock Exchange

of India Ltd and Company's website for public
information.

iii. The Management Discussion and Analysis Report is
attached and forms part of this Annual Report.

9.2 COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr.Bidu Bhusan Dash
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Ortel Communications Limited (under CIRP)
C-1, Chandrasekharpur, Behind RMRC, Near BDA Colony,
Bhubaneswar-751016, Odisha
Email: bidu.dash@ortel group.com
Phone: 0674- 7107200, Fax: 011-46868801

9.3 STATUS OF THE COMPLAINTS

During the financial year 2019-20, no grievance from
investors was received and therefore there were no
complaints pending as at end of the year.

Received from Received 
During 

FY 2019-20 

Redressed 
during 

FY 2019-20 
 

Pending as on 
31.03.2020 

SEBI 0 0 0 
NSE 0 0 0 
BSE 0 0 0 
NSDL/CDSL 0 0 0 
DIRECT FROM INVESTORS 0 0 0 

 
TOTAL 0 0 0 

 

http://www.ortelcom.com.
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9.4 SHARE TRANSFERS IN PHYSICAL MODE

Shares sent for physical transfer are generally registered and returned within a period of 15 days from the date of receipt,
if the documents are complete in all respects.There was no transfer of shares held in physical form reported during the
financial year 2019-20.

10. GENERAL SHAREHOLERS INFORMATION

10.1 25TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

10.2 STOCK MARKET PRICE DATA

a) BSE LIMITED

Monthly High and Low of closing prices of the Company's
Equity Shares traded at BSE Limited for the financial year
ended 31st March, 2020 is given below:

b) NATIONAL STOCK EXCHANGE OF INDIA LIMITED

Monthly High and Low of Closing prices of the Company's
Equity Shares traded at National Stock Exchange of India
Limited for the financial year ended 31st March, 2020 is
given below:

Date & Time 30.09.2020 & 11:30 A.M. 
Venue Through Video Conference (VC) / Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM) 
FinancialYear The Company follows April-March as its financial year. The results for 

every quarter beginning from April are declared as per the SEBI (LODR). 
Dates of Book closure From 23-09-2020 TO 30-09- 2020 (both days inclusive) 
Dividend Payment Date NIL 
Listing in information The Company’s equity shares are listed on National Stock Exchange of 

India Limited and BSE Limited. 
 
NATIONAL STOCK EXCHANGE OF INDIA LIMITED 
Address: Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block G, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra 
(East), Mumbai-400051 
 
BSE LIMITED 
Address: P .J. Towers, 1st Floor, Dalal Street, Mumbai-400001 

Annual listing fee Annual listing fee for the financial year 2019-20 shall be paid to National 
Stock Exchange of India  Limited and BSE Limited. 

ScripCode BSE: 539015  
NSE:ORTEL 

ISIN INE849L01019 
Market Price  Data The high/low market price shown during the period 1st April, 2019 to 

31st March, 2020 a t the BSE and NSE are as under. 
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There was no suspension of trading in Securities of the
Company during the year under review.

10.3 DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES AND LIQUIDITY

a) The shares of the Company are compulsorily in demat
segment and are available for trading in the depository
systems of both the depositories i.e. National Securities
Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India)
Limited under the ISIN:INE849L01019.

b)As on 31st March, 2020, except 336481 equity shares, all
the shares are held in dematerialized form.

c)The Company has not issued any outstanding GDR's/ADR's/
Warrants or any convertible instruments pending conversion
and hence it does not have any outstanding GDR's/ADR's/
Warrants or any convertible instruments pending conversion
likely to impact the Equity Share Capital of the Company.

10.4 DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON 31ST MARCH,
2020

10.5 CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS AS ON 31ST MARCH,
2020

10.6 REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENTS (RTA)

KFin Technologies Pvt. Ltd.

Selenium Tower B, Plot Nos. 31 & 32, Financial District

Nanakramguda, Serilingampally Mandal, Hyderabad - 500032,
India

Members may contact RTA for any share related matters
like transfer, transmiss ion, dematerial ization,
rematerialisation and other share related matter.

10.7 DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES & LIQUIDITY

The Company's shares are connected under both the
Depository Systems in India viz. NSDL & CDSL and are
compulsorily traded in dematerialization form on both NSE

and BSE. The equity shares of the Company representing
98.98% of the Company's equity share capital are
dematerialized as on 31st March, 2020. The International
Securities Identification Number (ISIN) allotted to the
Company's equity shares under the Depository System is
INE849L01019.

10.8 SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM

Shares in physical form for transfer, should be lodged with
the office of the Company's Registrar & Share Transfer Agent,
KFin Technologies Pvt. Ltd at the addresses given above or
at the registered office of the Company. The physical share
transfers are processed and the share certificates are
returned to the shareholders within a maximum period of
15 days from the date of receipt, subject to the documents
being valid and complete in all respects. All the valid transfers
are approved by Stakeholders Grievance Committee and are
noted at Board Meetings.

However as per SEBI Notification No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/
2018/24 dated June 8, 2018 and further amendment vide
Notification No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/49 dated November
30, 2018, requests for effecting transfer of securities (except
in case of transmission or transposition of securities) shall
not be processed from April 1, 2019 unless the securities
are held in the dematerialised form with the depositories.
Therefore, Shareholders are requested to take action to
dematerialize the Equity Shares of the Company, promptly.

10.9 RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AUDIT

As required by Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI),
a qualified practicing Company Secretary carries out the
Share Capital Audit to reconcile the total admitted capital
with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and
Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the
total issued and listed capital. This audit is carried out every
quarter and the report thereon is submitted to stock
exchanges.

10.10 OUTSTANDING GDRS/ADRS/WARRANTS OR ANY
CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS

NIL

10.11 STATE WISE OPERATIONAL LOCATIONS

Odisha, AndhraPradesh, Telengana, MadhyaPradesh.

10.12 ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE
Registered & Head Office:
B-7/122A, Safdarjung Enclave, New Delhi - 110 029, India;
Telephone: +91 114686 8800; Facsimile: +91 11 4686 8801
Corporate Office:
C-1, Chandrasekharpur, Near BDA Colony, Behind RMRC,
Bhubaneswar - 751 016, Odisha, India,
Telephone:+916747107200; Facsimile: +916742303448,
Email:bidu.dash@ortelgroup.com;
Website:www.ortelcom.com

mailto:Email:bidu.dash@ortelgroup.com;
http://www.ortelcom.com
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To,
The Members
Ortel Communications Limited (Under CIRP)
B7/122A,Safdarjung Enclave
New Delhi-110029

The Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process of the Company
commenced vide order dated 27th November, 2018 passed
by Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), New Delhi
Bench, in the matter of C.P.No.IB-761/ (ND)/2018 under the
provisions of Section 9 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code, 2016 ("the Code") based on the application filed by
Sony Pictures Networks India Pvt. Ltd., an operational
creditor of the Company. Mr. Anil Bhatia (Reg. No. IBBI/IPA-
001/IP-P00587/2017-18/11027) was appointed as Interim
Resolution Professional ('IRP') to carry on the functions of
an IRP, as defined under the provisions of the IBC, until
replaced by the Resolution Professional ('RP'). The Committee
of Creditors ('CoC') in its meeting held on 07th January, 2019
had passed a resolution proposing to replace the IRP and
appoint Mr. Srigopal Choudhary (Reg.No.IBBI/IPA-001/IP-
P01238/2018-2019/11893) as the RP which was confirmed by
NCLT vide its order dated 1st February, 2019 to carry out
the activities relating to CIRP as per the rules, regulations
and guidelines prescribed by the Code.

The powers of the Board are suspended and vested with
the Resolution Professional ("RP") who is appointed by the
Committee of Creditors ("CoC").

The NCLT has also declared a moratorium for the Corporate
Debtor (Ortel) as per Section 14 of IBC, 2016 on the
Insolvency Commencement date till the CIRP process is over.
During the CIRP, resolution plans ("Resolution Plan") was
received by the Resolution Professional and the Resolution
Plan was placed before the COC for approval and the
approved Resolution Plan was filed with the Hon'ble NCLT,
New Delhi on 26th August, 2019 for approval under Section
31 of the Code. The application filed by the Resolution
Professional for approval of Resolution Plan is currently
pending adjudication before the Adjudicating Authority. In
terms of Section 25 of the Code, the Company is continuing

Annexure-2

MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

to operate as a going concern. Where at any time during
the corporate insolvency resolution process period, if the
Adjudicating Authority approves the resolution plan under
sub-section (1) of section 31 or passes an order for
liquidation of corporate debtor under section 33, the
moratorium shall cease to have effect from the date of
such approval or liquidation order, as the case may be.

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance
of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to
good corporate practices by Ortel Communications Limited
(hereinafter called the "Company")for the period 1.4.2019
to 31.3.2020. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner
that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing
my opinion thereon.

1. Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers,
minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I
hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during
the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st
March 2020 ('Audit Period') complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has
proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place
to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter:-

2. I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms
and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company for the financial year ended on 31st March 2020
according to the provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made
thereunder;

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA')
and the rules made thereunder;

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and
Bye- laws framed thereunder;
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iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules
and regulations made thereunder to the extent of
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment
and External Commercial Borrowings;

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 ('SEBI Act'): -

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial
Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition
of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share
Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014.

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and
Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars
to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting
of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009, (Not applicable to
the Company during the Audit Period); and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback
of Securities) Regulations, 1998 (Not applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period).

(i) Any other applicable laws like Factories Act, 1948, the
payments of Gratuity Act, 1972.

3. I have also examined compliance with the applicable
clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of
Company Secretaries of India

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company
with Stock Exchanges in compliance with The Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015

4. During the period under review the Company has
complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned
above subject to the following observations:-

4.1 Delay in announcement of financial results for the
quarter April-June 2019, July-September 2019 and
October-December 2019.

4.2 Company is under CIRP; hence powers of Board of
directors aresuspended. Consequently, no Board or
CommitteeMeetings were held during the period
under review.

5. I further Report that since the Company is under
Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process the powers
of the Board of Directors are suspended and the role
and responsibilities of the Board of Directors and
Committee of Directors are being fulfilled by the
Resolution Professional in accordance with Sections
17 and 23 of the IBC.

I further report that there are adequate systems and
processes in the Company commensurate with the size and
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

6. I further report that, having regard to the compliance
system prevailing in the Company and on examination
of the relevant documents and records in pursuance
thereof, on test-check basis, the Company has
complied with the following laws applicable specifically
to the Company:

(i) Consumer Complaint Redressal (Digital Addressable
Cable TV Systems) Regulations, 2012

(ii) Quality of Service of Broadband Service Regulations,
2006

(iii) The Direct to Home Broadcasting Services (Standards
of Quality of Service and Redressal of Grievances)
Regulations, 2007

(iv) The Indian Telegraph Act, 1885 ("Telegraph Act")

(v) The Indian Wireless Telegraphy Act, 1933 ("Wireless
Telegraphy Act")

(vi) The Sports Broadcasting Signals (Mandatory Sharing
with Prasar Bharati) Act, 2007 ("Mandatory Signal
Sharing Act")

(vii) The Telecom Regulatory Authority of India Act, 1997
("TRAI Act")

(viii) The Policy Guidelines for Up linking of Television
Channels from India, 2011 ("uplinking Guidelines")
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(ix) Guidelines and General Information for Grant of
License for Operating Internet Services dated August
24, 2007 ("ISP License Guidelines")

(x) Broadband Policy, 2004 ("Broadband Policy")

(xi) Guidelines for Issue of Permission to Offer Internet
Telephony Services, 2002 ("Internet Telephony
Guidelines")

(xii) Guidelines for Permission to Offer Virtual Private
Network (VPN) Services by Internet Service Providers
(ISPs), 2004 ("VPN Guidelines")

(xiii) National Tariff Policy, 2012 ("NTP 2012") to the extent
applicable to the Company.

(xiv) The Telecommunication Tariff Order, 1999 ("Tariff Order
1999") and any amendment thereof.

(xv) Information Technology Act, 2000

7. This report is to be read with our letter of even date
which is annexed as Annexure A and Forms an integral
part of this report.

Sd/-
For Kumar Suresh & Associates

Suresh Kumar Yadav
Company Secretaries

FCS No.6452
C P No.:6711

Place: Gurugram
Date: July 31, 2020

 Annexure-A

To,
Ortel Communications Ltd. (Under CIRP)
B7/122A, Safdarjung Enclave
New Delhi-110029

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility
of the management of the company. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these secretarial records
based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes
as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the
Secretarial records. The verification was done on test
basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. We believe that the processes
and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and
appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the company.

4. Whereever required, we have obtained the
Management representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events
etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and
other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is
the responsibility of management. Our examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance
as to the future viability of the company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management
has conducted the affairs of the company.

Sd/-
For Kumar Suresh & Associates

Suresh Kumar Yadav
Company Secretaries

FCS No.6452
C P No.:6711

Place: Gurugram
Date: July 31, 2020
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AOC-2 Annexure-3
(Amount in Rs.)
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Annexure-4

PART-I

Disclosure of the particulars as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, for the Financial Year 2019-20 in respect of employees
of the Company, is provided herein below.

(a)  RATIO OF REMUNERATION OF EACH OF DIRECTOR / KMP TO THE MEDIAN *REMUNERATION OF THE EMPLOYEES

*Median means the numerical value separating the higher half of a population from the lower half and the median of a finite
list of numbers may be found by arranging all the observations from lowest value to highest value and picking the middle
one.

** Resigned as President & CEO w.e.f. 05.03.2020

(b) PERCENTAGE INCREASE IN THE REMUNERATION

* Resigned as President & CEO w.e.f. 05.03.2020

Note:

(c) There have been 3.30% of increase in the median remuneration of employees during the financial year 2019-20.

(d) There are 611 permanent employees on the rolls of company.

(e) Average salary of employees and managerial remuneration of managerial personnel of the Company in the financial
year, i.e. 2019-20 is decreased.

(f) There is no such employee in the Company who receives remuneration in excess of the highest paid Director during
the year.

(g) It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and other employees.

Sl.No Directors/KMPs Designation Ratio of remuneration of each Director/KMP to the 
median* remuneration of the employees of the 
Company for FY 2019-20 

1 Director Managing Director (12:1,33,044) = 00.00 
2 KMP President & CEO** (48,69,654:1,33,044) = 45.52 
3 KMP CFO & CS (12,54,248: 1,33,044) = 14.59 

Sl.No. Name Designation Remuneration 
paid in FY  

2018-19(Rs.) 

Remuneration 
paid in FY  

2019-20(Rs.) 

Percentage(%) 
increase/(decrease) 

in remuneration 
1 Jagi Mangat Panda Managing 

Director 
44,22,847 12 

-99.99 
2 Bibhu Prasad Rath* President  

& CEO 
58,62,156 48,69,654 

-16.93 
3 Bidu Bhusan Dash CFO & CS 10,95,384 12,54,248 14.50 
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1. PREAMBLE

The Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable rules made
thereunder and the listing agreement applicable to the
Company on l isting requires the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee to formulate a policy relating to
appointment, remuneration, retirement and removal of
Director(s)/ Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) and Senior
Management Personnel. This policy has been formulated in
compliance with above regulation.

2. DEFINITIONS

"Act" means the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed there
under, as amended from time to time.

"Board" means Board of Directors of the Company.

"Directors" mean Directors of the Company.

"Key Managerial Personnel",in relation to a company, means

i. the Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director,
or the Manager;

ii. the Company Secretary;

iii. the whole-time director;

iv. the Chief Financial Officer;

v. such other officer, not more than one level below the
directors who is in whole-time employment, designated
as key managerial personnel by the Board; and

(vi) Such other officer as may be prescribed.

"Senior Management" means the personnel of the company
who are members of its Core Management Team excluding
Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the
level GM and above.

Unless the context otherwise requires, words and
expressions used in this policy and not defined herein but
defined in the Companies Act, 2013 as may be amended
from time to time shall have the meaning respectively
assigned to them therein.

3. POLICY ON BOARD DIVERSITY

The Board of Directors shall have the optimum combination
of Directors including one Woman Director from different
areas/fields like production, Technology Management,

Annexure-5

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

Finance, Sales & Marketing, Human Resources, Administration
etc. or as may be considered appropriate.

The Board shall have at least one Board member who has
accounting or related financial management expertise and
at least three members who are financially literate.

4. POLICY FOR APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR,
KMPS

4. 1. Appointment Criteria and Qualifications

(a) The Committee shall identify and ascertain the
integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of
the person for appointment as Director, KMP or at
Senior Management level and recommend to the Board
his / her appointment.

(b) A person should possess adequate qualification,
expertise and experience for the position he / she is
considered for appointment. The Committee has
discretion to decide whether qualification, expertise
and experience possessed by a person is sufficient /
satisfactory for the concerned position.

(c) The Company shall not appoint or continue the
employment of any person as Whole-time Director who
has attained the age of 70 (seventy) years. Provided
that the term of the person holding this position may
be extended beyond the age of 70 (seventy) years
with the approval of shareholders by passing a special
resolution based on the explanatory statement
annexed to the notice for such motion indicating the
justification for extension of appointment beyond 70
(seventy) years.

4.2. Term / Tenure

(a) Managing Director/Whole-time Director

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its
Executive Chairman, Managing Director or Executive Director
for a term not exceeding five years at a time. No re-
appointment shall be made earlier than one year before
the expiry of term.

(b) Independent Director

An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to
five consecutive years on the Board of the Company and
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will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special
resolution by the Company and disclosure of such
appointment in the Board's report.

No Independent Director shall hold office for more than
two consecutive terms of upto maximum of 5 years each,
but such Independent Director shall be eligible for
appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to
become an Independent Director. Provided that an
Independent Director shall not, during the said period of
three years, be appointed in or be associated with the
Company in any other capacity, either directly or indirectly.

At the time of appointment of Independent Director it
should be ensured that number of Boards on which such
Independent Director serves is restricted to seven listed
companies as an Independent Director and three listed
companies as an Independent Director in case such person
is serving as a Whole-time Director of a listed company or
such other number as may be prescribed under the Act.

4.3. Removal

The Committee may recommend, to the Board with reasons
recorded in writing, removal of a Director, KMP subject to
the provisions and compliance of the said Act, rules and
regulations.

4.4. Retirement

The KMPs who is not Directors shall retire as per prevailing
policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion
to retain KMP in the same position/ remuneration or
otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, for the
benefit of the Company on the recommendation of
President  & CEO.

4.5. Remuneration

1. Remuneration to Managing / Whole-time / Executive-
Director

The Remuneration/Compensation/Commission etc. to be
paid to Director/Managing Director etc. shall be governed
as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made
there under or any other enactment for the time being in
force and on the recommendation of Committee to the
Board for its approval.

2. Remuneration to Non-Executive / Independent
Director

The Non-Executive Independent Director may receive
remuneration/compensation/ commission as per the

provisions of Companies Act, 2013. The amount of sitting
fees shall be subject to ceiling/ limits as provided under
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any
other enactment for the time being in force and on the
recommendation of Committee to the Board for its approval.

3. Remuneration to KMP

The Committee will recommend the remuneration to be
paid to the KMP to the Board for their approval as per the
provisions of the Act/ Policy of the Company. The level and
composition of remuneration so determined by the
Committee shall be reasonable and sufficient to attract,
retain and motivate Directors or KMPS of the quality
required to run the Company successfully. The relationship
of remuneration to performance should be clear and meet
appropriate performance benchmarks. The remuneration
should also involve a balance between fixed and variable
pay reflecting short and long term performance objective
appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.

5. POLICY FOR APPOINTMENT, REMUNERATION,
RETIREMENT AND REMOVAL OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL

5.1. Appointment criteria and qualification

(a) The Committee shall identify and ascertain the
integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of
the person for appointment at Senior Management
level and recommended to the Board his / her
appointment.

(b) A person should possess adequate qualification,
functional expertise and experience for the position
he/ she is considered for appointment. The Committee
has discretion to decide whether qualification,
expertise and experience possessed by a person is
sufficient/ satisfactory for the concerned position.

5.2.  Retirement & Removal

The Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the
prevailing policy of the Company. The Committee will have
the discretion to retain the Senior Manager Personnel in
the same position/remuneration or otherwise even after
attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the Company
based on the recommendation of President & CEO.

The senior management personnel shall be removed after
taking appropriate disciplinary action due to any breach of
code of conduct/ethics and/or any misconduct during the
service.
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5.3. Remuneration

The Committee will recommend the remuneration to be
paid to the senior management Personnel to the Board
for thei r approval.  The level  and composi t ion of
remuneration so determined by the Committee shall be
reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate
senior management of the quality required to run the
Company successfully. The same should be reviewed
periodically to make any adjustment based on the
market.

The remuneration of such persons shall be in accordance
with performance criteria defined for the role through
performance management system to achieve the company's
goal. The remuneration should be a balance of fixed and
incentive pay which will be determined by fixed pay

components and executive incentives scheme applicable
to their level as and when in place.

6. REVIEW AND AMENDMENT

i. The NRC or the Board may review the Policy as and
when it deems necessary.

ii. The NRC may issue the guidelines, procedures, formats,
reporting mechanism and manual in supplement and
better implementation to this Policy, if it thinks
necessary.

iii. This Policy may be amended or substituted by the
NRC or by the Board as and when required and also
by the President & CEO /Compliance Officer where
there is any statutory changes necessitating the
change in the policy.
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ORTEL COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
Disclaimer of Opinion

We were engaged to audit the accompanying Standalone
financial statements of ORTEL COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
("the Company") which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
31st March, 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes
in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow for the year then
ended and a Summary of significant accounting and other
explanatory information.

We do not express an opinion on the accompanying
standalone financial statements of the company in view of
the significance of the matters described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report. We have not
been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these standalone
financial statements.

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

a) As mentioned in Note No. 53 to the standalone
financial statements, no impairment assessment of
Property, Plant and Equipment, Capital Work-in-
Progress, Goodwill and Stores & Spares in carrying
values of these assets as at 31st March, 2020, has
been made by the Company. Therefore, we are
unable to comment on the consequential
impairment, if any, that is required to be made in
the carrying value of Property, Plant and Equipment,
Capital Work-in-Progress, Goodwill and Stores &
Spares. Hence we are unable comment on the
carrying value of Property, Plant & Equipments as
shown in standalone financial statements as at 31st
March, 2020.

b) In respect of Company's borrowings from banks and
financial institutions (including NBFCs) aggregating to
Rs 16,644.37 lakhs and bank balances (current accounts
and term deposits) aggregating to Rs 343.83 lakhs,
independent balance confirmations as at 31st March,
2020 have not been received.

c) We have been inf ormed by the Resolut ion
Professional that certain information including the
minutes of meetings of the Committee of Creditors
are confidential in nature and cannot be shared
with anyone other than the Committee of Creditors
and NCLT. Accordingly, i t is not practicable to
comment on the possible financial effects on the
standalone f inancial  statements, including  on

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of

presentation, reporting and disclosures, if any, that
may have arisen if we had been provided access to
those information.

d) As a part of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process
(CIRP), creditors were called upon to submit their
claims. Till the date of our signing of the standalone
financial statements, claims submitted by creditors have
not been reconciled with the books of accounts of
the Company. Pending such reconciliation and final
outcome of the CIRP, no accounting impact in the
books of accounts has been made in respect of excess,
short or non-receipts of claims for operational and
financial creditors.

e) The Company has given advances for supplies / services
and the amount outstanding there as at 31st March,
2020 was Rs.1,928.34 lakhs. However, we have been
unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding certain aspects of the aforesaid advances
viz ageing analysis and the basis on which the same
will be adjusted in subsequent period. Hence, we are
unable to comment on the aforesaid advances and it
is not practicable to quantify the financial effects of
the same, if  any, on the standalone financial
statements.

f) As at 31st March, 2020, the Company is having
liabilities against "Creditors for Capital Goods" and
"Liability for Operating Expenses" amounting to
Rs.6,990.96 lakhs and Rs. 4,388.29 lakhs respectively.
However, we have been unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding certain aspects
of the aforesaid liabilities viz aging analysis and the
basis on which the aforesaid liabilities will be settled
subsequently. Hence, we are unable to comment on
the balances appearing under the aforesaid liabilities
and it is not practicable to quantify the financial
effects of the same, if any, on the standalone financial
statements.

g) The Company is having a non-current investment of
Rs.211.28 lakhs in equity shares of Odisha Television
Limited, an unquoted company, as at 31st March, 2020.
Original investment made by the Company was Rs.
32,50,000 (3,25,000 equity shares of Rs.10 each). In
the absence of the fair valuation of the said investments
at 31st March, 2020, we are unable to comment on
the carrying value of such investment as at 31st March,
2020 in standalone financial statements and related
re-measurement gain/ loss, if any, on the said
investment.



60

25th ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20

Key Audit Matters

Key  audit matters  are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of  most significance  in our
audit of the  financial statements of  the  current  period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the financial statements as a whole and in forming our
opinion. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note No. 50 to the standalone
financial statements which indicates that due to the events
or conditions as mentioned in the said Note, material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern and,
therefore, it may be unable to realize its assets and discharge
its liabilities in the normal course of business. However, the
standalone financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis for the reason stated in the same Note.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with
Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal ('NCLT'), New
Delhi Branch, admitted a petition for initiation of CIRP u/s
9 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 ('IBC') filed
by one of the operational creditors of the Company vide
order dated 27th November, 2018 and appointed an Interim
Resolution Professional ('IRP') to manage the affairs of the
Company in accordance with the provisions of IBC. The
Committee of Creditors ('CoC') in its meeting held on 7th
January, 2019 passed a resolution proposing to replace the
IRP and appoint a Resolution Professional ('RP') which was
confirmed by NCLT vide its order dated 1st February, 2019.
In view of pendency of the CIRP and in view of suspension
of powers of Board of Directors and explained to us, the
power of adaption of the standalone financial statements
of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2020 vests
with the Resolution Professional (refer Note No. 1 to the
standalone financial statements).

The Company's Resolution Professional is responsible for the
matters stated in section 136(5) of the Companies Act,
2013('the Act') with respect to the preparation of these
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance
including other comprehensive income, change in equity
and cash flow of the Company in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standard ("IND AS") specified under section 133
of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standard) Rule, 2015, as amended and other accounting
principle generally accepted in India. This responsibility also
includes maintenance  of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making  judgements and

estimates that are responsible and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the
Resolution Professional is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Resolution
Professional either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
so.

The Resolution Professional is also responsible for overseeing
the Company's financial process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Company's
standalone financial statements in accordance with
Standards on Auditing issue by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ("ICAI") and to issue an auditor's report.
However, because of the matters described in the Basis of
Disclaimer of opinion section of our report, we were not
able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
provide a basis for an audit opinion on these standalone
financial statements.

We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issue by ICAI and provisions  of the Act
that are relevant to our audit if the standalone financial
statements in India under Act, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issue by ICAI and the requirements under the Act.

Other Matters

In view of lockdown imposed nationwide since 23rd March,
2020 due to COVID-19 pandemic and imposition of travel
restrictions, physical verification of books of accounts,
documents, other audit evidences and face to face
discussion with management of the Company, in person,
could not be done by us. We have relied on documents
provided to us electronically over mail. We have  received
the internal  audit report for Q1, Q2, Q3 and Q4 but  due
to travel restrictions we  are unable  to verify the
observations as given  by the internal auditors and  have
relied on such reports of  internal auditor. We could not
verify physical cash balance as on 31st March, 2020 in
different location of the company and have relied on the
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certificate provided by the management for the cash
balance of Rs. 46.93 lakhs (P/Y : Rs. 247.96 lakhs).

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1) As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,
2016 ("the Order") issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of
the Act, we give in "Annexure 1" a  statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
to the extent applicable.

2) As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report
that:

a) As described in the basis for Disclaimer of Opinion
paragraph, we sought but were unable to obtained all
the information and explanation which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purpose of our audit;

b) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of
Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the books of account;

c) The matters described under the Basis for Disclaimer
of Opinion paragraph and Material Uncertainty Related
to going concern paragraph, as above, in our opinion,
may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the
Company;

d) As the company is under CIRP the power of the
directors is temporarily suspended, thus reporting
regarding directors' disqualification under Section
164(2) of the Act is not required;

e) Any qualification, reservation or adverse remark relating
to the maintenance of accounts and other matters
connected therewith is as stated in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph above;

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to the financial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, we give our separate Report in
"Annexure 2".

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in
the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations giving to us :

I. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending
litigations on its financial position in its standalone
financial statements - Refer Note Nos. 38 and 47 to
the standalone financial statements;

II. The Company did not have any long-term contracts
including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses;

III. There were no amounts which were required to be
transfer to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company.

Others: Disclaimer of Opinion

Attention is drawn to Note No. 49 to the standalone
financial statements, regarding non-recognition of interest
subsequent to insolvency commencement date i.e. 27th
November 2018, and also for FY 2019-20 on borrowing from
banks and financial institutions and on non-cumulative,
redeemable cumulative preference shares, which is not
in compliance with the requirements of IND AS - 23 on
"Borrowing Costs" read with IND AS - 109 on "Financial
Instruments". Such charges for FY 2019-20, has not been
computed and disclosed in Notes to Accounts by the
Company. Also, Rs. 1,067.14 lakhs towards interest
calculated during FY 2018-19 which was not considered in
audited standalone financial statements relating to FY 2018-
19, has not been considered in standalone financial
statements for FY 2019-20. Had the aforesaid interest
expenses been recognised, finance costs, total expenses
and loss for the year would have been higher by the said
amount having consequential impact on other current
financial liabilities and other equity. In support of non-
provision of finance costs for FY 2019-20, the Company has
obtained a legal opinion dated 2nd June, 2020, a copy of
which has also been submitted to us. However, the legal
opinion does not provide any specific conclusion for non-
provis ion of " finance cost " in standalone financial
statements.

Place: Kolkata
Date: The 31st day of July, 2020.
UDIN: 20055232AAAAAO8472
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[Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements' in the Independent Auditor's
Report of even date to the members of the Company on
the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st
March, 2020.

(i) (a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing
full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

(b) According to the information and explanations
g iven to us,  the  Company's  Management
("management") physically verifies its fixed assets
annually (except a significant portion of cables and
network equipment for which, as explained to us,
physical verification is not practicable), which, in
our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size
of the Company and the nature of its fixed assets.
As informed,  no material  d i screpancies were
noticed on such verification of fixed assets during
the year.

However we have not received any approved guidelines
/policy followed by the company for the physical
verification of these fixed assets.

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties recorded
in the books of account of the Company are held in
the name of the Company.

(ii) According to the information and explanation given
to us, the inventory has been physically verified by
the management during the year. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification is reasonable. As explained
to us, there were no material discrepancies on physical
verification of inventory as compared to the book
records.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given
to us and on the basis of our examination of the books
of accounts, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the
register maintained under Section 189 of the Act.

ANNEXURE I TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(iv) According to the information and explanations given
to us in respect of loans, investments, guarantees and
security, the Company has compiled with the provisions
of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act.

(v) According to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits
from the public. Also, refer paragraph (f) under 'Basis
for Disclaimer of Opinion' section of our Independent
Auditor's Report on the standalone financial statements
of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2020,
regarding liabilities against 'Creditors for Capital Goods'
and 'Liability for Operating Expenses'.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has been specified
by the Central Government under sub section (1) of
Section 148 of the Act. We have been informed by the
management that the prescribed accounts and records
are in the process of being made and maintained.

(vii) According to the records of the Company, amounts
deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect
of undisputed statutory dues of duty of customs, value
added tax, Profession tax, cess and any other material
statutory dues (except as mentioned herein below)
have generally been regularly deposited with the
appropriate authorities.

According to the records of the Company, amounts
deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect
of undisputed provident fund, employees' state
insurance, income tax, service tax, goods and service
tax and entertainment tax have not been regularly
deposited with the appropriate authorities and there
have been significant delays in depositing the same in
a large number of cases

According to the records of the Company, amounts
deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect
of undisputed service tax, goods and service tax,
income tax and entertainment tax, which were
outstanding as on the last day of the financial year for
a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable, are as follows:
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According to the information and explanation given to us, the dues as at 31st March, 2020 of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service
Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, VAT and GST, which have not been deposited on account of any dispute, are as follows:
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*Rs. 60.06 lakhs has been deposited under protest in this regard.
**Rs. 44.22 lakhs has been deposited under protest in this regard.
***Rs. 0.54 lakhs has been deposited under protest in this regard.

(viii) The Company is under CIRP and hence repayment of all the loans from banks and FIs is on hold.

The above details have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements for the year 2017-18. We have not received
any evidence of the repayment of the above loans during the financial year 2019-20 in view of ongoing of CIRP process.
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Also, refer paragraph (b) under 'Basis for Disclaimer of
Opinion' section of our Independent Auditor's Report on
the standalone financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31st March, 2020.

Further, refer paragraph (d) under 'Basis for Disclaimer of
Opinion' section of our Independent Auditor's Report on
the standalone financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31st March, 2020, which mentions about the
fact that the reconciliation of claims by the financial
creditors with books of accounts is in process.

(ix) The Company has not raised any money during the
year by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (Including debt instruments).

(x) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the
purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
standalone financial statements and as per information
and explanations given to us by the management / RP,
we report that we have neither come across any
instance of fraud by the Company or on the Company
by its officers or employees, noticed or reported
during the year, nor have we been informed of any
such case by the management / RP.

(xi) According to the information and explanations given
to us, managerial remuneration has been paid /

provided in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with
schedule V to the Act .

(xii) The Company is not Nidhi Company.

(xiii) According to the information and explanation given
to us, all transactions entered into by the Company
with related parties are in compliance with section
177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and the details
have been disclosed in the standalone financial
statements etc.

(xiv) As per the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions during the year with former directors or
persons connected with them.

(xvi) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company is not required
to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934.

Place: Kolkata

Date: The 31st day of July , 2020.

UDIN: 20055232AAAAAO8472
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[Referred to in paragraph (2)(f) under 'Report on Other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements' in our Independent Auditor's
Report of even date, to the members of the Company on
the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st
March, 2020]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference
to Financial Statements under clause (i) of sub - section 3
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act'')

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company as of 31st March, 2020 in
conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Resolution Professional is responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls,
based on the internal control with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the Company, considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements were established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial

ANNEXURE - II  TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

controls with reference to financial statements included
obtaining in understanding of internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to
Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to
financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A Company's internal financial
control with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of  records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fai rly ref lect  the transact ions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted account ing
principles and that receipts and expenditures of the
Company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors/RP of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevent ion of t imely detect ion of unauthorised
acquisition, use or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with
reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud
may occur and not to be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us
and based on our audit, the following material weaknesses
have been identified in the operating effectiveness of the
Company's internal financial control with reference to
financial statements as at 31st March, 2020:

a) Deficiencies in documentation in relation to
borrowings [fully described in paragraphs (b) and (d)
under 'Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion' section of our
Independent Auditor's Report on the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31st March, 2020];

b) Ageing analysis etc. pertaining to advances given for
supplies/services [fully described in para (e) under
'Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion' section of our
Independent Auditor's Report on the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31st March,2020;

c) Ageing analysis etc. pertaining to liabilities against
'Creditors for Capital Goods' and 'Liability for Operating
Expenses '[fully described in para (f) under 'Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion' section of our Independent
Auditor's Report on the standalone financial statements
of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2020;

d) Omission to get impairment assessment done in respect
of certain tangible and intangible assets and in
obtaining fair valuation of a non-current investment,
[fully described in paragraphs (a) and (g) respectively,
under 'Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion' section of our
Independent Auditor's Report on the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31st March, 2020].

e) Considering the nature of Company's business involving
multiple operating locations and the risks involved,
during our course of audit, we have not come across
any Risk & Control Matrix, identifying major risks
impacting standalone financial statements of the
company and implementing appropriate control
framework to combat such risks.

A 'material weakness' is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the Company's
annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented
or detected on a timely basis.

In our Opinion, the Company has, in all material respects,
maintained adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements as of 31st March, 2020,
based on the internal control with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note issued by the ICAI, an except for the possible
effects of the material weaknesses described above on the
achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the
Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as of 31st
March, 2020.

We have considered the material weakness identified and
reported above in determining the nature, timing, and extent
of audit tests applied in our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March,
2020, and these material weaknesses have affected our
opinion on the standalone financial statements and we have
issued a disclaimer of opinion on the standalone financial
statements of the Company.

Place: Kolkata
Date: The 31st day of July, 2020.
UDIN: 20055232AAAAAO8472
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For K. Prasad & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 303062E
Santanu Das
Partner
Membership No. F-053226

Place: Kolkata
Date: 31st July, 2020

For and on behalf of Ortel Communications Limited

Bidu Bhushan Dash
CFO & Company Secretary

Taken on record

Srigopal Choudhary
Resolution Professional
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For K. Prasad & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 303062E
Santanu Das
Partner
Membership No. F-053226

Place: Kolkata
Date: 31st July, 2020

For and on behalf of Ortel Communications Limited

Bidu Bhushan Dash
CFO & Company Secretary

Taken on record

Srigopal Choudhary
Resolution Professional
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For K. Prasad & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 303062E
Santanu Das
Partner
Membership No. F-053226

Place: Kolkata
Date: 31st July, 2020

For and on behalf of Ortel Communications Limited

Bidu Bhushan Dash
CFO & Company Secretary

Taken on record

Srigopal Choudhary
Resolution Professional
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For K. Prasad & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 303062E
Santanu Das
Partner
Membership No. F-053226

Place: Kolkata
Date: 31st July, 2020

For and on behalf of Ortel Communications Limited

Bidu Bhushan Dash
CFO & Company Secretary

Taken on record

Srigopal Choudhary
Resolution Professional
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1 General Information

Ortel Communications Limited (‘Ortel’ or 'the Company') is a Public Limited Company incorporated in India. Ortel’s
equity shares are listed on BSE and the National Stock Exchange ('NSE'). The address of the registered office is B7/
122A, Safdarjung Enclave, New Delhi - 110029.

The Company, incorporated in 1995, is a regional cable television service provider engaged primarily in the distribution
of cable television services, high speed broadband services & Voice over Internet Protocol ('VoIP') services.
"Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi Bench (‘NCLT’), in the matter of C.P.No.IB-761/ (ND)/2018 passed
an Order dated 27th November, 2018 for commencement of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (‘CIRP’)
under Section 9 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (‘IBC’) in the matter of Ortel Communications Limited
(‘the Company’) based on the application filed by Sony Pictures Networks India Pvt. Ltd., an operational creditor of
the Company. Mr. Anil Bhatia (Reg. No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00587/2017-18/11027) was appointed as Interim Resolution
Professional (‘IRP’) to carry on the functions of an IRP, as defined under the provisions of the IBC, until replaced by
the Resolution Professional (‘RP’). The Committee of Creditors (‘CoC’) in its meeting held on 07th January, 2019 had
passed a resolution proposing to replace the IRP and appoint Mr. Srigopal Choudhary (Reg. No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-
P01238/2018-2019/11893) as the RP which was confirmed by NCLT vide its order dated 1st February, 2019.““Pursuant
to the order, the management of affairs of the Company and powers of board of directors of the Company are now
vested with the Resolution Professional (“RP”) who is appointed by the Committee of Creditors (“CoC”). ““The NCLT
has also declared a moratorium for the Corporate Debtor (Ortel) as per Section 14 of IBC, 2016 on the Insolvency
Commencement date till the CIRP process is over.During the CIRP, resolution plans (“Resolution Plan”) was received
by the Resolution Professional and the Resolution Plan was placed before the COC for approval and the approved
Resolution Plan was filed with the Hon’ble NCLT, New Delhi on 26th August, 2019 for approval under Section 31 of the
Code. The application filed by the Resolution Professional for approval of Resolution Plan is currently pending
adjudication before the Adjudicating Authority. In terms of Section 25 of the Code, the Company is continuing to
operate as a going concern. where at any time during the corporate insolvency resolution process period, if the
Adjudicating Authority approves the resolution plan under sub-section (1) of section 31 or passes an order for
liquidation of corporate debtor under section 33, the moratorium shall cease to have effect from the date of such
approval or liquidation order, as the case may be.These financial statements pertains to a period post the CIRP and
all operations were being undertaken under the supervision of RP and management of the Company. The RP has
approved the financial statements only for the limited purpose of discharging the powers of the Board of Directors
of the Company, which have been conferred upon him as per the provisions of Section 23 of the IBC.““These financial
statements have been prepared by the management of the Company and certified by Mr. Bidu Bhusan Dash, CFO &
Company Secretary, and taken on record by Resolution Professional Mr. Srigopal Choudhary on 31st July, 2020.

2 Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of Preparation

a. Historical Cost Convention

"“These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments,
employee stock option plan and defined benefit plans that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services."

b. Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In measuring fair value of an asset or liability, the Company takes into
account those characteristics of the assets or liability that market participants would take into account when
pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to
the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

• Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;
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• Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

• Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

c. Functional and Presentational Currency

"“These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR) which is also the functional currency."

d. Rounding off Amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest rupees in Lakhs, as per the
requirements of Schedule III to the Act, unless otherwise stated.

e. Use of Estimates and Judgments

"“The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimates are revised and in any future period affected. Information about critical judgments in applying accounting
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in
the accounting policies and/or in the notes to the financial statements."

2.2 Current versus Non - Current Classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non - current classification. An
asset is treated as current when it is:Fixed Assets

"• Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;“• Held primarily for
the purpose of trading;“• Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or“• Cash or cash
equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.““All other assets are classified as non - current."

"A liability is current when:“• It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;“• It is held primarily for the
purpose of trading;“• It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or“• There is no
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.““All
other liabilities are classified as non - current.“"

The Company has deemed its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current / non - current classification.

2.3 Revenue Recognition

"Effective 1st April, 2018, the Company has applied Ind AS 115 – Revenue from Contracts with Customers which
establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is to be recognized.
Ind AS 115 replaces Ind AS 18 Revenue. Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or
services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in
exchange for those products or services. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of customer returns, trade allowance, rebates, goods and services
tax and amount collected on behalf of third parties.““To recognise revenues, the Company applies the following five
step approach:“1. identify the contract with a customer;“2. identify the performance obligations in the contract;“3.
determine the transaction price;“4. allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract;
and“5. recognise revenues when a performance obligation is satisfied"

Service revenue comprises subscription fees, channel carriage fees, use of infrastructure facilities and other services.
Income from services is recognised upon completion of services as per the terms of contracts with the customers.
Period based services are accrued and recognised prorata over the contractual period.

Connection fee, which in substance is an advance payment for future services or the ongoing services being provided,
is essential to the subscribers receiving the expected benefit of the upfront payment of Connection fee. Accordingly,
connection fee is earned as services provided and deferred over the expected customer relationship period (i.e.
expected life of the customer).
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Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial assets to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

2.4 Property, Plant and Equipment

a. Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less accumulated
depreciation and impairment, if any. Costs directly attributable to acquisition are capitalised until the property,
plant and equipment are ready for use, as intended by the management.

For transition to Ind AS, the Company had elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and
equipment recognised as at 1st April, 2016 (Ind AS transition date), measured as per the previously applicable Indian
GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as at the Ind AS transition date.

b. Capital Inventories are treated as part of Capital Work-in-Progress till the date of activation thereof post which the
same are depreciated.

c. Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and capital work-in-
progress) less their residual values, over their useful lives. The estimated useful lives, residual value and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis. The residual value of asset is considered at 5%. Depreciation / Amortisation

d. Assets held under finance leases are depreciated / amortised over their expected useful lives on the same basis as
owned assets. However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end of lease
term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of lease term and their useful lives. Depreciation on tangible
assets other than Freehold and Leasehold Land, including assets acquired under finance lease, is provided over the
estimated useful life of assets, in accordance with Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The residual value of
assets is considered at 5%.

e. "For the purpose of estimating the useful life as required under Schedule II, the Company has broadly divided the
Property, Plant and Equipment in two categories viz., (a) assets which are specific to its industry and (b) assets which
are general in nature. For the assets which are specific to its industry, the Company has estimated the useful life of
such assets based on its past experience in this regard, which has been duly supported by independent technical
advice. For assets which are general in nature, the Company has adopted the useful life as specified in Schedule II to
the Companies Act, 2013.““ Accordingly, the useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company which are
different from the useful lives as specified by Schedule II are as given below:“"

Asset description (refer Note No. 3)Estimated useful life duly supported by Technical Advice (in years) Estimated
useful Life as per Schedule II (in years)

f. An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.5 Intangible Assets

a. Intangible assets are recognised when the asset is identifiable, is within the control of the Company, it is probable

Asset description
(refer Note No. 3)

Estimated useful life duly
supported by Technical

Advice (in years)

Estimated useful Life as per Schedule II (in years)

Cable Network - Backbone 21 13, 18
Cable Network- Drop 12, 21 13, 18
Cable Network-
Infrastructure Leasing 21 13, 18
Maintenance Equipments 21 15
Head End Equipments 21 13
Broadband NOC Equipments 21 13
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that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and cost of the asset
can be reliably measured. Intangible assets comprises of Computer Software, Goodwill and Non Compete Fee.

b. Intangibles assets acquired in business combination represent Goodwill and Non Compete Fee ("NCF"). NCF represents
amount payable to local cable operators ('LCOs') to acquire rights over a particular area and is recognised separately
from goodwill.

c. Intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any.
Amortisation is recognised on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives if any other method which reflects
the pattern in which the asset's future economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the entity cannot be
determined reliably. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

d. Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
b) Computer software and Goodwill are amortised over a period of five years.

e. Non Compete Fees is amortised over the period of agreement with LCOs, in equal installments.

f. Computer Software is amortised over a period of five years. Impairment

g. An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss when
the asset is derecognized.The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to determine if
there is any indication of impairment, based on internal / external factors. An impairment loss is recognised wherever
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

h. For transition to Ind AS, the Company had elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its intangible assets
recognised as at the Ind AS transition date, measured as per the previously applicable Indian GAAP and use that
carrying value as its deemed cost as at the Ind AS transition date.

2.6 Borrowing Costs

"Borrowing costs include interest expense calculated using the effective interest rate method, other costs incurred
in connection with borrowing of funds and exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the
interest costs. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset (net of income earned on temporary deployment of funds) are added to the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. ““A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale.“" After impairment, depreciation is
provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

2.7 Inventories

"Inventories comprising of stores and spares are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.““Cost of
inventories is determined on the ‘first-in, first-out (FIFO)' basis and comprises expenditure incurred in the normal
course of business for bringing such inventories to their present location and condition and includes, wherever
applicable, appropriate overheads. Obsolete, slow moving and defective inventories are identified at the time of
physical verification and where necessary, provision is made for such inventories.““Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.“"A previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reversed depending on changes
in circumstances. However, the carrying value after reversal is not increased beyond the carrying value that would
have prevailed by charging usual depreciation, if there was no impairment.

2.8 Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.
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Financial Assets

a. “”Classification” The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of its business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flows characteristics of the financial assets.”

b. "Initial recognition and measurement““All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of
financial assets not recognised at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset.““Subsequent measurements of financial assets are dependent on initial categorisation.
For impairment purposes, significant financial assets are tested on an individual basis and other financial assets are
assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics.“"

c. "Financial assets measured at amortised cost““Financial assets are measured at amortised cost when asset is held
within a business model, whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and contractual
terms of asset give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest. Such
financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. The
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies to
trade and other receivables.“"

d. "Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)““Financial assets under this
category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognised in
other comprehensive income.““Pertaining to its non-current investments in equity instruments (except investment
in subsidiary, which is measured at cost), the Company had exercised an irrevocable option at the Ind AS transition
date to measure the subsequent changes in the fair value through Other Comprehensive Income."

e. "Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)““Financial assets under this category are
measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value with all changes recognised in profit or loss."

f. "De-recognition of financial assets““A financial asset is primarily derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the asset have expired or the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset."

Financial Liabilities

"“a. " "“Classification““The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except
for financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Such liabilities shall be subsequently measured at fair
value.“"

"“b. " "“Initial recognition and measurement““All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the case of
loans, borrowings, and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. Financial liabilities include amounts
payable to LCOs, trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts.“"

"“c. " "“Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss ““Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading, if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing
in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109 - ""Financial Instruments"". Separated embedded derivatives
are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.“"

"“d. " "“Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost““After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method.““Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium and fee or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in
finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transactions costs)
and the redemption amount is recognized in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the EIR method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognized as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it
is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down.“"

"“e. " "“Trade and other payables““A payable is classified as 'trade payable' if it is in respect of the amount due on account
of goods purchased or services received in the normal course of business. These amounts represent liabilities for
goods and services provided to the Company prior the end of financial year, which are unpaid. They are recognized
initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.“"
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f. "De-recognition of financial liabilities““A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred
or liabilities assumed, is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss as other income or finance costs.“"

2.9 Impairment

Financial assets

"“The Company recognises loss allowances, if any, using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets
which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing
component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The management, based on its best estimate, may
consider it necessary to provide for a loss allowance for Trade Receivables higher than that determined as per the
ECL methodology. For all other financial assets, ECL is measured at an amount equal to the 12- month ECL, unless
there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition, in which case, those are measured at
lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the
reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognised, is recognised as an impairment loss or gain  in the
Statement of Profit and Loss."

Non-financial assets

"Non financial assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e.,
the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual basis unless the asset
does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable
amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.““If such assets are considered
to be impaired, the impairment to be recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss is measured by the amount by
which the carrying value of the asset exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment loss is
reversed in the Statement of Profit and Loss if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that
this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any accumulated
amortization or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.“"

2.10 Investment in Subsidiary

"“A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has power over the entity,
is exposed, or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns by using its power over the entity.““Power is demonstrated through existing rights that give the ability to
direct relevant activities, those which significantly affect the entity’s returns.““Investments in subsidiary is carried
at cost. The cost comprises price paid to acquire investment and directly attributable cost.“"

2.11 Leases

"The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement
at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains a lease if fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent
on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that
right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.““For arrangements entered into prior to the Ind AS transition
date, the Company has determined whether the arrangements contain a lease on the basis of the facts and
circumstances existing on the Ind AS transition date.“"

"a) Arrangements where the Company is the lessee““Leases of property, plant and equipment, where the Company
assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are
capitalized at lower of the fair value of the leased property, plant and equipment and the present value of the
minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of lease
liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.““"

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.
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"b) Arrangements where the Company is the lessor““Rental income from operating leases is generally recognised on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected
general inflation to compensate for the Company’s expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognised
in the year in which such benefits accrue.“"

2.12 Foreign Currency Transactions and Translations

"Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Company (i.e. INR) at exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the
reporting date are translated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date and the related foreign
currency gain or loss are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.““Foreign exchange differences regarded as
an adjustment to interest costs are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Realised or unrealized gain in
respect of the settlement or translation of borrowing is recognized as an adjustment to interest cost to the extent
of the loss previously recognized as an adjustment to interest cost.“"

2.13 Employee Benefits

a) Employee benefits in the form of Provident Fund and Employees State Insurance are defined contribution plans.
The Company recognises contribution payable to a defined contribution plan as an expense, when an employee
renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for services received before the balance
sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the contribution payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability
after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for
services received before the balance sheet date, the excess is recognised as an asset to the extent that the pre-
payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

b) Gratuity liability and Leave encashment liability are defined benefit plans. The cost of providing benefits under the
defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried
out at the end of each annual reporting period.

"c) Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability/asset comprise: ““(i) actuarial gains and losses;“(ii) the
return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset; and“(iii)
any change in the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability/asset.“"

Remeasurements of net defined benefit liability / asset are charged or credited to other comprehensive income.

2.14 Business Combinations

"“Business combinations involving LCOs are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree. Acquisition costs which are administrative in nature are expensed
out.“"

In case of a bargain purchase, before recognising a gain in respect thereof, the Company determines whether there
exists clear evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as a bargain purchase.
Thereafter, the Company reassesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the
liabilities assumed and recognises any additional assets or liabilities that are identified in that reassessment. The
Company then reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts that Ind AS requires for the purposes of
calculating the bargain purchase. If the gain remains after this reassessment and review, the Company recognises it
in other comprehensive income and accumulates the same in equity as capital reserve. This gain is attributed to the
acquirer. If there does not exist clear evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as
a bargain purchase, the Company recognises the gain, after reassessing and reviewing (as described above), directly
in equity as capital reserve.

When the consideration transferred by the Company in a business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair
value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a business combination.

2.15 Bad Debts Write-off

"“a. In case of retail customers :-“(i)  the entire outstanding dues as on the date of disconnection of service for any
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reason, is written off as Bad Debts.“(ii) During continuation of service, based on the management’s best estimate, a
portion or full amount of outstanding is written off as bad debts.“"

b. For other receivables, amount is written off based on the management’s assessment of each receivable separately.

2.16 Employee Stock Option Expenses

"The Company operates equity-settled share based remuneration plans for its employees, where the fair value of
employee’s services is determined indirectly by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments granted. This
fair value is appraised at the grant date. All share-based remuneration is ultimately recognised as an expense in profit
or loss with a corresponding credit to Employee Stock Option Outstanding reserve. If vesting periods or other vesting
conditions apply, the expense is allocated over the vesting period, based on the best available estimate of the
number of share options expected to vest. Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of options that are expected to become exercisable. Estimates are subsequently revised if there is any
indication that the number of share options expected to vest differs from previous estimates. Any adjustment to
cumulative share-based compensation resulting from a revision is recognised in the current period. The number of
vested options ultimately exercised by holders does not impact the expense recorded in any period.““Upon exercise
of share options, the proceeds received, net of any directly attributable transaction costs, are allocated to share
capital up to the nominal value of the shares issued with any excess being recorded as Securities Premium."

2.17 Taxes on Income

Income tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income. In such
cases, the tax is also recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income. Revenue is recognised to
the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company, it can be reliably measured and it is
reasonable to expect ultimate collection.

Current tax

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year, determined in accordance with the
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.Service revenue comprises subscription fees, channel carriage fees, use of
infrastructure facilities and other services. Income from services is recognised upon completion of services as per
the terms of contracts with the customers. Period based services are accrued and recognised prorata over the
contractual period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
balance sheet and their corresponding tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences and
unused tax losses being carried forward, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available in
future against which those deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

MAT Credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will
pay normal income tax during the specified period i.e. the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried
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forward. In the year in which the MAT Credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset in accordance with the
recommendations contained in the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the
said asset is created by way of a credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss and shown as MAT Credit Entitlement. The
Company reviews the same at each Balance Sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement
to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal income tax
during the specified period.

2.18 Programming Cost

Programming Cost represents amount paid / payable to Broadcasters to telecast their respective channels.

2.19 Provision and  Contingencies

"“Provisions are recognised only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable
estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present values,
where the time value of money is material.““A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made when there is a possible
obligations arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present
obligations that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made."

2.20 Standards Issued but not Effective

The Standards that are issued, but not yet effective, are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these
standards when they became effective:

"Ind AS 116, Leases““Ind AS 116, Leases was notified on 30th March, 2019 and it replaces Ind AS 17 on Leases. Ind AS
116 is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1st April, 2019. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under
a single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases under Ind AS 17. The standard includes
two recognition exemptions for lessees – leases of ‘low-value’ assets and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease
term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease
payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease
term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease
liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. As the Company does not have any material leases,
the adoption of this standard is not likely to have a material impact in its Financial Statements.“"

"Amendment to Ind AS 12, Income Taxes“The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognize income tax
consequences of dividends in Statement of Profit and Loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to
where the entity originally recognised those past transactions or events. The amendment will come into force for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1st April, 2019.“"

"Appendix C to Ind AS 12, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments“The Appendix clarifies how to apply the recognition
and measurement principles while recognizing current tax, deferred tax, taxable profits (losses), tax bases, unused
tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates when there is uncertainty over tax treatments under Ind AS 12. As per
the Appendix, the Company needs to assess whether it is probable that a tax authority will accept an uncertain tax
treatment used or a treatment which is being proposed to be used in its income tax filings. The Appendix will be
applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect of its initial application on the opening balance sheet as on 1st
April, 2019.“"

"Amendment to Ind AS 19, Employee Benefits“On 30th March, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified limited
amendments to Ind AS 19 'Employee Benefits' in connection with accounting for plan amendments, curtailments and
settlements. The amendments require an entity to use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net
interest for the remainder of the period after a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement and to recognise in
Statement of Profit and Loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, any reduction in a surplus,
even if that surplus was not previously recognised because of the impact of the asset ceiling. The amendment will come
into force for accounting periods beginning on or after 1st April, 2019, though early application is permitted. “"
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42. Disclosure pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard 103 - Business Combinations
The Company acquires the "Cable Network Business" of various Local Cable Operators ('LCOs') which, inter alia,
consists of equipments, infrastructure and cable television subscribers and  enters into agreements with the LCOs in this
regard, whereby the LCOs agree to sell their "Cable Network Business" . The LCOs also agree not to compete with the
Company for a specified period in the areas where the  LCOs have transferred their cable television subscribers to the
Company. The amount payable for acquisition of equipments & infrastructure has been capitalised under relevant
categories of tangible assets and the amount payable as non-compete fee has been treated as an Intangible asset.

Details of acquisitions that resulted in creation of goodwill are as follows:

 (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars  Year ended Year ended 31st
31st March, 2020 1st March, 2019

Fair Value of consideration paid / payable - -  454.27

Assets taken over

Property, Plant & Equipment  -  107.86

Non - compete fees recognised  -  211.22

Total Assets  -  319.08

Liabilities taken ove-  -

Net assets taken over  -  319.08

Consideration transferred  -  454.27

Goodwill -  135.19

Note: There is no transaction since no acquisition of LCO's during the year
Details of acquisitions that resulted in bargain purchase are as follows:

Details of acquisitions that resulted in bargain purchase are as follows:

 (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars  Year ended Year ended 31st
31st March, 2020 1st March, 2019

Fair Value of consideration paid / payable - -  1,035.55
Assets taken over
Property, Plant & Equipment  -  356.12
Non - compete fees recognised  -  839.50
Total Assets  -  1,195.62

Liabilities taken over  -  -
Net assets taken over -  1,195.62
Consideration transferred -  1,035.55

Bargain Purchase Gain -  160.07

Note: There is no transaction since no acquisition of LCO's during the year
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(b) Defined Benefit Plan:
"The Company provides for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous
service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the
employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years
of service. ““The Employees Gratuity Fund Scheme, which is a defined benefit plan, is managed by a trust maintained with Life
Insurance Corporation of India (LIC). The Employees Leave Encashment Scheme, which is a defined benefit plan is
unfunded.““The present value of the obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using Projected Units Credit
Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional units of employees benefit entitlement and
measures each unit separately to buildup the final obligation."
The following table sets out the details of amount recognised in the financial statements in respect of employee benefit
schemes:

Disclosure pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard 19 - Employee Benefits

 (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars  Year ended Year ended 31st
31st March, 2020 1st March, 2019

Employer’s contribution towards:
- Provident Fund 82.84  65.42
- Employee State Insurance  25.28  39.65

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Gratuity Gratuity Leave Encashment Leave Encashment

As at 31st March, 
2020

As at 31st March, 
2019

As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019

Present Value of obligation                            172.23                          156.44                               38.66                                     39.35 
Fair value of plan assets                          (234.29)                        (228.82)                                     -                                            -   
Net (Assets) / liabilities recognised in
balance sheet

                           (62.06)                          (72.38)                               38.66                                     39.35 

Recognised under:
Other Non Current Assets                              62.06                            72.38                             (38.66)                                          -   
Provisions:
Non Current                                    -                                    -                                 35.20                                     32.43 
Current                                    -                                    -                                   3.46                                       6.92 

(i) The amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet are as under:

Particulars

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Gratuity Gratuity Leave Encashment Leave Encashment

2019-20 2018-19 2019-20 2018-19
Present Value of obligation at the beginning of
the year

                               156.44                              205.88                                   39.35                                          69.39 

Interest Cost                                  11.55                                12.39                                     3.01                                            4.15 

Current service cost                                   17.73                                16.53                                     1.16                                            0.99 

Past service cost                                        -                                           -                                                 -   

Benefits paid                                 (10.99)                               (89.98)                                         -   -                                       31.07 

Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligation                                   (2.50)                                11.62                                    (4.86) -                                         4.10 

Present value of obligation as at the end of the
year

                               172.23                              156.44                                   38.66                                          39.35 

(ii) Changes in present value of obligation:

Particulars
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(Rs. in Lakhs)
Gratuity Gratuity Leave Encashment Leave Encashment

As at 31st March, 
2020

As at 31st March, 
2019

As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019

Fair Value of plan assets as at the
beginning of the year

                           228.82                          286.67                                     -                                            -   

Return on plan assets                              17.13 19.06                                     -                                            -   
Contributions                                1.16                            15.00                                     -                                            -   
Benefits paid                            (10.99) (89.98)                                     -                                            -   
Actuarial gain/ (loss) on plan assets                              (0.62)                            (1.93)                                     -                                            -   
Other Expenses (Mortality Charges, Policy
Admin Charges & Related Taxes)

                             (1.21)                                  -                                       -                                            -   

Fair value of plan assets as at the end of
the year

234.29 228.82 0.00                                          -   

Particulars

(iii) Changes in plan assets:
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47. Advance from customers includes Rs. 74.46 Lakhs (Previous Year: Rs. 74.46 Lakhs), being Electricity Inspection Duty
collected from the customers (levied by the Department of Energy, Government of Odisha vide its notification dated 29th
March, 2002 under Indian Electricity Rules, 1956) but not deposited with the appropriate authorities on the ground that
neither the rules nor the notification is applicable to the Company and the charging chapter of the Notification does not
authorise the electrical Inspector to levy fees on any person other than the owner of the television connection. The
Company has filed a writ petition before Hon'ble High Court of Orissa against the said Notification  and obtained an
order to the effect that no coercive action can be taken against the Company until the disposal of the case. However, as
per the direction of Hon’ble High Court of Orissa vide its order dated  9th February, 2007, Rs. 29.00 Lakhs was deposited
with the said Court. “Subsequently, Hon’ble High Court of Orissa vide its order dated 5th November, 2007 directed the
Government of Odisha to take a decision as to whether the inspection charges so far as consumer of television connections
are concerned can be waived and/or imposed and also directed the Company not to collect any amount from any
individual customer until a decision is taken by the Government of Odisha.
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b). Information about major customers

No single customer contributed 10% or more to the Company’s revenue during the years ended 31st March, 2020 and 31st
March, 2019.

49. The Company has not recognised interest payable, after the CIRP commencement date i.e. 27th November, 2018, on
borrowings from banks and financial institutions and preference shares. The same is not in compliance with Ind AS - 23
on “Borrowing Cost” read with Ind AS - 109 on “Financial Instruments”.

50. "There is strain on the working capital and operations of the Company and it is undergoing financial stress. It has
incurred a net loss of Rs.3485.46 lakhs during the year ended 31st March, 2020 as compared to Rs. 5,122.59 lakhs in
previous year. The net worth of the Company is fully eroded since last year. CIRP was initiated in respect of the
Company w.e.f 27th November, 2018, as explained in Note No. 1 hereinabove. The Company has material obligations
towards borrowings, employee benefits expense and statutory dues, amongst others. The Company’s current level of
income is barely sufficient to meet all operational expenses but not the past liabilities and the debt servicing obligations
regarding the financial creditors. However, the Company has assessed that considering it’s plans to deal with the
aforesaid events or conditions, the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the circumstances and hence,
the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. Certain crucial aspects of the Company’s plans in
this regard are as follows:-““a) Restructuring/reorganising the loss making locations to eliminate recurring operating
losses;“b) Drastic reduction in overhead expenditure;“c) Reduction in manpower cost by outsourcing certain functions;“d)
Introduction of new sales schemes to increase net growth in the customer base of existing locations;“e) Introduction of
prepaid module/App to reduce revenue risk: and“f) Obtaining new contracts for construction and maintenance of
networks. The Company has already received certain orders in this regard and expects more such orders on a regular
basis. ““The company has been able to successfully implemented the above mentioned plan. Further, the CIRP provides
for a moratorium as envisaged under Section 14(1) of IBC, with effect from 27th November, 2018 till the completion of
the CIRP process, provided that at any time during the CIRP if a resolution plan is approved under Section 31(1) of IBC
or an order for liquidation of the Company is passed under Section 33 of IBC, the moratorium shall cease to have effect
from the date of such approval or liquidation order, as the case may be. CIRP is ongoing and resolution plan approved
by the CoC submitted on 26th  August, 2019 before NCLT and pending for approval. Pending said process under CIRP,
the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.“

51. The Company has issued Credit Notes amounting to Rs.1744.73 lakhs during the year ended 31st March, 2020 towards
disruption of services/deficient provision of services. Accordingly, the Company has debited ‘Provision for doubtful
receivables’ with Rs. 310.09 lakhs and the related Goods and Services Tax (‘GST’) liability with Rs. 310.05 lakhs and
credited ‘Trade Receivables’ with Rs. 2054.78 lakhs.

52. As per the IBC, the RP has to receive, collate and admit all the claims submitted by the operational and financial creditors
of the Company. Such claims can be submitted to the RP during the CIRP, till the approval of a resolution plan by the
CoC. To the extent the process for submission and reconciliation of claims remains an on-going process, no accounting
impact in the books of accounts has been made in respect of excess, short or non-receipts of claims for operational and
financial creditors.

53. As explained in Note No. 1 above, the Company is under CIRP and during the CIRP, resolution plans (“Resolution Plan”)
was received by the Resolution Professional and the Resolution Plan was placed before the COC for approval and the
approved Resolution Plan was filed with the Hon’ble NCLT, New Delhi on 26th August, 2019 for approval under Section
31 of the Code. The application filed by the Resolution Professional for approval of Resolution Plan is currently pending
adjudication before the NCLT. In terms of Section 25 of the Code, the Company is continuing to operate as a going
concern. The CIRP is not yet concluded and hence, the final outcome is yet to be ascertained. Hence, the Company has not
made any assessment of impairment as required by Ind AS 36 on Impairment of Assets, if any, as at 31st March 2020 in the
value of PPE, CWIP, Goodwill and Stores and Spares.

54. Previous year/period figures have been regrouped/rearranged, wherever considered necessary, to make them comparable
with those of current year.

For K. Prasad & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 303062E
Santanu Das
Partner
Membership No. F-053226

Place: Kolkata
Date: 31st July, 2020

For and on behalf of Ortel Communications Limited

Bidu Bhushan Dash
CFO & Company Secretary

Taken on record

Srigopal Choudhary
Resolution Professional
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ORTEL COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements
Disclaimer of Opinion

We were engaged to audit the accompanying consolidated
financial statements of ORTEL COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
("the Company") which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
31st March, 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes
in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow for the year then
ended and a Summary of significant accounting and other
explanatory information.

We do not express an opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements of the company in view
of the significance of the matters described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report. We have not
been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated
financial statements.

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

a) As mentioned in Note No. 51 to the consolidated
financial statements, no impairment assessment of
Property, Plant and Equipment, Capital Work-in-
Progress, Goodwill and Stores & Spares in carrying
values of these assets as at 31st March, 2020, has been
made by the Company. Therefore, we are unable to
comment on the consequential impairment, if any, that
is required to be made in the carrying value of
Property, Plant and Equipment, Capital Work-in-
Progress, Goodwill and Stores & Spares. Hence we are
unable comment on the carrying value of Property,
Plant & Equipments as shown in consolidated financial
statements as at 31st March, 2020.

b) In respect of Company's borrowings from banks and
financial institutions (including NBFCs) aggregating to
Rs 16,644.37 lakhs and bank balances (current accounts
and term deposits) aggregating to Rs 343.83 lakhs,
independent balance confirmations as at 31st March,
2020 have not been received.

c) We have been informed by the Resolution Professional
that certain information including the minutes of
meetings of the Committee of Creditors are confidential
in nature and cannot be shared with anyone other
than the Committee of Creditors and NCLT. Accordingly,
it is not practicable to comment on the possible
financial effects on the consolidated f inancial
statements, including on presentation, reporting and
disclosures, if any, that may have arisen if we had been
provided access to those information.

d) As a part of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process
(CIRP), creditors were called upon to submit their

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of

claims. Till the date of our signing of the consolidated
financial statements, claims submitted by creditors have
not been reconciled with the books of accounts of
the Company. Pending such reconciliation and final
outcome of the CIRP, no accounting impact in the
books of accounts has been made in respect of excess,
short or non-receipts of claims for operational and
financial creditors.

Hence, it is not practicable to quantify the financial
impact of the same, if any, on the consolidated
financial statements, (refer Note No. 50 to the
Consolidated financial statements).

e) The Company has given advances for supplies / services
and the amount outstanding there as at 31st March,
2020 was Rs. 1,928.34 lakhs. However, we have been
unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding certain aspects of the aforesaid advances
viz ageing analysis and the basis on which the same
will be adjusted in subsequent period. Hence, we are
unable to comment on the aforesaid advances and it
is not practicable to quantify the financial effects of
the same, if any, on the consolidated financial
statements.

f) As at 31st March, 2020, the Company is having liabilities
against "Creditors for Capital Goods" and "Liability for
Operating Expenses" amounting to Rs. 6,990.96 lakhs
and Rs. 4,388.29 lakhs respectively. However, we have
been unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence regarding certain aspects of the aforesaid
liabilities viz aging analysis and the basis on which the
aforesaid liabilities will be settled subsequently. Hence,
we are unable to comment on the balances appearing
under the aforesaid liabilities and it is not practicable
to quantify the financial effects of the same, if any,
on the consolidated financial statements.

g) The Company is having a non-current investment of
Rs.211.28 lakhs in equity shares of Odisha Television
Limited, an unquoted company, as at 31st March, 2020.
Original investment made by the Company was Rs.
32,50,000 (3,25,000 equity shares of Rs.10 each). In
the absence of the fair valuation of the said investments
at 31st March, 2020, we are unable to comment on
the carrying value of such investment as at 31st March,
2020 in consolidated financial statements and related
re-measurement gain/ loss, if any, on the said
investment.

Key Audit Matters

Key  audit matters  are those matters that , in our
professional judgement , were of  most significance  in our
audit of the  financial statements of  the  current  period.
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These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the financial statements as a whole and in forming our
opinion. We have nothing   to report in this regard.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note No. 48 to the Consolidated
financial statements which indicates that due to the events
or conditions as mentioned in the said Note, material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern and,
therefore, it may be unable to realize its assets and discharge
its liabilities in the normal course of business. However, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis for the reason stated in the same Note.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal ('NCLT'), New
Delhi Branch, admitted a petition for initiation of CIRP u/s
9 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 ('IBC') filed
by one of the operational creditors of the Company vide
order dated 27th November, 2018 and appointed an Interim
Resolution Professional ('IRP') to manage the affairs of the
Company in accordance with the provisions of IBC. The
Committee of Creditors ('CoC') in its meeting held on 7th
January, 2019 passed a resolution proposing to replace the
IRP and appoint a Resolution Professional ('RP') which was
confirmed by NCLT vide its order dated 1st February, 2019.
In view of pendency of the CIRP and in view of suspension
of powers of Board of Directors and explained to us, the
power of adaption of the Consolidated financial statements
of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2020 vests
with the Resolution Professional (refer Note No. 1 to the
Consolidated financial statements).

The Company's Resolution Professional is responsible for the
matters stated in section 136(5) of the Companies Act,
2013('the Act') with respect to the preparation of these
Consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance
including other comprehensive income, change in equity
and cash flow of the Company in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standard ("IND AS") specified under section 133
of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standard) Rule, 2015, as amended and other accounting
principle generally accepted in India. This responsibility also
includes maintenance  of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making  judgements and
estimates that are responsible and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
Consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair

view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the Consolidated financial statements, the
Resolution Professional is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Resolution
Professional either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
so.

The Resolution Professional is also responsible for overseeing
the Company's financial process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Company's
consolidated financial statements in accordance with
Standards on Auditing issue by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ("ICAI") and to issue an auditor's report.
However, because of the matters described in the Basis of
Disclaimer of opinion section of our report, we were not
able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated
financial statements.

We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issue by ICAI and provisions  of the Act
that are relevant to our audit if the consolidated financial
statements in India under Act, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issue by ICAI and the requirements under the Act.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of the subsidiary,
whose financial statements reflects total assets of Rs. 0.21
lakhs as at 31st March, 2020, total revenue of Rs. Nil and
net cash outflows amounting to Rs. 0.50 lakhs for the year
ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated
financial statements. These financial statements are audited
and have been certified by the management and our opinion
on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as to
relates to the amounts and disclosure included in respect
of the subsidiary and our reports in terms of sub - section
(3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the
subsidiary is based solely on such audited financial
statements. In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us by the management of the
Company, these audited financial statements are not
material to the consolidated financial statements.

In view of lockdown imposed nationwide since 23rd March,
2020 due to COVID-19 pandemic and imposition of travel
restrictions, physical verification of books of accounts,
documents, other audit evidences and face to face
discussion with management of the Company, in person,
could not be done by us. We have relied on documents
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provided to us electronically over mail. We have  received
the internal  audit report for Q1, Q2, Q3 and Q4 but  due
to travel restrictions we  are unable  to verify the
observation s as given  by the internal auditors and  have
relied on such reports of  internal auditor. We could not
verify physical cash balance as on 31st March, 2020 in
different location of the company and have relied on the
certificate provided by the management for the cash
balance of Rs. 46.93 lakhs (P/Y : Rs. 247.96 lakhs).

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1) As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report
that:

a) As described in the basis for Disclaimer of Opinion
paragraph, we sought but were unable to obtained all
the information and explanation which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purpose of our audit;

b) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of
Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the books of account;

c) The matters described under the Basis for Disclaimer
of Opinion paragraph and Material Uncertainty Related
to going concern paragraph, as above, in our opinion,
may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the
Company;

d) As the company is under CIRP the power of the
directors is temporarily suspended, thus reporting
regarding directors' disqualification under Section
164(2) of the Act is not required;

e) Any qualification, reservation or adverse remark relating
to the maintenance of accounts and other matters
connected therewith is as stated in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph above;

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial
control with reference to the financial statements of
the group and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, we would like to state that we have given
our separate report in respect of the Company along
with our audit report on the standalone financial
statements of the company.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included
in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014,  in  our  opin ion and t o the  best  of  our
informat ion and according to the explanations
giving to us :

I. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending
litigations on its financial position in its Consolidated
financial statements - Refer Note Nos. 38 and 47 to
the Consolidated financial statements;

II. The Company did not have any long-term contracts
including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses;

III. There were no amounts which were required to be
transfer to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company.

Others: Disclaimer of Opinion

Attention is drawn to Note No. 47 to the consolidated
financial  statements,  regarding  non-recognition of
interest subsequent to insolvency commencement date
i.e. 27th November 2018, and also for FY 2019-20 on
borrowing from banks and financial institutions and on
non-cumulative,  redeemable cumulative preference
shares, which is not in compliance with the requirements
of IND AS - 23 on "Borrowing Costs" read with IND AS -
109 on "Financial Instruments". Such charges for FY 2019-
20, has not been computed and disclosed in Notes to
Accounts by the Company. Also,  Rs. 1,067.14 lakhs
towards interest calculated during FY 2018-19 which was
not  considered in audited Consol idated f inancial
statements  relat i ng  to FY 2018-19,  has not  been
considered in Consolidated financial statements for FY
2019-20.  Had the aforesaid interest expenses been
recognised, finance costs, total expenses and loss for
the year would have been higher by the said amount
having consequential impact on other current financial
liabilities and other equity. In support of non-provision
of finance costs  for FY 2019-20,  the Company has
obtained a legal opinion dated 2nd June, 2020, a copy
of which has also been submitted to us. However, the
legal opinion does not provide any specific conclusion
for non-provis ion of  "f inance cost " in consolidated
financial statements.

Place: Kolkata
Date: The 31st day of July, 2020.
UDIN: 20055232AAAAAP6117
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For K. Prasad & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 303062E
Santanu Das
Partner
Membership No. F-053226

Place: Kolkata
Date: 31st July, 2020

For and on behalf of Ortel Communications Limited

Bidu Bhushan Dash
CFO & Company Secretary

Taken on record

Srigopal Choudhary
Resolution Professional
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For K. Prasad & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 303062E
Santanu Das
Partner
Membership No. F-053226

Place: Kolkata
Date: 31st July, 2020

For and on behalf of Ortel Communications Limited

Bidu Bhushan Dash
CFO & Company Secretary

Taken on record

Srigopal Choudhary
Resolution Professional
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*The Company had been providing services in Paradeep Port Trust ('PPT') area as per contracts. In an earlier year, the Company had
committed to cover programmes/news of PPT in its network as "PARADIP PARIKRAMA". As per the terms of the contract, the
contents of the programmes were to be provided by PPT for coverage and transmission of the programmes by the Company.
Subsequently, PPT had claimed that it incurred Rs. 52.69 lakhs for shooting and covering the same. However, the said claim has not
been accepted by the Company.  By the time PPT raised this claim, the contract had expired and a new contract pursuant to fresh
negotiation was executed. PPT then claimed that they would adjust the said amount with subscription money payable by PPT to
the Company. Accordingly, the Company had filed a writ petition dated July 10, 2006 against the demand of PPT before the Hon'ble
High Court, Orissa. The demand had been stayed by the Hon’ble High Court vide its interim Order dated July 20, 2006. The matter
is still pending for final hearing. As on date, all earlier contracts with PPT have expired.

3 7 Financial risk management
37.1 Financial risk factors

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise of borrowings, liability towards LCOs, trade and other payables. The main
purpose of these financial liabilities is to manage finances for the Company's operations. The Company's principal financial assets
include loans and advances, investment in equity instruments, trade receivables and cash and bank balances that arise directly from
its operations. The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk and the Company's senior management
oversees the management of these risks.

i) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial asset will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including the effects of changes in foreign currency exchange rates
and interest rates.

(a) Currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that fair value of future cash flow of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's
operating activities. The Company has foreign currency payable to vendors for property, plant and equipment and is therefore,
exposed to a foreign exchange risk.  Foreign currency risk is managed by monitoring the movements in currencies in which foreign
vendors are payable. The Company does not enter into or trade financial instrument including derivative for speculative purpose.
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(c) Disclosure in respect of Material Related Party Transactions during the year (excluding reimbursements) :

1. Remuneration paid to Mrs. Jagi Mangat Panda Rs.12 (Previous Year: Rs.41.87 Lakhs), Mr. Bibhu Prasad Rath  Rs. 48.70 Lakhs
(Previous Year : Rs. 56.54 Lakhs), Mr. Bidu Bhusan Dash Rs.12.54 Lakhs (Previous Year: NIL)

2. Sitting fees as nominee paid to Mr. Baijayant Panda Rs.Nil (Previous Year: Rs. NIL).

3. Signal Uplinking Income received from Odisha Television Ltd. Rs. 324.12 Lakhs (Previous Year: Rs.327.52 Lakhs).

4. Rent received from Odisha Television Ltd. Rs.3.60 Lakhs (Previous Year: Rs.3.60 Lakhs).

5. Rent paid to Odisha Television Ltd. Rs. 0.55 Lakhs (Previous Year:Rs. 6.00 Lakhs).

6. Internet Subscription Fees received from Odisha Television Ltd. Rs. 13.32 Lakhs (Previous Year: Rs. 18.65 Lakhs) and Indian Metals
& Ferro Alloys Ltd. Rs. 5.48 Lakhs (Previous Year: Rs. 7.08 Lakhs).

7. Subscription Fees received from Odisha Television Ltd. Rs. 1.64 Lakhs (Previous Year: Rs.1.64 Lakhs) and Indian Metals & Ferro
Alloys Ltd. R. 0.94 Lakhs (Previous Year: Rs. 1.88 Lakhs).

8. Advertisement Expenses paid to Odisha Television Ltd. Rs.12.00 Lakhs (Previous Year: Rs. 12.00 Lakhs).

9. Channel Carriage Income received from Odisha Television Ltd. Rs.NIL Lakhs (Previous Year: Rs. 187.84 Lakhs).

10. Programming Cost paid to Odisha Television Ltd. Rs.172.43 Lakhs (Previous Year: Rs.238.69 Lakhs).

11. Unsecured Loan received from B.P. Developers Pvt. Ltd. Rs. NIL (Previous Year:Rs. NIL), Metro Skynet Ltd. Rs. NIL (Previous Year:
Rs.NIL), Odisha Television Limited Rs. NIL (Previous Year Rs. 1065 Lakhs ), Mrs. Jagi Mangat Panda Rs. NIL (Previous Year Rs. 60.00
Lakhs ) and Ortel Broadband Ltd Rs.NIL ( Previous Year: Rs. 1065 Lakhs).

12. Unsecured Loan repaid to Orissa Infratech Pvt. Ltd. Rs.NIL (Previous Year: Rs.55.78 Lakhs).and BP Developer Pvt Ltd Rs.NIL (
Previous Year Rs 250.00 Lakhs)

13. Interest and Processing Fees on Unsecured Loan paid to Orissa Infratech Pvt. Ltd. Rs.NIL (Previous Year: Rs.36.39 Lakh), B.P.
Developers Pvt. Ltd. Rs. NIL (Previous Year: Rs.3.75 Lakhs), Metro Skynet Ltd. Rs. NIL (Previous Year:Rs.10.94 Lakhs) and Jagi
Mangat Panda Rs. NIL (Previous Year Rs. 0.87 Lakhs ), Indian Metals and Ferro Alloys Limited Rs. NIL (Previous Year: Rs. 56.47
Lakhs) and Odisha Television Ltd Rs. NIL (Previous Year Rs. 49.75 Lakhs).

14. Issue of Shares under Employee Stock Option Plan to Mr. Bibhu Prasad Rath Rs.NIL  (Previous Year: Rs. NIL).

15. Investment in Equity Instrument made in Ortel Broadband Ltd. Rs. NIL  (Previous Year: Rs.NIL).

16. Preference Shares issued to Indian Metals & Ferro Alloys Limited Rs.NIL (Previous Year: Rs. 1000.00 Lakhs) and Equity Share Issued
to Odisha Television Ltd Rs. NIL (Previous Year: Rs. NIL and BP Developers Pvt. Ltd. Rs. NIL ( Previous Year: Rs. NIL)
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For K. Prasad & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 303062E
Santanu Das
Partner
Membership No. F-053226

Place: Kolkata
Date: 31st July, 2020

For and on behalf of Ortel Communications Limited

Bidu Bhushan Dash
CFO & Company Secretary

Taken on record

Srigopal Choudhary
Resolution Professional
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